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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVE M

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Liwei (Chairman) (appointed as the chairman of the board
of directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Li Shenlin

Mr. Li Jianwen (re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director, and ceased to be the chairman of the board

of directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen (re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director, and ceased to be the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Ms. Zhang Yan

Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Onward, CPA

Mr. Wang Liping

Mr. Chen Liping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Onward, CPA (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Liping (Chairman)

Mr. Li Jianwen (ceased to be a member since 8 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Liwei (appointed as a member since 8 November 2021)
Mr. Chen Liping
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Liping (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen (ceased to be a member since 8 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Liwei (appointed as a member since 8 November 2021)

Mr. Wang Liping

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Mr. Wang Deshan (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Xuemin (appointed as the Company Secretary in place of Mr.

Li Bo since 30 November 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Chunyan
Ms. Pan Xuemin (appointed as an Authorized Representative in place of

Mr. Li Bo since 30 November 2021)

AUDITORS

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:

Reed Smith Richards Butler LLP
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AL

As to PRC law:

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)

INVESTORS AND MEDIA RELATION CONSULTANT

Unicorn Financial Company Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Guanghua Road Branch
4 Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC

Bank of Beijing

Jiulongshan Branch
117th Building
Jinsong Dongkou Nongguang Lane

Beijing, PRC

H SHARES REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Block No. 45
XinYuan Street
Chaoyang District
Beijing, PRC
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PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor

One lIsland East

Taikoo Place

18 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.jkl.com.cn

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES CONTACT
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Department of Investor Relations
Tel: 0086-10-64688238

Fax: 0086-10-64611370

Email: jingkelong@jkl.com.cn

Address: Block No. 45, XinYuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

STOCK CODE

814
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SREIRE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as

follows:

RARER @ AR ERAXEERNDARARZEREEIEMBARNT

Beijing Chaofu State-owned

Assets Administration Other domestic shareholders H shareholders
Company Limited o e e
S EEAEEEE HAE R R HEAR R
BRAT
40.61% 15.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

LR EEAXZEERNEBR AT

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Chaoyang Beijing Lianchao
Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain Jingkelong Vocational Company Limited
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Skills Training School
ERREE MR DR ERER R E RS IETREE (RRY5) ERREE MR B R plat o ES
HEEEERARA REFRDA BRATF BRAR BHEHARAE TSR AT I B AR BRAHF
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
SERWE

Thank you very much for all the directors’ and shareholders’ trust and B S EEMPRENEE @ EREBRERENSE
entrust me with the responsibility for the development of Jingkelong. EX4AH - RAERXIL A AERFEEERND
On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong AR AR ARG )zEEE([EEg]) 2F
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted to ARG REMBAF (AR AERE]))HZE2021
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively ~ 12 A31 B IFEE ([HMEP D HEERE

the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting

Period”).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the total domestic retail sales of social consumer goods amounted
to RMB44.1 trillion, increased by 12.5% from that in 2020, and increased
by 8% from that in 2019. Excluding the factor of price, the real total retail
sales of social consumer goods increased by 10.7%, and the full channel
system was established in the retailing industry, where live broadcast
became an important addition to sales channels. Our retail business was
still under the pressures of low-price expansion of group buying in the
community supported by huge capital, client flow diversion and turnover
downturn due to changing and evolving COVID-19 situations, however,
in face of consumer’s changing demands for goods, related information
and services, the diversification of sales channels, new changes in retailer-
supplier relationship and other aspects, the Group continued to be deeply
rooted in commercial nature, consumer-based, introduced category
management, optimized the product structure based on consumer
demands, reshaped the strategic cooperation chain relationship with
suppliers, and improved the operation and management capabilities
in terms of standardization, and specialization, as well as enhanced
the ability to serve consumers, and continued to seek development

opportunities and new growth points amid risks and challenges.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

Revenue from principle business was RMB10,100,311,991,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.2% as compared to

2020;

Gross profit was RMB1,209,169,371, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.3% as compared to 2020;

Gross profit margin was approximately 12%, representing an

increase of approximately 0.3% as compared to 11.7% in 2020;

Total profit was RMB43,339,407, representing a decrease of
approximately 73.4% as compared to 2020;

Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was

RMB-22,474,226, representing a decrease of approximately 141.1%

as compared to 2020;

Basic earnings per share was RMB-0.05 (2020: RMBO0.13); and

The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.05 (2020:
RMBO0.10).

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

WMAERA  AEBEZEES TANTESE ¢

— BEREITEEBKKAAR10,100,311,991
TC * Eh2020F £ 498.2%

—  EMARMA1,209,169,3717T » th2020F

[%#16.3% :

—  EMEHE12% @ E2020FH11.7%EEL
0.3% :

—  FMsa%E AR%43,339,4077C © th20205F
[&#973.4% :

— BERORARFFBEAEARMEE-22474,226
JC © HL2020F N FE141.1% ¢
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

OUTLOOK

In 2022, China’s economy is still under the pressures of shrinking
demand, impact to supplies and forecasted economic downturn.
However, the development of the consumer market remains healthy
both in terms of volume and speed, in particular, as the government
strengthens regulations, governs the chaos caused by community group
buying, rectifies e-commerce platform monopoly, regulates live broadcast
taxation, and provides a fair play market environment for traditional
enterprises to compete with online enterprises. Online and offline price
differences will further narrow, while online convenience and offline
experience will be further complemented and balanced. In this the new
environment, the Group has changed our core business philosophy, will
focus on goods and services, will conduct careful research, analysis and
evaluation on consumer demand, market and competitors, and will work
with suppliers to plan and implement category management, and will
optimize commaodity structure based on consumer demand, will adjust
business positioning; will strengthen strategic cooperative relationship
with suppliers, will provide employees with a career development platform
through our talent-based corporate culture, will utilize new technologies
to empower digital transformation, and will strive to break through our
growth bottlenecks in market competition featured by highly stratified
consumer demand, highly dispersed consumption scenarios, and
diversified channels, will change the traditional profit model, and will

win new development space and opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

APPRECIATION &

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude toour ~ AAZBMRREFTFRHMZUMREAEENE
shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners, suppliers ~ FHEX# - R SR EE - SERH - HER
and customers for their support and assistance, and our appreciationto  REARBEEMEEETE @ ARt AEE 248
all staff and the management team for their hard work and contribution ETILREBERERERE-—FHNHDBEHIREE

to the Group during the Reporting Period. B RABUA 300 R
Zhang Liwei RAAE

Chairman EFER

Beijing, PRC FE - AER

30 March 2022 202243 A30H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI E T wm M AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the downward pressure placed on the domestic and foreign
economic environment remained relatively substantial, especially with
the changing and evolving COVID-19 pandemic situations. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics, the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
slightly rose by 0.9% for 2021 as compared to that in the previous year,
the growth rate of which was 1.6 percentage points lower than that in
2020. From the first quarter to the fourth quarter of 2021, the growth
rate of the gross domestic product (GDP) and retail sales of social
consumer goods continued weakening, and economic development
was under the pressure from shrinking demand and the expectation of
its weakening, and thus traditional chain business faced relatively great
challenges. During the Reporting Period, the Group was affected by the
pandemic and economic downturn, and faced the fierce competition
brought about by new channels such as group buying in the community
and live broadcasting supported by huge capital. In the face of highly
differentiated consumer demands, highly dispersed consumer scenarios
and highly diversified sales channels, the Group insisted on returning
to the business basics and based on “goods + services”, introduced
category management, restructured the customer-centered business
operating system, transformed the corporate profitability model by
creating value and providing services for its customers. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to strengthen cares and protection for employees, so
as to increase their sense of gain and loyalty; strictly implemented various
pandemic prevention and control measures for providing employees
with a safe working environment, customers with safe shopping places,
and become a warm and trustworthy company for our customers and

employees.
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RETAIL BUSINESS

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 161 as at 31 December
2021. The following table sets out the number and net operating area of

the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2021:

TEXRK

HZ2021F 128318 » AEBZEEHEEAE
16118« TREFAH I ANEEHN2021F12H531H
MZEPIEEE FIFEEmE

Department Convenience
Stores  Hypermarkets ~ Supermarkets stores Total
BE®S Nt REEm ERE aF

Number of retail outlets: TEMEYE

Directly-operated L 1 10 54 84 149

Franchise-operated R mAE - - - 12 12
Total G 1 10 54 9% 161
Net operating area (square metres):  FLEER (FHX):

Directly-operated EE 27,800 69,010 121,713 16,874 235,397

Franchise-operated R AR - - - 3,294 3,294
Total CE 27,800 69,010 121,713 20,168 238,691
During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated and upgraded two ¥R EiRSEAK T2 /E MRS ME T E( S 14

stores (including a supermarket and a convenience store), opened five
directly-operated convenience stores. Due to the expiration of leases
and modifications to the operation strategy, the Group closed down two
supermarkets, a directly-operated convenience store and a franchise-

operated convenience store.

BT RAEERE)

HBNHAR L ES

B]ﬁzuﬂﬁk::
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Enhancing commodity profitability on the basis of “goods +

services”

During the Reporting Period, the Group introduced category management
and categorized eight types of commodities such as, fruits, frozen foods,
cooked foods, etc. in the first stage. The commodities on sale were
reviewed based on consumer decision tree; the number of commodities
were reduced selectively, the commodities and commodity categories
that were lacking were replenished. The Group adjusted the display
of goods in stores according to the proportion of category sales and
the proportion of single commodity sales, continued to optimize the
commodity structure; strengthened live and fresh produce supply chain
construction, developed new vegetables bases, further strengthened
direct sourcing of fruits, enhanced the proportion of direct sourcing,
allowed consumers to obtain the freshest produce at cost-effective

prices, and maintained the competitiveness of the Group’s fresh produce.

Continuously improving the standard of marketing and

services

During the Reporting Period, focusing on satisfying customer demands,
the Group made efforts in refining themed displays throughout the year,
launched a variety of online and offline marketing activities, continuously
created excitement, released consumption vitality, and actively attracted
customers. The Group launched “Wechat service Group” at store level to
directly communicate with consumers in the surrounding communities in
a timely manner, combining offline key commodity display management
and consumer scenarios interactive reconstruction, created a shopping
scene with warmth, emotion and memory, offered customers with safe,
hygienic and pleasant shopping experience and created reasons for

customers to visit the store repeatedly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Increasing the capabilities of the stores for fulfilling online

orders

The Group continued to improve the online-to-home business
performance: implemented inventory sharing of fresh produce being
sold in-store and online, effectively solving the issue of shortage of
fresh produce sold online; selected stores in core business districts,
and extended online business hours as appropriate to satisfy the online
consumer demands in different time periods and regions; adjusted the
business performance indicators system, re-planned the picking zones
according to the actual situation of the stores, and improved the stores’
picking performance capacity; with intelligent technology, the system will
automatically identify the delivery service provider at the best price to

minimize the logistics cost.

Food safety management

Facing the new normal status of pandemic control and the uncertainty of
minor and frequent outbreaks, the Group continued to pay attention to
the COVID-19 development, stayed vigilant with food safety management,
and focused on strengthening disease control measures, high-risk
food management, commodity review process, supply chain source
management; took advantage of the testing room of the fresh food
distribution center, and cooperated with professional testing institutions
for fast inspection in warehouses to effectively ensure the safety of fruits
and vegetables in the business; strengthened the quality and safety
management of import process from channels, customs, wholesale,
transportation, distribution, to acceptance, and processing, storage, sales
and other aspects. The Group took food safety management measures
in the aspect of suppliers, origins, logistics and distribution and store
sales, to fill the food safety loopholes and protect the safety and health

of consumers with professionalism and quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Strengthening logistics security and increasing delivery

efficiency

During the Reporting Period, our two distribution centers strictly followed
the requirements for delivery in the normalization of pandemic control,
developed pandemic control system, transport system, emergency
response system etc, to fully secure the transport stability and emergency
responses. The normal temperature distribution center carefully carried out
the daily management of anti-pandemic materials storage and emergency
reserve zone, to secure the safety and supply of grains, fruits and
vegetables for Beijing; actively promoted the supplier automatic booking
system for delivery to fully realize automatic warehouse appointments
and enhanced delivery efficiency; utilized electronic locks to strengthen
the management of delivery vehicles in transit. Our fresh food distribution
center promotes the fresh food warehouse appointments, and currently,
all fruit and vegetable suppliers have been included in the warehouse
appointment scope, which effectively improved the timeliness and

accuracy of distribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience

stores, department stores and the gross profit margin is set out as follows:

BT Mo

TELEXE
TREVAEEEEAREY  HE

2% - @7
o AEBBNTEIERARENENHTE

For the 12 months ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLE+=@EA

Increase/
2021 2020 (Decrease)
—E-—F —E-THE #m, Cld)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
(Audited) (Audited)
(RE:T) (f&=Et)
Retail business TEEK:
Hypermarkets REH 888,404 1,161,619 (23.5%)
Supermarkets RERET 2,062,477 2,732,459 (24.5%)
Convenience stores EFIE 280,880 380,195 (26.1%)
Department stores BEES 12,202 13,165 (7.3%)
(including commissions) Hep : E2IRA 9,562 9,784 (2.3%)
Total retail principal operating income ZE&IF&EHKWAET 3,243,963 4,287,438 (24.3%)
Gross profit margin of directly-operated ~ HEAE% - fr& T REFE
hypermarkets, supermarkets and EME(%)
convenience stores (%) 17.4% 17.0% 0.4%
During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income of the HREHAREB T EXLK TS EBWATRY
Group decreased by approximately 24.3%, which was mainly attributable ~ 24.3% - T 28EER : (VREHN - LHBVEEBER

to (i) the weakened consumption expectations during the Reporting Period
due to the combined impact of the evolving situations of COVID-19 and
the economic downturn; (i) under the competitive environment created
by online channels such as group buying in the community and live
broadcasting, there was obvious customer diversion from the physical
stores. The above factors resulted in a decrease in customer flow and

a 22.9% decrease in same-store sales.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail business
(excluding department stores) increased slightly from approximately
17.0% in the corresponding period in 2020 to approximately 17.4% in

the Reporting Period, which remained stable.

BHERE  UREENTHEMNTE - HEBEY
a5 (i EEE  BRERSFELRENRETR
BT BEREHEES PR - FIRRERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Progressively optimizing the operating system

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to introduce new
suppliers according to changing consumer demands, adjusted the
commodity structure by adding new commodities; further strengthened
in-depth cooperation with the existing e-commerce platforms, and
explored newly emerging e-commerce channels, continued to strengthen
cooperation with large quality centralized procurement clients, and
expanded new sales channels; continued to actively expand our private
brands, and expand the commodity types and sales scale of our own
brands through autonomous development or cooperative customization,

in leisure foods, condiments, general merchandise and daily chemicals.

Steadily optimizing the development of logistics and

enhancing overall competence

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly implemented the normalized
epidemic prevention and control measures, enhanced coordination and
communication with governmental authorities and transport companies,
rationally allocated various livelihood materials, solved the impact of “time
and route restrictions” during the disease control period, enabled 24-hour
uninterrupted logistics and distribution services, and ensured stable supply
in the market; continued to improve the integration, standardization and
professional management level of logistics and distribution, and improved
the utilization efficiency of the existing warehouse by reasonably adjusting
the layout and configuration of commodities and sorting equipment in
the warehouse area of the existing logistics centers; upon installation
of equipment in the warehouse storage area, continued to promote
the construction project of an automated storage and retrieval system
logistics project in Fangshan, for the purpose of continuously enhancing
the core competitiveness of the Group by increasing the hardware level
of logistics and distribution facilities, and building a smart warehousing

and logistics system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

BT Mo
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For the 12 months ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HL+=M@A

2021 2020
—ED-F ZEDEF Increase/
RMB’000 RMB’000 (Decrease)
ARBTRT ARBTT #m, Cld)
(Audited) (Audited)
(#RE5T) (ge2E1)
(Restated)
€ s==))
Wholesale principal operating income AR EEERMB R TSR
recognized by Chaopi Group* A 7,185,388 7,098,380 1.2%
Less: Intersegment Sales W D EEIEE (343,532) (403,265) (14.8%)
Sales to franchisees $HE T INEEJE S 1,998 2,669 (25.1%)
Total wholesale principal operating B ETEERBAEGT
income 6,843,854 6,697,784 2.2%
Gross profit margin **(%) EMZE(%) 8.8% 7.8% 1.0%

Trading”) and its subsidiaries.

ke

intersegment sales.

Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi

This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Group including

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income

recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 2.2% and was

mainly due to: (i) expansion into emerging e-commerce sales channels

during the Reporting Period; (i) introduction of new distribution brands

and the private brand commaodities to generate sales growth.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of Chaopi Group was

8.8% as compared to 7.8% for the corresponding period last year, the

growth is mainly because of the continual adjustment to the commodity

structure to reduce the operation of commodity categories with low gross

margin contribution rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBRA
Gross profit EH

Gross profit margin (%) FEFE(%)
Earnings before interest and tax B ATAE
Net profit b=

Net profit margin(%) SFFEE(%)

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the — SREBR A RLEFIE
parent company

MERE

For the 12 months ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HL+=#@A

2021 2020
—E--F ZZTZEF Increase/
RMB’000 RMB’000 (Decrease)

ARETT ARETT #nCmd)
(Audited) (Audited)
(25 (58==E)

Net profit margin attributable to shareholders ~ (RBR A RIEFBEE (%)

of the parent company (%)

(Restated)

(FEE7)
10,100,312 11,000,471 (8.2%)
1,209,169 1,290,315 (6.3%)
12.0% 11.7% 0.3%
189,685 333,144 (43.1%)
10,944 82,803 (86.8%)
0.1% 0.8% (0.7%)
(22,474) 54,661 (141.1%)
(0.2%) 0.5% (0.7%)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
decreased by approximately 8.2%, of which retail principal operating
income decreased by approximately 24.3%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 2.2%.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group decreased by
approximately 6.3% compared with the last corresponding period. During

the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 12.0% (2020: 11.7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income mainly comprises income from promotional
activities, rental income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and

counters.

The Group’s other operating income decreased from RMB979,173,670
in 2020 to RMB956,243,332 for the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.3%, mainly due to the decrease in revenue
from promotional activities from suppliers resulting from the reduction of

promotional activities affected by COVID-19.

GAINS OR LOSSES ON CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

The gains or losses on changes in fair value only comprises of the gains
or losses on changes in the fair value of Wuliangye No.1 Fund products
subscribed by Chaopi Trading, a non-wholly subsidiary of the Company,
in April 2018.

During the Reporting Period, the loss on changes in fair value was
RMB25,559,594 as compared to the gain on changes in fair value in
RMB89,236,083 in 2020, representing a decrease of approximately

128.6%, which was mainly due to the mark-to-market effect.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, software service fee, packing

expenses, and advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s operating expenses were RMB1,610,843,878 during
the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 7.7%
compared to the corresponding period in 2020. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in advertising expenses and promotion

expenses as a result of such activities having been affected by COVID-19.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), entertainment

expense.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB283,285,515 in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 13.2% compared to the

corresponding period in 2020.

The increase was mainly because during the COVID-19 outbreak in the
corresponding period in 2020, the government reduced or exempted the
expenditure of pension insurance and unemployment insurance borne

by enterprises.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses decreased from RMB169,318,444 in
2020 to RMB144,828,379 in 2021. The main reasons for the reduction
are: (i) the domestic loan benchmark interest rate has been reduced and
the cost of loan funds obtained by the Group has decreased compared
to the last corresponding period; and (ii) the receivables recovered by

the Group increased and thus less funds were locked up.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s subsidiaries, Chaopi Maolisheng (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Maolisheng (Hong Kong)”) and Chaopi International Trading
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (“International Trading Hong Kong”) are companies
incorporated in Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong taxation law,

the relevant corporate income tax rate was 16.5%.

Except for Maolisheng (Hong Kong) and International Trading Hong Kong,
other members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a
rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from RMB80,079,106 in 2020 to
RMB32,394,925 in 2021, which was primarily due to the decrease of
taxable profits in 2021.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
decreased by approximately 141.1% from RMB54,660,554 in 2020
to RMB-22,474,226 in 2021. This was mainly due to: (i) the decrease
in gross profit by RMB81.146 million due to the decrease of principal
operating income, which is in turn resulted from the decrease in in-store
customer flow due to the changing and evolving COVID-19 pandemic
situations, and the increasing competition from the online sales channels
to the Group’s offline in-store sales; and (i) the decrease in the fair value
of the financial assets which have been held by the Company’s non-wholly
owned subsidiary since April 2018, in the amount of RMB25,559,594 for

the Reporting Period due to the mark-to-market effect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMB-0.05
for 2021, which was calculated on the basis of the number of 412,220,000
shares. The basic earnings per share for 2020 was RMBO0.13. The
decrease in earning per share was mainly due to the decrease of net

profit attributable to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations

through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and debentures.

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,995,109,476 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,184,924,768), and non-current liabilities of
RMB1,351,598,595 (comprising of bonds payable of RMB403,545,776).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current assets of
RMB4,846,982,996. The current assets mainly comprised of cash and
cash equivalents of RMB1,018,462,092, inventories of RMB1,618,527,017,
accounts receivable and notes receivable of RMB937,765,070 and
prepayments and other receivables of RMB990,621,411. The Group
had current liabilities of RMB4,423,720,333. Current liabilities mainly
comprised of accounts payable and notes payables of RMB1,207,669,387,
short-term borrowings of RMB2,381,030,839, contract liabilities of

RMB361,858,117 and other payables of RMB198,824,807.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank loans of RMB2,381,030,839,
which consisted of accounts receivable factored bank loans of
RMB5,775,305, unsecured bank loans of RMB2,291,953,954. In
terms of pledged loans, Chaopi Trading provided a pledge guarantee
to HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch with a time deposit
certificate of RMB20,980,702 under its name as security for the loan to
International Trading Hong Kong, a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, and
the loan amount obtained was USD 11,665,480, which was converted
into RMB74,375,600 at the exchange rate of USD1.0000 to RMB6.3757
on 31 December 2021, Chaopi Trading provided a pledge guarantee
to Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch with a time deposit
certificate of RMB14,050,000 under its name as security for the loan to
International Trading Hong Kong, a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, and
the loan amount obtained was USD1,400,000, which was converted into
RMB8,925,980 at the exchange rate of USD1.0000 to RMB6.3757 on
31 December 2021. All of the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates

ranging from 1.25% to 4.35%.

Certain margin deposits of the Group of RMB72,321,243 were pledged
for notes payable of RMB467,332,344 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
73.6%, which is slightly higher than that of 73.0% as at 31 December
2020.

*

Represented by: total debt/total asset

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in RMB.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 4,781 employees in the
PRC (31 December 2020: 5,300). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB724,005,881 (2020: RMB710,886,421).
The staff emolument (including directors and supervisors) of the Group
are based on position, duty, experience, performance, and market rates,

in order to maintain their remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in the
defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees operated
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The Group is
required to make contributions for those employees who are registered
as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 16% (2020: 16%) of the
employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances. The Group has no
further obligation associated with the said defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned annual contributions. The
Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes amounted to approximately RMB64,657,918 for the Reporting
Period (2020: RMB39,734,686).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings in various format
and topics for its employees to improve their skills and professional
knowledge. The Group held about 110 seminars during the year, and

all employees have benefited from them.

ACQUISITION OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED IN
HUAIROU DISTRICT, BEIJING CITY, THE PRC

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 23 December 2020
in relation to the Acquisition (as defined below) and the announcement of
the Company dated 11 January 2021 in relation to the voting results of
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 11 January

2021 (the “EGM”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 30 November 2020, Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial
Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with Beijing
Shoulian Commercial Group Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor”) pursuant to which
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, a property (the “Property”) located
at No. Bing 46, Kaifang Road, Huairou District, Beijing City, the PRC
at the total consideration (the “Consideration”) of RMB101,735,130
(the “Acquisition”). The Property has been leased by the Group from
the Vendor since January 2009 to carry out the Group’s supermarket

operation.

At the EGM, the resolution in relation to the approval of the Acquisition
was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, all
conditions precedent to the Acquisition were fulfilled and completion of
the Acquisition took place on 11 January 2021 and title transfer and
registration procedures in relation to the Property have been completed

on 6 January 2022.

CHANGE IN THE COMPOSITION OF CONNECTED
PERSONS AT THE ISSUER LEVEL

Given that the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District approved the transfer of 100%
of the equity interest of Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-owned Assets
Management Co., Ltd. (“Hongchao Weiye”) and Beijing Jin Chaoyang
State-owned Capital Operation Management Co., Ltd. (“Jin Chaoyang”),
respectively, to Beijing Chaofu State-owned Assets Administration
Company Limited (“Chaofu Company”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, for nil consideration (the “Gratuitous Transfer”), which
has completed, and following the completion of the Gratuitous Transfer,
Hongchao Weiye and Jin Chaoyang had completed the relevant business
registration procedures and thereafter each of them became a subsidiary
of Chaofu Company, hence connected persons of the Company. As a
result, certain continuing transactions under then existing leases with
Hongchao Weiye and Jin Chaoyang became connected transactions of
the Company. For further details, please refer to the announcement of

the Company dated 5 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In respect of the Acquisition, the title transfer and registration procedures
in relation to the Property have been completed on 6 January 2022.
For further details of the Acquisition, please refer to the section headed
“Acquisition of the Property Located in Huairou District, Beijing City, the
PRC” in this report.

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed in this report, no other
important events affecting the operation and financial performance of the

Group significantly have occurred since 31 December 2021.

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

In 2022, with effective control over the pandemic and the unremitting
efforts in economic recovery, the world economy and China’s economy are
rebounding amidst the fluctuations. However, the Group faces challenges
in terms of the potential accelerating economic downturn, weak tenacity,
accelerating population aging, and green transformation. The Group will
unite our efforts, seek for our original purpose, and constantly insist on

“goods + services” to build a trustworthy commercial brand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In retailing business, the Group as a traditional retailer is facing the
opportunities and challenges brought by the Internet, mobile internet,
artificial intelligence and other technological elements to corporate
upgrading and transformation. Although there are difficulties in sales
and profit due to client flow diversion, the Group clearly recognises that
we will continue to focus on goods and services, insist on retail business
nature, reshape our corporate culture centering on consumers, suppliers
and employees, and explore Jingkelong featured development path in
the era of digital economy; insist on the consumer-based marketing
strategy and operating philosophy, follow the theme of “consumer life
itinerary”, coordinate the internal marketing-procurement-operation-
delivery functions, to promote category management, tap consumer
demands, carry out “62-week marketing”, and re-attract consumers by
providing cost-effective, fresh, healthy goods and convenient, precise
and unique services; solidify our strategic partnership with suppliers,
reshape the stable, flexible, open and efficient supply chain system;
human-based, care for employees, establish the career growth platform
for our employees, cultivate their motivation and innovation capabilities,

and trigger the source of corporate development.

In wholesale business, the Group will focus on transformation and
upgrading, quality improvement and efficiency enhancement, deepen
in-depth cooperation with suppliers, steadily develop cross-border
e-commerce business, and continuously explore international markets;
continuously improves the logistics service capability for distribution
customers by improving the personalized customer service; expand sales
channels, develops new customer resources such as group purchase
and centralized procurement, and realize sustainable, high-quality and

healthy development.
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The Group recognizes the importance of a robust governance framework
to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the Company and
long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. In order to establish a
good corporate governance system to promote long-term and sustainable
corporate development, the Group has adopted the principles of the
Corporate Governance Code (effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Period”) (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with the objective of enhancing the quality of
corporate governance of the Group and the conduct of its business in
a fair, transparent and ethical way. This corporate governance report
describes the corporate governance practices of the Group and explains

the applications of the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Company regularly reviews its organizational structure and formulates
relevant business plans and strategies based on corporate culture such
as corporate mission, development objectives, business philosophy and
corporate values to ensure that its operations comply with good corporate
governance practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
integrate with the enterprise culture to make the system and policy to

be carried out.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles of
and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’ retirement by

rotation as explained below.
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Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
every director (including those appointed for a specific term) of a listed
issuer shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulate that each
director shall be elected by the general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and be eligible for re-election upon
the expiry of the term. Having taken into account the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles of
Association contain no express provision for the director’s retirement
by rotation and thus deviate from the aforementioned provision of the

Corporate Governance Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All the directors with whom specific
enquiries have been made confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and code of
conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout the Reporting

Period.
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THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for safeguarding
the best interest of the Group and accountable to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). Matters that are required to be
determined or considered by the Board include overall group strategies
of the Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and other
substantial operational and financial matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s management
include the preparation of financial accounts for the Board’s approval,
execution of business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board,
implementation of an adequate system of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with the relevant statutory

requirements, rules and regulations.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2018 annual general
meeting (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”) held on 24 May 2019, each
of Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Ms. Zhang Yan,
Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward
has been re-elected as a director, and Mr. Zhang Liwei has been elected
as an executive director of the Company, the said directors (including all
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) were
appointed for a three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end
of the annual general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2021

(the “2021 Annual General Meeting”).

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 30 October 2020 (the “EGM”), Following
the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at
the EGM, Mr. Shang Yongtian has ceased to be an executive director
of the Company, Mr. Li Shenlin has been appointed as an executive
director for the term from the conclusion of the EGM to the conclusion

of the 2021 Annual General Meeting.
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Mr. Li Jianwen has resigned from his positions as the chairman of the
Board, a member of the nomination committee of the Board and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Board, and has been
re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director,
with effect from 8 November 2021. Meanwhile, since 8 November 2021,
Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the chairman of the Board, a
member of the nomination committee of the Board and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board. Accordingly, the Board currently
consists of three executive directors (Mr. Zhang Liwei, Ms. Li Chunyan and
Mr. Li Shenlin), three non-executive directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Zhang
Yan and Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors
(Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Zhang
Liwei serving as the chairman of the board. All of the directors (including
the non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
have fulfilled their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting
Period. The term of engagement of all the current directors (including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) will

expire upon the conclusion of 2021 Annual General Meeting.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.
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Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Li Shenlin does not receive a director’s fee,
but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company. Each of them
is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary, a performance based bonus (to
be determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results)
and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salaries for each of the
forthcoming term shall be approved by the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the Board. The chairman
of the Board is entitled to remuneration (including an annual basic
salary and a performance-based bonus to be determined by reference
to the Company’s annual financial results, granted and approved by
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the Beijing Chaoyang District Government), and other allowance and
benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations. The
non-executive directors will not receive any remuneration. Mr. Choi
Onward, an independent non-executive director is entitled to receive a
fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive). Each of
the other two independent non-executive directors is entitled to receive
a fixed director’'s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive). The
aforesaid remunerations of the directors of the Company have been
considered and approved by an ordinary resolution passed at the 2018

Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having
at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.
Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met the requirement of
having at least one independent non-executive director (Mr. Choi Onward)
who has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received
from each of the three independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation in respect of their independence. The Company is of the
opinion that all the independent non-executive directors are independent

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Reasonable notice periods and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decisions in relation to matters to be discussed.
All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda
of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to inspect all relevant

corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 90 to 93of

this annual report.

Mr. Zhang Liwei, acting as the chairman (appointed as the chairman of
the board of the Company since 8 November 2021) and executive director

of the Company, is responsible for operation of the Board.

The general manager of the Company is responsible for daily business
development and management of the Company. Mr. Zhang Liwei had
been the general manager of the Company with effect from 28 July 2020
and ceased to be the general manager with effect from 8 November
2021. The Company is in the course of identifying a suitable candidate

as the new general manager.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Li Shenlin,
are responsible for the financial affairs, construction and security of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover potential
legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code provision,
the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the

directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate activities.
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The Group has bought liability insurance for Directors and senior executives

in respect of legal actions against such Directors and senior executives.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company understands deeply the benefits and value that diversity
brings to the enterprises, and ensures the view that a diverse board, is
the only way to effective governance and one of the key factors of an
effective board of directors. Therefore, the Company is committed to
implementing the policy of diversity.

The Company’s board diversity policies include: “The Policy of the
Diversity of the Members of the Board”was adopted by the Board and
in considering and reviewing board composition, both the Nomination
Committee and the Board will consider the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including the age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience,
expertise, professional and educational qualifications, background and
other personal qualities of the directors. While the final decisions of
appointment of directors would be based on the candidates’ expertise
and contributions expected to bring to the board, considerable weight
would be given to ensuring a diverse board with balanced composition.
The Company would review its diversity policy annually to ensure that it
is in line with the Company’s actual development and needs and reflects

regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practices.
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The diversity of the board of directors is not only reflected in the gender of
directors, but also in skills, age, experience and educational background.
The ratio of male to female board members was 7:2 during the Reporting
Period, women directors made up to 22 percent of all board members.
The average age of directors is about 55, among which two are under
45 years old, accounting for about 22%, four aged between 45 and
60, accounting for about 45%, three are over 60, accounting for about
33%. Two directors have obtained doctoral degrees, two directors are
members of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and Mr.
Choi Onward, an independent non-executive Director, is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board
possesses professional experience in retail, finance and accounting, law,

operating, marketing, management and human resources.

INDEPENDENCE POLICY

The Company deeply understands the importance of the independence
of independent non-executive Directors in order to improve operating
efficiency, promote the consistency of interests of shareholders and
management, ensure the good development of the enterprise, and
supervise and safeguard the interests of the enterprise. In order to ensure
that the independent non-executive Directors can perform their duties
fairly, honestly and diligently, and propose to play an independent and
objective supervisory role in the operation and development of enterprise,
the Company has three independent non-executive Directors among
the nine Board members, accounting for one third of the total Board
members, in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors. The
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are chaired by the independent non-executive Directors. The independent
non-executive Directors made up two-thirds of the Nomination Committee

and Remuneration Committee.
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In order to ensure the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the right to nominate independent non-executive Directors
is enjoyed by the Nomination Committee. In addition, in setting the
remuneration of independent non-executive Directors, full consideration
is given to the impact on independence and the need for incentives.
Independent non-executive Directors are entitled to receive directors’
remuneration. In order to maintain the independence and objectivity of
decision-making of independent non-executive directors, independent
non-executive Directors shall not be entitled to any remuneration for
equity interests (such as share options or share awards). The Board
reviews the independence policy annually to ensure it is appropriate for

the development of the business.

The Company notes that the Corporate Governance Code relates the term
limit of an independent non-executive director to his independence and
makes it clear that if an independent non-executive director has been in
office for more than nine years, the Company must explain to shareholders
the reason why the Board (or Nomination Committee) considers that
the director is still independent or should be re-elected. When the
Company evaluates the independence of non-executive Directors, for the
independent non-executive Directors whose have been in office for more
than nine years. The Board and the Nomination Committee will consider
their contributions to the Board during their service period and whether
they can independently, objectively and impartially express their views and
put forward constructive suggestions at meetings. The Board believes
that long service does not necessarily mean that their independence
will be limited, but to some extent, it shows that they have an in-depth
understanding of the Company and are aware of the challenges the
Company is facing, and it is of great help to the long-term goals and
strategies of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
will make recommendations on whether to renew the appointment
after considering the candidates’ contributions to the Board, their own
aspirations, professional and professional background, their fit with the

Company’s development and strategic goals and other factors.
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MEETINGS

During the Reporting Period, seven Board meetings (not including written
Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the directors

attending such meetings in person are set out below:
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Executive Directors HITE

Mr. Zhang Liwei (Chairman)* RBEGRE(EER)"
Mr. Li Jianwen ** TEXSE
Ms. Li Chunyan FEMLL

Mr. Li Shenlin* FIEMEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Li Jianwen ** TR SE
Ms. Zhang Yan REZ T

Mr. Li Shunxiang FErE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUKHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRESE

Mr. Chen Liping PR A

Mr. Wang Liping FRFERAE

* Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the chairman of the Board with
effect from 8 November 2021.

** Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to be the chairman of the Board and has been re-
designated from an executive director to a non-executive director, with effect
from 8 November 2021.

Hke

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE EERE

/7
6/6
77
/7

1/1
/7
/7

77
7/7
/7
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT THE GENERAL
MEETINGS

During the Reporting Period, three general meetings, which were two
extraordinary general meeting and an annual general meeting, were held
and the attendance records of the directors attending such meeting in

person are set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhang Liwei (Chairman)* RMBEE(EFR)"
Mr. Li Jianwen** FRX
Ms. Li Chunyan FERUL

Mr. Li Shenlin FIEMEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Li Jianwen** TEN A
Ms. Zhang Yan sREX T

Mr. Li Shunxiang FERE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BEREEAE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI SE A

Mr. Wang Liping F A A

* Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the chairman of the Board with

effect from 8 November 2021.

- Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to be the chairman of the Board and has been re-
designated from an executive director to a non-executive director, with effect
from 8 November 2021.

During the Reporting Period, in order to be responsible to shareholders,
respond to shareholders’ questions and inquiries about their work,
and fulfill the responsibilities of directors, all Directors attended the

shareholders’ meetings, with the attendance rate of 100%.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged to
attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards continuous professional development training.
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated in in-house
training courses and workshops in respect of corporate governance
and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and responsibilities,
the relevant directors have participated in appropriate continuous
development activities. All the directors have provided a record of the

training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the management of the Company also provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect
of the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
development in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional development

programs in 2021 is recorded in the table below.
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Executive Directors HITES
Mr.Zhang Liwei (Chairman)* RMBEE(FER)"
Ms. Li Chunyan FERLL

Mr. Li Shenlin FIEMEE
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Li Jianwen** PR
Ms. Zhang Yan REX LT

Mr. Li Shunxiang FIERE S
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BEREEE

Mr. Chen Liping PR A

Mr. Wang Liping FHFEAE

* Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the chairman of the Board with
effect from 8 November 2021.

> Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to be the chairman of the Board and has been re-
designated from an executive director to a non-executive director, with effect

from 8 November 2021.
CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company
are two clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the
effective operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge
of the Group’s daily business development and management. Due to his
age and work arrangement, Mr. Li Jianwen resigned from his positions
as the chairman of the Board with effect from 8 November 2021. Mr.
Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the chairman of the Board and
resigned from the position of the general manager of the Company due
to work arrangement with effect from 8 November 2021. The Company
is in the course of identifying a suitable candidate as the new general
manager of the Company. The Company’s Articles of Association set
out the respective duties and powers of the chairman and the general

manager in detail.
BOARD COMMITTEES

There are currently three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, to assist the

Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the sixth session
of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly consists of
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward who was
appointed as the chairman and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping

who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
provides an important link between the Board and the external auditors
in matters falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is
responsible for the review of financial information of the Company, the
oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external audit, internal
controls and risk evaluation, and provides comments and suggestions

to the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to develop
and review the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the directors and employees; and to review
the compliance by the Company with the Corporate Governance Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL At S/ 2
TEEARE

EREES

RIER2019F5 A24BMBMEEEZRE - A2
AN ENEBEEEVEREEY  AEHBEY
FERITERMER - IRLFREREERE - TF

REZESREGSEFEENRTAR(EEER
ADSTRAMENETY - ERZ B ASEZHE
BERMFRERERESS BN R 2 MR
E2HRE  AEFNAKENMBER  EEX
REWP AR E R AR - TEES
FETHOEERRE  BESRMHIBEE - K
MEs REARFENERE XRAEEGRHE
Rz -

4 B

BERZESRBESSNRE  RI(EEERT
AEDIVERNMRE - BITEEXERRE - 81

BT R R AR EREARRRER - LA
EReRbES  RIREEENEERERER
ABMBIIEBEEXRE R RERARAE
BTEEREERETEOBRELER - HIFT -
B REREENEFENRTEIRA R TM(L
B kiR ARREKEEERTADNERR
EEEEAMEANNKE °

2021 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REAEE

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2020 annual
report and the 2021 quarterly and interim results, and discussing relevant
matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans of 2021 and
corporate governance. The attendance records of the members of the

Audit Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (Chairman) BB RE(FE)
Mr. Chen Liping PR A
Mr. Wang Liping FHRFEA

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee had

performed the following work:

1. Reviewed annual and interim financial statements and the related
results announcements, documents and other matters or issues

raised by external auditors;

2. Reviewed the findings of external auditors; Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) has been the auditor of
the Company during the Reporting Period, and the Board agreed
to propose the appointment of the auditors recommended by the

Audit Committee;

3. Reviewed the independence of the external auditors and the

engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4.  Reviewed and supervised financial reporting and risk management

and internal control systems of the Group;

5. Reviewed annual audit plan of the Group;
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6. Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report of the Group; and

7. Other governance functions granted by the Board.

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee shall be kept by Secretary to

the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2021 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal

control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24
May 2019, the remuneration committee of the sixth session of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) was established, in which Mr.
Wang Liping (an independent non-executive Director) was appointed as
the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive Director) and Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive Director) were both appointed
as members. Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting
held on 8 November 2021, Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to the member of the
Remuneration Committee, and Mr. Zhang Liwei (an executive Director)

appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in line
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for the Directors’
and senior management of the Company, and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for determining remuneration policies;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. In accordance
with the code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Remuneration Committee has been delegated with responsibilities by
the Board, and is responsible for determining the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, and to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held for discussing and considering the remuneration of the
Company’s chairman, general manager and deputy general manager.
The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee

attending such meeting in person are set out below:

Mr. Wang Liping (Chairman) FRFEE(ERE)

Mr. Chen Liping PR S A
Mr. Li Jianwen* E3- Sty
Mr. Zhang Liwei** SRAZ(Z A

* Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to be the member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 8 November 2021.

* Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the member of the Remuneration

Committee with effect from 8 November 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee

had performed the following work:
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Determined the remuneration of the Company’s chairman, general

manager and deputy general manager.

As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration of senior management of

the Company by band is as follows:

Remuneration band (RMB/month) AR (AR T)

0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000

Minutes of meetings of Remuneration Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24
May 2019, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
of the sixth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive Director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive Director) and Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive Director) were both appointed
as members. Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting
held on 8 November 2021, Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to the member of
the Nomination Committee, and Mr. Zhang Liwei (an executive Director)

appointed as the member of the Nomination Committee.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates
for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments, reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
(in particular the chairman of the Board and the general manager) for
directors. The Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board was adopted
by the Board pursuant to which all the nominations of any member of
the Board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy by
taking into account certain objective criteria (including without limitation,
the gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and having due

regard to the benefits of a diversified Board.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Nomination Committee
had been held for discussing and recommending the candidates for the
election/appointment of the chairman of the Company, discussing and
recommending candidate for the election/appointment of director(s),
reviewing relevant matters including the structure and composition of
the Board of the Company and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The attendance records of the
members of the Nomination Committee attending such meetings in

person are set out below:
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Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

. Chen Liping (Chairman) PR FSRE ()
. Wang Liping FERTF A

. Li Jianwen* 3=

. Zhang Liwei** RIE A

Mr. Li Jianwen ceased to be the member of the Nomination Committee,
with effect from 8 November 2021.

Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as the member of the Nomination

Committee with effect from 8 November 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee had

performed the following work:

Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
and proposed suggestions on changes of the Board according
to development strategy of the Group. Nomination Criteria: the
Nomination Committee assessed the current structure of the Board
from diversification policies on the size and composition, skKills,
knowledge, experience and other respects of its members and
compared it with listed companies in the same industry. Nomination
Procedure: the Nomination Committee provides the information
about the candidates and makes recommendation to the Board. The
Board consider the recommendations of the Nomination Committee
and appoint if appropriate or submit to the general meeting of
shareholders for election or re-election in due course. Shareholders
vote at a general meeting to elect or re-elect of directors. As for
the current structure of the Board, the composition conforms to
the Company’s business development and each director has the
required skills and experience, diversified opinions and perspectives;
the combination of executive directors, non-executive directors,
and independent non-executive directors are also kept in balance.
Among the three independent non-executive directors, one is a
professional accountant with accounting management experience.
Each director has sufficient experience and the ability necessary
to fulfill his duties, regularly checks the Company’s business and
financial position, and participates in the training on directors’

continuing professional development.
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2.  Reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors: each independent non-executive director
should sign written confirmation the Company that none of the
conditions in paragraph 3.13 of the Listing Rules existed. If there
are any questions, the independent non-executive Directors should

promptly inform the Company.

3. Adopted the Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board and took
various factors into consideration, including educational background,

age, knowledge, skills etc., when making relevant nominations.
4. Reviewed candidates for the chairman of the Company.

Minutes of meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board of Directors.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee of the Company
(the “Supervisory Committee”) consists of two shareholder-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu and Mr. Yang Baoqun), two independent
supervisors (Mr. Chen Zhong and Mr. Wang Deshan) (pursuant to the
ordinary resolution passed at the second extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 26 March 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased to
the supervisor of the Company, and Mr. Wang Deshan appointed as a
supervisor of the Company) and two staff-appointed supervisors (Ms.
Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves as the chairman

of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the auditing
process. It receives letter from the auditors confirming their independence
and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the auditors to
consider the scope of their audit, approve their fees, and the scope and

appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by them.

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) (X
HEEAMEBEER L EAE) (“Da Hua”) has been appointed as the
auditors of the Company for the period from the conclusion of the
2020 annual general meeting of the Company to the conclusion of the
2021 annual general meeting of the Company. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company agreed to pay Da Hua RMB900,000
as the 2021 auditing fees and RMB400,000 for non-audit services in
respect of reviewing the Group’s 2021 interim financial statements.
Da Hua also undertook the audits of the subsidiaries of the Group for
the year 2021, and accordingly, the total audit expenses paid by the
Group is disclosed in note (VI) 41 on page 312 of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 133 to 143

of this annual report.
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DISCLOUSURE OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group publishes quarterly results so that
shareholders and investors can keep abreast of the group’s operating

performance, financial position and prospect.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group is keenly aware that effective risk management is an essential
underpinning of the group’s progress towards good corporate governance.
To ensure and promote effective risk management, the Group has
established a clear governance structure, policies and procedures as

well as a notification mechanism.

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
system, determining risk factors and assessing risk tolerance. Collaborative
the Management to complete risk management of the Group, the Board
has the responsibility to review the effectiveness of risk management
system, Management is responsible for the designing and implementing
the system of internal control in order to maximize the management risk,
identify and manage these risks, which can reduce, soothing, transfer, or
avoid those risks. The Board elaborates on the above risk management
and internal control system to make clear that it aims to manage risks
rather than eliminate the risks leading to failure of achieving business
objectives. Thus, the system can only make reasonable, rather than

absolute, guarantee against material misrepresentation or loss.

Risk management structure

The risk management structure is composed of the Board, the Audit
Committee,, internal control department and the leading group for the

construction of the rule of law.

The Board undertakes the responsibility of continuous supervision of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group. It will annually

review the effectiveness of the system through the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in its supervision of the Group’s
financial, operational, risk management (including environmental, social
and governance risks as set out in the guidelines on Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules)

and internal controls, as well as financial and internal audit functions.

The Group has been established the Internal Control Department, which,
assists the Board and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control of the
Group, recognizing shortcomings of the design and operation of internal
control and proposing suitable improvement suggestions. If major risks
or serious internal control mistakes are discovered, the Internal Control
Department should report to the Audit Committee and the Board in a
timely manner, and it should make correction plans and identify the

responsible persons, and follow up to ensure improvement in the situation.

The Group has established a leading group for the construction of the
rule of law in 2020. The group is mainly responsible for coordinating and
deploying the construction of the rule of law in the corporate, studying
and formulating relevant systems to promote the rule of law, guid and
advancing the construction of the Group’s legal risk prevention, and
comprehensively improving the level of legal construction in operation

and management of the Group.

Each functional departments are responsible for executing risk
management procedures and internal control measures in daily operation
and management, and report the risks within their operation and functions

to the management.

The management assists the Board in implementing policies and
procedures related to risks and control to identify and evaluate risks
faced. In addition, it participates in the design, operation and supervision

of suitable internal control measures to minimize and control those risks.
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The Group makes legal decisions on major decisions, important personnel
appointment and removal, major project arrangement and large amount
of capital operation according to the system established by the Board,
S0 as to further standardize decision-making behavior, improve decision-

making level and prevent decision-making risks.

The Group has formulated and adopted a “Legal Risk Management and
Reporting System”, to provide effective policies in identifying, evaluating
and managing major legal risks. The risk management group identify the
risks affecting the Group’s business objectives at least once annually,
and make risk mitigation plans and designate certain persons to address

these risks through standard evaluation and ranking mechanism.

In order to strengthen the internal control and management of enterprises,
realize the regular inspection and supervision of the implementation of
important systems and key links of enterprises, ensure the standard
and orderly operation of all work, prevent enterprise risks and improve
the supervision mechanism, In May 2021, the Group formulated “The
Supervision and Inspection Measures on the Implementation of Important
Systems and Key Procedure of Enterprises” to realize regular supervision
and inspection through special, regular and random inspections on the

implementation of important systems and the operation of key procedure.
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Risk management procedure

All functional departments are responsible for streamlining their business
process. They should recognize and evaluate the risks within their
business and propose and implement risk management solutions. Each
Functional departments shall also report to the management on an annual
basis the significant risks identified in the risk management process, so
that the management can organize the risk information and submit it to
the Audit committee for further identification, evaluation and discussion
of control measures. Each functional departments should identify and
evaluate financial risks and other risks in aspects such as investment
audit, financial management, legal compliance etc., according to their
business characteristics, forming a regular risk evaluation mechanism.
They should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in the operation
and development, and track and monitor the risk trend changes and their

control progress and effectiveness in a timely manner.

The Audit Committee annually inspect and discuss possible risks and
major strategic risks that may have significant impact on the future of
the Group, and review the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control system.

Conducting comprehensive risk evaluation and assessment before major
events such as stock acquisition and major asset sales can effectively

control business risks.

Conducting annual risk review can institutionalize and standardize internal

control.

Internal control

The Internal Control Department annually evaluates and reviews the internal
control and risk management system, and evaluates the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control and risk management system from
perspectives of controlling environment, risk assessment, internal control

activity, monitoring measure as well as information and communication.
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The Company established an organizational structure with clear-cut
responsibilities and specific reporting procedures, the Group defines
clearly the powers, rights and liabilities of all business and operation
departments, and ensures the effective check and balance through

approval and review procedures.

The Company also conducts internal control through comprehensive
budget management, management of new and additional budget,
financial reporting and analysis and business and operation analysis
meetings. In particular, the Company can recognize risks, and monitor
implementation of correction measures through data mining, collection

and comparison.

Control environment

The Company focuses on institutionalization and standardization
construction, and regularly clarifies, revises and optimizes business
procedures and regulations. In particular, the Company improves relevant
systems to address new problems emerging in risk management in a
timely manner, strengthens training and education of relevant procedures,
and achieves management objectives through implementing various

procedures and systems.

Risk assessment

The Internal Control Department regularly clarifies and recognizes
systematic risks; relevant functional departments recognize and evaluate
business risks within their responsibilities, and they recognize, evaluate
and analyze risks in finance and other fields from such perspectives
as investment examination and approval, financial management, laws
and regulations, and form a regular risk evaluation mechanism. They
should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in the operation and

development.

Supervision measures

The Audit Commitment continue to conduct regular internal compliance

inspection and risk management and internal control review.
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The securities and legal department, the external legal professional
team, the audit team, and the company secretary ensure observation
of the Listing Rules and supervise compliance of applicable laws and

regulations.

The Internal Control Department independently reviews risk management
and internal control.The supervision and inspection methods for the

implementation of important systems and key links have been established.

Information and communication

The Company continuously develops and maintains information
management systems, including Store MIS System, Logistics Management
System, Human Resources Management System, Financial Management
System, Fixed Assets Management System, Capital Management System,
to support the business, operation, financial reporting and information

disclosure of the Group.

Timely communication and exchange can be achieved through the

intranet, OA Office System and the Email system.

Shareholders can acquire the Company’s information through the

Company’s official website and the investor relations department.

Internal audit

The Internal Control Department annually makes internal audit priorities
and internal audit plans according to corporate strategy, operation and
management needs and annual work plan of the Company. Matters of

internal audit include the following:
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Audit types
g

Enterprise management system audit

EEEBRET
Corporate operation audit

EEZREET
Economic responsibility audit
OERFERT
Post-evaluation audit

‘EHERA

Audit contents
AR

Verify the quality, energy and carbon emission management systems to ensure
that they meet the standard requirements and are effectively implemented
HEE R MPFHEERERETRE  MREAMRFEZRIBEUER
The assessment and improvement of important components in corporate
operation

Hi¥EgLRRPNESRANNTEREE

Term and departure performance audit of outgoing heads of business units
EBE IR E AR RKETRESE  EHE

Comprehensive post-evaluation on investment and economic benefits after
completion of projects

REHEB T E - HEHKE REBER G SETREANETE

BEABREERABEZRASNERNY

Review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system
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According to the above risk management and internal control system, the
Internal Control Department conducts regular review (one to three months)
and reports from three aspects, namely risk management, internal control
and internal audit. After discovering shortcomings of internal control, the
Internal Control Department will communicate with relevant functional
departments in a timely manner, and propose correction measures
and improve regulations and procedures after discussion with the
management. The Internal Control Department regularly (one to three
months) reports the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control system to the Audit Committee.
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In 2021, the Audit Committee and the Internal Control Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system, including
finance, operation and compliance control, with a focus on the formulation
and implementation of internal control system in areas including major
decisions, major projects, major personnel appointment and removal,
whether the operation of large amount of funds has fulfilled the collective
decision-making and approval procedure, asset management, financial
management, contract management, budget management; all functional
departments streamlined and optimized business procedures, discovered
and assessed risks within their business scope, and controlled risks
through standardization of risk control construction. The annual review
included Group resources in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting, whether employees have sufficient qualifications and experience,
and whether staff training courses and their respective budget related
are sufficient. The Audit Committee and the Board discovered no major
internal control shortcoming that could pose serious impact on the
financial position and operation performance of the Group. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group and holds the opinion that the risk management and
internal control is adequate and effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of the annual report and financial report, and it
can fully safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, employees

as well as the assets of the Group.

Management of major risks

During the Reporting Period, the main risks faced by the Group have
not changed significantly, and the Group is aware that the changes in
the market environment, the impact of COVID-19, the risk of corruption,
the competitiveness of products and services, and third-party risks are

the main risks that the Group needs to deal with.
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The Group is aware that the real economy has been affected by
consumption habits and the epidemic, which has impacted the group’s
offline store sales. In order to reduce the risks of the market environment,
the Group implements a diversified strategy in terms of sales channels
and markets, customers and commodities, and according to the latest
development trend, the Group further developed the online industry,
accelerated the integration of online and offline, to satisfy the change

in consumer tastes.

Since 2019, COVID-19 has been affecting the production and operation
of enterprises and people’s lives. In accordance with the requirements of
the government to normalize the management of epidemic prevention,
the Group has adjusted the commodity mix and paid attention to the
procurement and supply of epidemic prevention and personal care
commodities to meet the needs of consumers for epidemic prevention.
At the same time, care for the health and safety of employees, formulate
measures to ensure the safety of employees, and work together with

employees to overcome the COVID-19 crisis.

The Group has always been committed to maintaining a high level of
business ethics through a robust internal monitoring and controlling
system. In order to prevent the risk of clean government, the Group
has established a sound clean government management system and
opened a variety of reporting channels to collect or find improper
behaviors through analysis, so as to avoid or reduce the possibility of

clean government risks.

The Group is deeply aware that, as a member in the wholesale and retail
industry, in order to survive in the increasingly competitive environment, it is
necessary to return to the nature of business, focused on the commodities
and services, provided commodities that can satisfy consumer need
through diversified marketing means and humanized service methods,
improve customer loyality and stickness, and continuously enhance the

core competitiveness of enterprises.
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Procedures and internal control measures of treatment and

disclosure of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbors as provided in the SFO. The
Group has developed a management system for information disclosure
to urge relevant person to complete information disclosure according to

law and regulations.

The Board manages inside information of the Company. The chairman of
the Board is the principal of inside information management. The chairman
of the Board and other Directors are responsible for management and
disclosure of inside information. The Company requires that all departments
and individuals should keep all inside information confidential, and no one
is allowed to disclose and report any content related to inside information
without permission of the Board. If the Board decides to disclose inside
information (if necessary), the information disclosure of inside information

should be undertaken by the securities and legal department.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of a material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Xuemin, an employee of the Company, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 30 November 2021 (Mr. Li Bo
ceased to be the company secretary since 30 November 2021). The
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules were
fulfilled. Meanwhile, Ms. Pan Xuemin has been appointed as the secretary
of the board of directors of the Company since 24 August 2016. She
has been responsible for the work of the board of directors and is
familiar with the procedures of the Board Meeting (including meeting
planning, agenda and motion preparation, meeting minutes, preparation
and preservation of meeting materials, etc.). In order to ensure a good
channel of communication and information exchange between the
Board and the committees, the Company Secretary shall ensure that
information flows smoothly within the Board and complies with board
policies and procedures; It also makes requests and recommendations
to the Board on compliance and governance matters to facilitate the
appointment of directors and supervise their training and continuing
professional development. She has attained not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the Reporting Period. Her biography
is set out in the “Profiles of Directors, Supervisor and Senior Management”

section of this annual report.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

As disclosed in the notice issued by the Company on 5 March 2021, in
order to meet the needs of the company’s development and changes
in basic industrial and commercial information, the Board proposes to
add the item of “Internet information Service” to the “Business scope”
in Article 12 of the Articles of Association. The resolution relating to the
above amendments was voted through at the extraordinary General
meeting of shareholders on 26 March 2021. The Articles of Association

of the Company have been amended accordingly.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where
shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the Company’s
issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote request(s) in
writing for the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, the Board

shall convene an extraordinary general meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying the
right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose new motions
to the general meeting by submitting the same to the convener in writing.
The Company shall include in the agenda for the meeting the matters
in the motions that fall within the scope of duties of the shareholders’

general meeting.

The above eligible shareholders may at any time deliver their proposals to
the Secretariat of the Board of Directors of the Company at Room, 327,

3rd Floor, Block No.45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC.
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Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting:
(1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more (including 10%)
of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting proposed to be held
for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or more written request(s),
the form and substance of which are the same, to propose to the Board
for holding an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall
list out clearly the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Board shall,
upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene the extraordinary
general meeting or the class general meeting as soon as possible. The
shareholdings mentioned above shall be calculated on the date when the
shareholders make such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve
a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote at
the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or
more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the same,
to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding an extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of
the meeting in the request. The Supervisory Committee shall, upon receipt
of the aforesaid written request, convene and preside the extraordinary
general meeting or the class meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the
Supervisory Committee does not serve a notice of such meeting within
30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, the shareholders
making such request may convene the meeting by themselves within
two months upon receipt of the request by the Supervisory Committee,
and the procedures for convening such meeting shall be as similar to
those for convening a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any
reasonable cost incurred in connection with the convening and holding
of the meeting by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure
on the part of the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such
meeting as required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall
be deducted from the amount due to the directors and supervisors of

the Company who are in default.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy with the aims to set out the general
principles and guidelines that the Company intend to apply in relation
to the payment of dividend to the Shareholders. The Board has full
discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders, and
any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the approval by
the Shareholder in the annual general meeting. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account of the following factors
such as the Group’s financial results, financial position, liquidity position,
expected future operations and earnings, capital requirements, interests
of the Shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends and any
other factors the Board may consider relevant. Meanwhile, any payment
of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under
the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association of the Company

and all applicable laws and regulations.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhering to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclosing the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements and shareholders’ circulars on the
websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules; on the Group’s
website, investors can enquire about the Group’s basic information,
public announcements and other the information since the Company
became listed, including annual reports, interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive information, circulars, announcements
and notices. All the information above is available in the “Investor

Relations” section on the Company’s website;
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arranging general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and its

shareholders;

the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is responsible
for liaising with investors and analysts by answering their questions,
organizing field trips to the stores and distribution centers of the
Group, and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments
from analysts and investors on the operation of the Group, and

selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation; and

communicating actively with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one meetings with

institutional investors upon the announcement of results and material

investments.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares held by the senior

management of the Group is as follows:
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Total number of
domestic shares

Name Capacity held
FEERER

H®E 54 R

Zhang Hongbo Personal 100,000

SRADR fELA

Wang Hong Personal 186,696

Tar fEA

Pan Xuemin Personal 30,000

BB (EPN
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The details of the classes of shareholders and the number of total shares

are as follows:

The Group issued a total of 412,220,000 shares of domestic shares
and H shares respectively:

Domestic shares: 230,060,000

H shares: 182,160,000

On 11 January 2021, the Company held the extraordinary general meeting
to consider a major transaction in relation to acquisition of property (for
details, please refer to the circular of the Company’s extraordinary general
meeting dated 23 December 2021). The resolution as mentioned above

have been duly passed.

On 26 March 2021, the Company held the second extraordinary general
meeting in 2021 to consider the election of supervisor and amendment
articles of association (for details, please refer to the circular of the
second extraordinary general meeting in 2021 dated 5 May 2021). The

resolutions as mentioned above have been duly passed.

On 21 May 2021, the Company held the 2020 Annual General Meeting
to consider issuance of shares, repurchase of shares, issuance of short
term debentures and other resolutions (for details, please refer to the
circular of the Company’s annual general meeting dated 21 April 2021).
Except for the repurchase of shares, the other resolutions as mentioned
above have been duly passed.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and input sincerely.
Shareholders may, at any time, send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 5 of this annual report.
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The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the

B35

audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

The business review, major risks, performance analysis using financial
key performance indicators and future prospects of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the particulars of events affecting
the Group which has occurred since 31 December 2021 are set out in
Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 11, the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 12 to 29 and the Corporate Governance Report

on pages 30 to 67 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

In 2021, the Group has faced great challenges. The repeated epidemic,
the impact of e-commerce on the real economy and the change of
consumers’ consumption patterns all put our development to a great
test. During the Reporting Period, the Group paid close attention to the
development trend of the epidemic, actively responded to the call of the
government and all sectors of society, and did a good job in the supply and
response of anti-epidemic materials during the epidemic, practicing the
responsibility of state-owned enterprises. At the same time, strictly abide
by the government’s epidemic prevention policy, the staff of Jingkelong
and the Group fight against the epidemic side by side, stick to their
posts, to ensure that consumers can get sustained and stable supplies
and contribute to a small contribution. In addition, the Group is aware
that suppliers also have an important impact on the quality, timeliness
and cost of commodities, so the Group has formulated a management
and assessment system for suppliers and their commodities, to assess
and evaluate the suppliers and their commodities and services, so as
to ensure operational efficiency.Detail information on the ESG practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report on pages 97 to 132 of this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and

operation of the Company.

The Company persists in governing, operating and managing in accordance
with law and drew out a 2021 annual work plan for the construction of
the rule of law, spurring the progress of operating enterprises according
to the law and implement of all kind of related works. The Group has
been vigorously promoting the modernization of the rule of law system

and governance, ensuring the sustainable development of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 144 to 408.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.05
(2020: RMBO0.10) per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December
2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at 4:30 p.m., the end of Thursday, 26 May 2022. Subject
to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting on the payment of the final dividend, the said final

dividend is expected to be paid on or before 30 June 2022.

The dividends to be distributed will be denominated and declared in
Renminbi. Distribution of cash dividends for domestic shareholders will be
paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends for H-shareholders will be declared
in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the
exchange rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date
of the 2021 Annual General Meeting at which the final dividends would

be approved by the shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic
enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder
(i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning
from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for
such shareholder. Since the Company is a H-share listed company in
Hong Kong, the proposed 2021 final dividend distribution will be subject
to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws. In order to properly carry out the
withholding and payment of income tax on dividends to non-resident
enterprise shareholders, the Company will strictly abide by the law and
identify those shareholders who are subject to the withholding and
payment of income tax based on the register of H-shareholders as at
the end of Thursday, 26 May 2022. In respect of all shareholders whose
names appear on the register of H shareholders kept at Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar
and Transfer Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Thursday, 26 May
2022 who are non-resident enterprise (i.e. legal persons shareholders)
(including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate nominees or trustees,
and other entities or organizations that are all considered as non-resident
enterprise shareholders), the Company will distribute the 2021 final

dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) ( (BRI 4 /5 B RA B 3 [1993]0455% S 14 S 118 8 BB A P58
HMEMBENBE) (B K[2011]348%%) ) (the “SAT Notice”) dated 28
June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends Paid
to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”) dated 4
July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the individual
income tax in respect of the 2021 final dividends paid to the individual H
shareholders whose names appear in the register of H-Shares Registrar
of the Company (the “Individual H Shareholders”) when distributing the
2021 final dividends in accordance with the law, as a withholding agent

on behalf of the same. However, the Individual H Shareholders may
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be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax
treaties between the PRC and the countries in which the Individual H
Shareholders are domiciled and the tax arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will finally withhold and
arrange for the payment of the withholding tax pursuant to the above the
SAT Notice and the Stock Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and
regulation, (including the “Public Notice on the Administrative Measures
on Non-resident Taxpayers Claiming Tax Treaty Benefits” (STA Public
Notice [2019] No. 35) (BIZR 154 /BN #h<IF/E RATHAZ XTI
EFBEEISNNE) (ERWHERRE201945365) (the “Tax
Treaties Notice”)). The Company will determine the country of domicile
of the Individual H Shareholders based on the registered addresses as
recorded on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 26
May 2022 (the “Registered Address(es)”). The Company assumes no
responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax
status or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims
arising from any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status
or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over
the withholding mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements

are as follows:

(i)  ForlIndividual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at

the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder;

(i) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold
and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders
would like to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax
withheld and paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder
to handle the application for the underlying preferential tax benefits
pursuant to the tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder

shall submit to the Company the information required under the Tax
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(iii)

(iv)

SRS

Treaties Notice on or before the fifteen days of the month following
the actual payment date of the final dividend. Upon examination
and approval by competent tax authorities, the Company will assist

in refunding the additional amount of tax withheld and paid;

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax at the actual tax rate

stipulated in the relevant tax treaty; and

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at
the rate of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the
domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the
Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to
apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally withheld
and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify and provide
relevant supporting documents to the Company on or before the
fifteen day of the month following the actual payment date of the
final dividend. Upon examination of the supporting documents by
the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either
personally or appoint a representative to attend to the procedures
in accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices
if they do not provide the relevant supporting documents to the

Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding

(iii)

(iv)
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PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out on page 404 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note

(VI) 9, 10 and 11 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are set
out in note (VI) 36, 37 to the financial statements and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves were

RMB392,463,394.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 37 to the financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BONDS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings and bonds at the reporting date

are set out in note (VI) 19, 29 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMB101,938 (2020: RMB50,428).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 25% (2020: 26%) of the
total operating income for the year and operating income from the largest
customer accounted for approximately 14% (2020: 14%). Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 33%
(2020: 29%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10% (2020: 9%) during the
Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Liwei (Chairman) (appointed as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Li Shenlin

Mr. Li Jianwen (re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director, and ceased to be the chairman of the board of

directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director, and ceased to be the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company since 8 November 2021)

Ms. Zhang Yan

Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baogun

Mr. Wang Deshan (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the

Company are set out on pages 90 to 96 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the directors,
including Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Zhang
Liwei, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen
Liping, Mr. Choi Onward, each of the directors pursuant to which they
have agreed to act as directors of the Company for a three-year term
with effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting held at 24 May 2019,
in which they were re-elected or elected as director of the Company and
expiring at the conclusion of 2021 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the 2020 Extraordinary General Meeting,
Mr. Shang Yongtian ceased to be an executive director of the Company,
whereas Mr. Li Shenlin has been elected as an executive director with
such term expiring upon the conclusion of the 2021 Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Li Shenlin has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Zhang Liwei were
appointed as the executive directors from 24 May 2019 and have entered
into service contracts with the Company. Mr. Li Jianwen re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director, and ceased to be
the chairman of the Board of the Company since 8 November 2021. Each
of the executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Li Shenlin (other than
the chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang Liwei), will not receive a director’s
fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive duties
and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company which
comprises a fixed annual basic salary, a performance-based bonus which
is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results
and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary and performance-

based bonus for each of their term shall be approved by the Board and the
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remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang Liwei, the Chairman
of the Board, is entitled to remuneration (including an annual basic salary
and a performance-based bonus to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) which granted an approved by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
Beijing Chaoyang District Government, and other allowance and benefits

in kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Zhang Yan and
Mr. Li Shunxiang, has entered into a service contract with the Company
pursuant to which they have agreed to act as the non-executive director
of the Company with effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting and
expiring at the conclusion of the 2021 Annual General Meeting. They will
not receive any remuneration. Mr. Li Jianwen has not entered into any new
service contract with the Company in respect of his re-designation from
executive Director to a non-executive Director. Pursuant to the existing
service contract entered into between the Company and Mr. Li Jianwen,
the term of service for him as a Director shall remain unchanged (which
will continue up to the conclusion of the annual general meeting to be
held by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021), and he
does not receive any director’s fee and, following the abovementioned

changes, will not receive any other emoluments.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward, Mr.
Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service contract with
the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as independent
non-executive directors for a three-year term with effect from the 2018
Annual General Meeting, which will expire at the conclusion of the 2021
Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service contracts are identical
in all material respects and they are entitled to receive fixed directors’
fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is RMB154,758 per annum
(tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive) for each of

Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.
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The Company has entered into service contracts with the supervisors,
including Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms.
Fu Yanjun, each of the supervisor pursuant to which they have agreed
to act as directors of the Company for a three-year term with effect from
the 2018 Annual General Meeting were held at 24 May 2019, in which
they were re-elected as supervisor of the Company and expiring at the
conclusion of 2021 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to a resolution
passed at the meeting of representative of employees 2019 of the
Company held on 29 March 2019, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi
have been elected entered into a service contract with the Company.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the second Extraordinary
General Meeting of 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased to be a supervisor of the
Company, whereas Mr. Wang Deshan has been elected as a supervisor
with such term expiring upon the conclusion of the 2021 Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Wang Deshan has entered into a service contract with the
Company. The terms of the service contracts or appointment letters are

identical in all material respects save that:
i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong, Ms. Fu Yanjun and Mr. Wang Deshan
receives a fixed supervisor’'s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax

inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi
is entitled to remuneration based on their executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance-based bonus
which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial
results and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable

PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed to enter
into, any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are

disclosed in note (XI) 4(3) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors or supervisors or any entities connected with them
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement, or contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of their subsidiaries

was a party during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any of

their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into

or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors and other body corporate to

acquire such rights.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of
domestic shares

EEEWE

RRRRNERZER

Approximate
percentage of total
issued domestic

Approximate
percentage of total

Name Capacity held shares issued shares
HERITRER HEBRITRRA
®H 54 FisRERRE BAED BHBED
(%) (%)
Zhang Liwei Personal 400,100 0.17 0.10
SRALIE (EPN
Li Chunyan Personal 505,992 0.22 0.12
FEM (EPN
Li Shenlin Personal 430,100 0.19 0.10
FIEM EUN
Li Jianwen Personal 2,022,579 0.88 0.49
FEX & A
Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
= IER (EPN
Yang Baogqun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
HERE & A
Liu Wenyu Personal 365,151 0.16 0.09
215 (EPN
Niu Hongyan Personal 70,000 0.03 0.02
H-4T % (EPN
Li Chunyi Personal 50,000 0.02 0.01
FER & A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
and any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or

taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
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or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 &

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

\
\al

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name
i
Beijing Chaofu Stated-owned

Assets Administration
Company Limited*

EtRAEEAEEERERAR"

* Formerly known as “Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company”

Positions in the H shares of the Company

Total number of
domestic shares

EXVEPE2RE

37 ERZAME AR B M B XX P A
wa - BIRECE S M B R F 33615 E R
ARAFHASRMANESIOXRNT

KRBRNERZEFR

Approximate
percentage of total
issued domestic

Approximate
percentage of total

Capacity held shares issued shares
HEBRITAER HERTERE
54 R E R R BHRED BHRED
(%) (%)
Beneficial owner 167,409,808 72.77 40.61
BEnEAA
* BEARIERTHGRIRRE N A
AATHRZHR

Total number percentage of

Approximate
Approximate

of H shares  total issued percentage of
Name held H shares total
HEBRITHR IHERITH
FREE R8T BEHBAH BRENED
=1 HAR B &1 BoL Aok
(%) (%)
China Galaxy International Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited (note 1)(Fi7E1) 24,970,000 (L) 13.71 6.06
China Galaxy International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) (note 2)(Ff{#£2) 24,970,000 (L) 13.71 6.06

L

— Long Position

Notes:

1. These 24,970,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International Asset 1.

Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in its capacity as an investment

manager.

2. These 24,970,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International SPC 2.

(acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) in its capacity

as an investment manager.
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Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2021, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS UNDER RULE
14A.60(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5 March 2021,
the Company has been informed by Chaofu Company, the controlling
shareholder of the Company which owns approximately 40.61% of the
Company’s issued capital, that State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District approved the
transfer of 100% of the equity interest of Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-
owned Assets Management Co., Ltd. (“Hongchao Weiye”) and Beijing
Jin Chaoyang State-owned Capital Operation Management Co., Ltd.
(“Jin Chaoyang”), respectively, to Chaofu Company for nil consideration
(the “Gratuitous Transfer”). Following the completion of the Gratuitous
Transfer, Hongchao Weiye and Jin Chaoyang had completed the relevant
procedures for industrial and commercial registration of changes on 22
January 2021 and 7 February 2021, respectively, and thereafter each of
them has become a subsidiary of Chaofu Company, and hence connected
persons of the Company. As a result, the continuing transactions under
then existing leases entered into between the Company and Hongchao
Weiye and Jin Chaoyang (as the case maybe) became connected
transactions of the Company. The details of the relevant said leases

are as follows:

1. Lease of properties by Jin Chaoyang to the Company

According to the lease agreement dated 10 May 2004 (as
supplemented by the supplementary agreement signed on 7 August

2019) entered into between the Company and Jin Chaoyang (the “Jin
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Chaoyang Agreement”), Jin Chaoyang has leased to the Company a
commercial-use premises with a construction area of 15,000 square
meters which is located on the no. 211 building of Wangjing South

Lake Central Park, Chaoyang District, Beijing.

The lease term is from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2023, and
during which the Company shall pay rent to Jin Chaoyang every
six months in the amount of 50% of the rental for the relevant year

as detailed below:

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2008:
H2004%F1 5188 ZE2008F 128310

From 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2013:
H2009%F 1 1B ZE2013F12H8318

From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2018:
H2014%F1 188 E2018F12H318 -

From 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019:
B20195F1 H1H#EE2019F6H30A :

From 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2023:
E2019F7 A1 H#EE2023F12831H

Lease of properties by Hongchao Weiye to the Company

According to the lease agreement dated 1 July 2011 (as supplemented
by certain agreements between the Company and Hongchao Weiye
from time to time, including, inter alia, the supplementary agreements
signed on 13 June 2012, 18 December 2013, and 25 November
2014) entered into between the Company and Hongchao Weiye
(the “Hongchao Weiye Lease Agreement”, together with the Jin
Chaoyang Agreement, the “Lease Agreements”), Hongchao Weiye
has leased 45 properties with a total construction area of 78,808.08

square meters in Chaoyang District to the Company.

The lease term is from 1 July 2011 to 31 December 2023, and
during which the Company shall pay rent to Hongchao Weiye every
six months in the amount of 50% of the rental for the relevant year

as detailed below:
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From 1 July 2011 to 31 December 2011:
B201167A1BRZE20115612H318 :

From 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012:
B2012F1 A1 B ZE20126F12 4318 :

From 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013:
B2013F1 1B E20135F12 4311 :

From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015:
B2014F1 A1 BRZE20155F12 4318 :

From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016:
B20165F1 A1 B ZXE20165F12 4311 :

From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017:
B20176F1 A1 BRZE20175612H318 :

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018:
B2018F1 1B E20185F 124311 :

From 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020:
B2019%F1 A1 B Z202056F12 4318 :

From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023:
B20214F1 1B Z20235F12 4318 :

The Group has cooperated with Jin Chaoyang and Hongchao
Weiye for many vyears, and has been renting the relevant
properties pursuant to the Lease Agreements for the purpose of its
supermarket operations. Given that the Group has established long-
term strategic and stable business relationships with Jin Chaoyang
and Hongchao Weiye, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) believe that it is beneficial for the Group
to continue to lease the relevant properties from Jin Chaoyang
and Hongchao Weiye under the Lease Agreements to ensure the

stability of the Group’s operations.

Based on the above, the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are of the view that the Lease Agreements
have been entered into on normal commercial terms and that the
terms of the Lease Agreements are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All the
above connected transactions are also reported as related party
transactions as disclosed in note (XI) 4(1) to the consolidated

financial statements contained in this report.
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approximately RMB3.67 million
HAREI67TET

approximately RMB17.17 million
AR T17TET

approximately RMB7.44 million
AREET448 T

approximately RMB7.65 million per year
BEHARKETESETT

approximately RMB7.42 million
PAREET428 T

approximately RMB7.19 million
HAREETI98 T

approximately RMB7.08 million
HAREETOBE T

approximately RMB7.38 million per year
BEHARKETISETT

approximately RMB7.58 million per year
BEHARKETS8ETT
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of

the Listing Rules from 1 January 2021 and up to the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, or had any

other conflict of interests with the Group during the Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

To consider that a change of auditor after an appropriate period of time
could enhance the independence of the auditor and maintain good
corporate governance, and it would be in the interest of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole, pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the 2019 Annual General Meeting, Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (KE @ B SRR L RE
%)) (“Da Hua”) was appointed as the new auditor of the Company, and
Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP no longer took responsibility

as the auditor.

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Da Hua whose term of appointment
will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming 2021 annual general

meeting of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Zhang Liwei

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
30 March 2022
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to safeguard the interests

of the shareholders and the Company.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the 2018 Annual General Meeting
or the worker’s congress (as the case may be), Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr.
Yang Baoqgun, Mr. Chenzhong, Ms. Fu Yanjun, Ms Niu Hongyan and Ms
Li Chunyi were re-elected or appointed as supervisors for a three-year
term, with effect from 2018 Annual General Meeting or the worker’s
congress and will expire at the end of 2021 Annual General Meeting or
the worker’s congress. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased to
be a supervisor of the Company, whereas Mr. Wang Deshan has been
elected as a supervisor with such term expiring upon the conclusion of

the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Supervisory Committee
were held for reviewing the 2020 annual report, the report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2020, the 2021 quarterly and interim results.

The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) B+ (F/E)

Ms. Niu Hongyan H4T A+

Ms. Li Chunyi FERTE

Mr. Chen Zhong PREE ST A&

Mr. Yang Baoqun BEREAE

Mr. Wang Deshan* FEIL A

Ms. Fu Yanjun** SRR 2

* Mr. Wang Deshan appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 26 March

2021.

* Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since 26 March
2021.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EZgWmE

The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made by
the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant laws
and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, safeguarding
the interest of the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory
Committee has also reviewed the performance of the directors and
senior management in their daily operation activities by various means,
and examined the Group’s financial affairs and connected transactions.

As a result of our work, the Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2021 financial statements reflected a fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Group in material

aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transactions
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreements for
the transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
ESgWmE

4.  The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the Reporting 4.  $REHIAREEE LA EAFR ©
Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports of RIS REHHARE  EFNREREIHAESE
the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory Committee &K A /) TERRHZ ©

during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EEEEm

Liu Wenyu 2305
Chairman EEeFE
Beijing, PRC B R

30 March 2022 202243 A30H
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

N %EE&W/\&/#‘_EEFIE%

The following sets forth the profile of the directors, supervisors and senior

S

management of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021

and up to the date of this report:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Liwei, aged 44, is the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Tianjin
University of Commerce. From August 2000 to December 2013, Mr.
Zhang was employed in the Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities
Company Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company). From December 2013 to July 2017, Mr. Zhang had been
appointed successively as the manager of the Equipment or Materials
Purchasing Department and the manager of the Equipment Division of
the Company, the assistant to the general manager, the manager of the
Operation Division of supermarket of the Company, the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company and etc. From August 2017 to July 2020, he has
been the assistant general manager of the Company. From July 2020
to November 2021, he has been the general manager of the Company.
Since November 2021, he has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is also the Chairman of Beijing Chaopi Trading
Company Limited, an approximately 79.85% directly owned subsidiary

of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 49, is an executive director of the Company.
Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’s
degree in private international law from China University of Politics &
Law of China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of
Jingkelong Shang Sha (“Jingkelong Shang Sha”, the predecessor of
Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Supermarket”), the predecessor of the Company) from 2001 to 2002.
In addition, she was the Officer of the Bureau of Law and the Secretary
to the board of directors of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004.
She has been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and
deputy general manager since December 2008. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 58, is an executive director of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from the People’s Liberation Army Chemical Defense Command
Engineering Institute (B A REEREFi{k 518 TI228%), specializing in
Economics and Management. From November 1981 to January 1995,
Mr. Li had been appointed as the officer of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary
Food Company (now known as Beijing Chaofu State-owned Assets
Administration Company Limited, “Chaofu Company”) Dongguan Branch.
From January 1995 to October 2008, Mr. Li acted as the manager of
Shuguang Department Store, Jixiang Department Store, Jiulongshan
Department Store, Wangjing Supermarket, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division of the Company and the manager of the Operation
Division of the Hypermarkets. From October 2008 to July 2009, he was
the manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Mr. Li is a deputy general manager of
the Company since July 2009 and a director, the chairman and the legal
representative of Xinyang Tongli. Mr. Li has been an executive director

of the Company since 30 October 2020.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 61, is a non-executive director of the Company.
He worked in Jingkelong Shang Sha as the deputy general manager from
1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a director and the deputy
general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket. From November 2004 to
June 2013, he was the managing director of the Company. From June
2013 to November 2021, He was the Chairman of the Board of the
Company. Mr. Li resigned as the Chairman of the Company, and was
redesignated from an executive director to a non-executive director with

effect from 8 November 2021.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEKaAEEEMN

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 41, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
She graduated from the Beijing Broadcasting Institute.(dt 5 & & £265)
(now known as Communication University of China, (*FBl{&HAE)
specializing in finance and accounting. From July 20083 to October 2008,
Ms. Zhang successively served as a sales assistant of the Marketing
Department, an officer and the head of the Comprehensive Management
Department of Beijing Lizheng Software Design and Research Institute
(Jb 3R IE 84 aRET A T B). From November 2008 to December 2016, Ms.
Zhang successively served as an officer of the Finance and Accounting
Department, an officer and the head of the Party Committee Office, and
the deputy manager of the General Office of Chaofu Company. Since
December 2016, Ms. Zhang has been the manager of the General Office
of Chaofu Company. Since October 2018, MS. Zhang has been a non-

executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 69, is a non-executive director. From 2000 to
2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian Construction
Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-executive director
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, he has been a non-

executive director of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 65, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a
PhD in Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor at the
Institute of Business Organization and the faculty of Human Resources
Management at Renmin University of China. Since June 2010, he has

been an independent non-executive director of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 60, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. From September 2014 to
August 2020, he was an independent non-executive director of 5i5j
Holding Group Co., Ltd. He is currently the full professor of the faculty of
Marketing in the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of
Economics and Business of China and serves as the executive president
of China Consumption Big Data Research Institute (2 BI5H & AT
7tBr). Since June 2010, he has been an independent non-executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Onward Choi, aged 51, is an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Choi
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi was the acting chief financial
officer of NetEase, Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, from July 2007 to
June 2017. Mr. Choi currently serves as an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of Tongdao Liepin Group
(R EEE E)(a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Choi also serves as the independent director and the chairman of
the audit committee of Tuniu Corporation (42 &), Ucloudlink Group
Inc. (EFHEEHE) and Smart Share Global Limited(fREi7£E), all of
which are Nasdag-listed companies. Mr. Choi is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, CPA Australia and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been

an independent non-executive director of the Company since June 2010.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 50, is the chairman of the Company’s supervisory
committee. Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’s degree from Renmin
University of China. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has
been appointed successively as the vice-chairman of the labour union
of Chaofu Company and the Company, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Center coordination team of the Company. Since
October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour union of the
Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman of the Company’s

Supervisory Committee.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEKaAEEEMN

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 69, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 58, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is currently a
professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and Computer Science,
the Head of the Advanced Financial Information Research Centre at
Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010, he had been a professor
and the Head of the School of Software and Microelectronics, Peking

University. Since January 2005, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Wang Deshan, aged 58, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Wang
graduated and obtained a master’s degree in law from China University
of Political Science and Law (B EUEKZ), specializing in civil and
commercial law. Since March 1994, Mr. Wang has served in the School
of Law of Capital University of Economics and Business (& #4775 E 5
KE) as a professor and master supervisor, and teaches contract law,
corporate law, commercial law and other courses for graduate and
undergraduate students. Mr. Wang’s main research fields are contract
law and company law. He has written and edited more than 20 books
such as “Contract Law”, “Company Law”, “Contract Validity Study” and
“Company Law Training Course”. Mr. Wang also serves as the vice
president of Beijing Aging Law Research Association (1t 5 Z#%A =2

7L ). Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Niu Hongyan, aged 49 is a supervisor of the Company. From
September 1992 to July 2017, Ms. Niu has successively served as the
director, deputy manager and manager of several retail outlets of the
Company. Since July 2017, she has been appointed as the manager of
the Party Committee Office of the Company. Since August 2017, she

has been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Chunyi, aged 49, is a supervisor of the Company. Between August
1995 and March 2008, Ms. Li had worked in Beijing Hardware Machinery
Company Limited, Beijing Jinyu Da Sha and Beijing Shoulian Company
Limited. From April 2008 to June 2009, she had been the deputy manager
of the Labor Ministry. From July 2009 to Apirl 2018, she has been the
deputy manager of the Human Resources Department of the Company.
Since Apirl 2018, she has been appointed as the manager of the Human
Resources Department of the Company. Since October 2017, she has

been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 52, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served as
the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen Huarun
Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he was the
Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information Center of the
Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the assistant to the
manager of the Company and the Chief Information Officer. Since August

2015, he has been the assistant general manager of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEKaAEEEMN

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 51, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen Foods Company Limited
for about nine years and was appointed as the assistant to general
manager before joining the Company. Since September 2003 to March
2011, she had been appointed as the deputy officer of the Office of
Managers, the purchase manager of the In-house Brand Division of
Purchase Center and the manager of the Marketing Department of the
Company. From March 2011 to July 2012, she had been appointed as the
deputy manager and the manager of the Human Resources Department.
Since August 2012, she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer
and the manager of the Human Resources Department. From June 2010
to October 2017, she was a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.
Since August 2017, she has been the assistant general manager of the

Company.

Ms. Pan Xuemin, aged 34, is the board secretary of the Company and the
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from law school of
Inner Mongolia University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor of law
degree in 2011 and obtained a master’s degree in civil and commercial
law from Capital University of Economics and Business in 2014. Since
June 2014, Ms. Pan served as a legal clerk in the Company’s securities
and legal department. Since November 2015, she served as director and
deputy manager in the Company’s securities and legal department. Since
January 2019, she has been appointed as the manager of the Company’s
securities and legal department. Since August 2016, she was appointed
as board secretary of the Company. Since 30 November 2021, she was

appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERWE

INTRODUCTION

As a player in the retail and wholesale industry of fast-moving consumer
goods, the Group is deeply aware that modern corporate management
is closely related to sustainable development strategy and always value
corporate social responsibility as one of the core values of its sustainable
development, and has strived to maintain a high standard of food safety
based on the continuous comprehensive scientific management. The
Group also maintains a constant awareness of the needs of society, has
cared about its customers, has proactively participated in community
care activities, has placed emphasis on environmental protection by
implementing low-carbon operation and saved energy consumption
and reduced emission of pollutants, so as to fulfill corporate social

responsibility.

This report is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, and is strictly adhered to the four reporting principles
— materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The Group has
complied with the disclosure requirements of the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the Guide. This report summarised the key areas
of policies, actions and achievement in respect of environment and
society of the Company and all of its subsidiaries in 2021, and the
implemented policies and strategies of the Group in the aspects of (i)
operational practices, (i) employment policies; and (iii) environmental

protection measures.
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ENVIRONI\/IENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - g MEamE

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for 2021 to the stakeholders. The Group has always regarded
sustainable development as its most important long-term development
objective and incorporated environmental, social and governance
elements as well as climate-related issues into its strategic planning.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is responsible for
the consideration, planning, decision-making, supervision and monitoring

of environmental, social and governance issues.

2021 is a year of continuous challenges for the Group. The COVID-19
situations was still evolving with scattered outbreaks. The retail industry
continued weakening, and the impact of e-commerce on the traditional
retail industry continued to expand. The Group tackled the challenges,
took the initiative to shoulder social responsibilities, demonstrated
corporate responsibility, guaranteed the community essential supplies
and anti-pandemic supplies, set up important support lines. The Group
was devoted to meet the supply of community residents, to assist the
government and subdistrict office to provide help, to show the social
responsibility of retail enterprises to the society. Within the Group, the
Group pays attention to the protection of workers’ rights and interests,
implements the people-oriented concept, and cares about the health
and career development of employees. The Group insists on being an
environment-friendly enterprise, implements energy-saving and emission
reduction measures, uses scientific and technological means to improve
management efficiency, and responds to the national call to achieve

carbon neutrality by 2060.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board has included sustainability as a long-term strategy, integrated
it into its business model, embodied it in corporate governance and
other decision-making processes. The Board through regular meetings,
supervises and reviews the effectiveness of management methods and
corporate environmental, social and governance performance, and makes
timely adjustments and corrections to adapt to the actual situation of the
enterprise. The Board and the management coordinate development and
cooperate with each other to achieve the sustainable development of the
enterprise. The Group is well aware of the importance of communicating
with stakeholders. The Group has established communication channels
and platforms with stakeholders, and is constantly expanding the
communication channels, so as to have a more detailed understanding of

corporate development issues which stakeholders are concerned about.

In the present environment of development and risk, the Group
understands the importance of corporate risk management. In order to
cope with possible risks in operation and better identify and evaluate risks
and opportunities, the Board of Directors continues to pay attention to
the progress of corporate risk system construction and the improvement

of internal supervision system to cope with environmental challenges.
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B LB REARE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group applies following principles such as materiality, quantitative,

balance and consistency in the Report:

Materiality: The Board and the management regularly review sustainability
issues which have significant impact on our business and operation, and
pursuant to internal evaluation results, disclose sustainability issues which
have significant impact on the Group based on the results of stakeholders’

participation and substantive evaluation.

Quantitative: This report reports the performance of quantified key
performance indicators (KPIs). For important KPIs, in order to increase
transparency, calculation references and/or methods will also be
disclosed, and the annual review of performance will be presented to

allow stakeholders to understand the progress of compliance.

Balance: The Group aim to maintain a balanced report and to make
fair disclosures on the progress and continuing challenges of the most
critical aspects of its performance. This report is prepared according to
the actual situation of the Group’s operation. The source of information
and cases of this report was mainly derived from the summary of all
devisions of the Group obtained in 2021, relevant documents and internal

communication documents without making false and biased opinions.

Consistency: The Group has reported in accordance with the Guide.
Should there be any changes that may affect the comparison with
previous reports in the future, footnotes will be added by the Group in

the corresponding sections of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REF’ORT

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has been responsible for the overall coordination of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance issues, the various departments
of the Group and its subsidiaries work together to identify and report

environmental, social and governance risks.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGMENT

Based on the prevailing structure and the business activities of the
Group, the Group has identified six different groups of stakeholders that
are related to the Group’s principal businesses including government/
regulatory authorities, shareholders/investors, employees, customers,
suppliers and community. The Group believes that stakeholder
engagement is an important measure to improve environmental, social
and corporate governance. The Group attaches great importance to
continuous and effective communication with stakeholders and develops
diversified channels of communication to understand stakeholders’
concerns and respond to their feedback in a timely manner. The Group
communicates with stakeholders through participating in and holding
meetings to communicate, discuss and share information, as well as
through telephone, mails, correspondences etc.. The following table set
out the details of stakeholder engagement (topics are in descending

order by frequency of mentioning):
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Stakeholders Communication channels Issues of concern
BHE BBERE BEMEE
Government/regulatory Supervision, monitor, inspection and Compliance management
authorities investigation AHERE
S B R EE BER KB S Law-based corporate governance
Information disclosure foxed
BEEEE Operation according to law
Daily communication and report BOELEE
HE&E - ER Implementation of laws, regulations, rules and
Visitor Reception policies
KR TF ER RS C BRTE - BERERITIER
Risk management and control
[\ e B 4%
Safety Production
ZEREE
Food safety
Bmie

Epidemic prevention and control

e
Shareholders/investors Annual general meetings and extraordinary Compliance management
BRERIEE general meetings AREE
RAFRE  BRRFIAG Development strategy
Information disclosure B[R B
BERHE Return on investment
Information disclosure N EE
NGIEEDA Corporate governance
Telephone TEER
B Quiality of goods and services
2 am M AR A% anE

102 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



Stakeholders
BE

Employees

1’8

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - L8 RERWE

Communication channels
BERE

Performance assessment and feedback

BHERN R E

Staff training

==l

Congress of workers and Staff

BIAXKE

Consulting and communicating with the
human resource department and other
functional departments of the Group

MEBANERABREAMBEEARPIREA -
2

Internal website (OA)

A EBAE4(OA)

Daily communication and discussion

HEBBRZM

Staff activity

BIEE

Welfare distribution

EVAIE: 911

Enterprise journal

EEAETIY

Issues of concern

BB

Protection of employee rights
B TERIRE

Remuneration and welfare

BN EERE A

Occupational health and safety
BERERT S

Professional training

B

Personal professional development
BN % 953
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Stakeholders Communication channels Issues of concern
B BERE BEMEE
Customers Daily operation and promotion Service for the convenience and benefit of
HEE A& & K Ie 8 customers and sales promotions
Customer service center R - EBR R
FRRAH LN Goods/foods quality and safety
Service hotline and the comment and A/ RmEER:

complaints on Wechat, App and third-  Quality of goods and services

party platform &R mE
[REEERGRME  MMEF - F=HFE7F# Feedback of complaints, advice and suggestions
RFER wEF - EE o BRAORE
Company website Privacy protection
NGRS AL M AR
Suppliers Business communication and interview Contract performance
HErs [ RSN FE#IER
Contract/agreements Mutual benefit and long term cooperation
&R/ BEN#E - REIAE
Process of bid, quotation, procurement Supplier management
and provision HEmEIE

BRIZ - WRE KB HERRE

Communication in industry channels and
activities

TERBEBNED

Company website

NSIEENA
Community Community communication Community care to special communities
ZantA IR AR R A B REE
Provide community service and hold Goods supply during festival periods and epidemic
community activities EmEnE - BB EE
R ERTY - BT EED Enterprise social responsibility
Company website tEAESET
NCIEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection, strictly
abides by the relevant laws and regulations of the country and the place
of operation, including the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Clean Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic

of China, etc., and carries out the green business philosophy.

Emissions

The Group is not a manufacturing enterprise and therefore no consumption
of resources including gases, oil and packaging material is involved. No
hazardous or harmless substances are produced or emitted to the water
or land, and there is no emission of waste gas. Therefore, no laws and
regulations in these respects have a significant impact on the Group
that requires special compliance. The Group produces a small amount
of harmless waste due to the use of office equipment and equipment in
daily office work, including waste ink cartridges, waste toner cartridges,
waste computers, waste lamps, etc., but these wastes are collected
by the Group and stores and handed over to a qualified third party
for treatment. Therefore, the Group’s business activities do not have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not prosecuted for any violation of the

relevant regulations on environmental protection.
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Use of Resources and Emissions

The Group supports environmental protection and strives to enforce
sustainable development and advocates resources conservation. It
advocates for the conservation of resources, encourages energy saving
measures and green office, and tries to use information technology to
promote low-carbon office. Since 2015, the Group has established an
energy system that meets the requirements of ISO50001. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s energy management system successfully
passed the certification. The Group has compiled “Energy Management
Handbook” and “Carbon Emission Management Handbook” to strengthen
the management of harmless disposal of energy and hazardous waste,
reduce carbon emissions, and minimize the impact of business operations
on the environment, such as (1) to reduce the use of paper, the Group
encourages all departments to reuse single-side printing paper and
double-side printing; (2) put a cup cabinet in the meeting room and
prepare mugs to reduce the use of paper cups; (3) encourage the use
of telephone or video conference instead of travel, flexible use of third-
party software to hold meetings, training and other activities, so as to
reduce the use of paper meeting materials, training materials and other
paper; (4) encourage employees to use public transport to reduce carbon
emissions; (5) all units are required to turn off the electricity and provide
24-hour security service, and the security will turn off the lighting or office
equipment in the office area without presence of staff when patrolling.
The Group performed well and received awards from the government

during the Reporting Period.

Energy Management

The Group attaches great importance to energy conservation and emission
reduction, reduces energy consumption, promotes green operation, and is
committed to deepening the concept of energy conservation and emission
reduction into every link of operation and corporate governance. In order
to do a good job in energy consumption control, energy conservation and
emission reduction, all stores and subsidiaries are required to use energy

and strengthen the management of external tenants in strict accordance
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

with the “Management Measures for Water and Electricity Consumption”,
“Drainage Management Measures” and “Gas Management Measures”
of the Group, and DB11/T 1159-2015: Department store, supermarket
energy consumption quota calculation standard was rigidly enforced,
optimize energy management. During the reporting period, the Group
made progress on the construction of the Internet of things platform by
merchants prepaid module, energy management module, equipment
operational management module, security management module,
which enabled the Group to more quickly and accurately understand
the usage of water and electricity and equipment operation, etc., and
timely spot any unusual situations, overweight, abnormal operation,
fault, etc, so that timely intervention and reaction could be made, and
control capacity and supervision efficiency were enhanced. The Group
continues to advance the subordinate stores refrigeration equipment,
platoon lampblack, drainage system reconstruction project, promote
the use of LED energy-saving lamps to replace traditional low energy
efficiency in lighting equipment, in the elevator, the respect such as
lighting energy-saving reform continuously improve enterprise energy
conservation and environmental protection the elaborating management
level, has obtained the remarkable energy conservation and emissions
reduction and economic benefit. Total power consumption of the Group
was 78,310.44 thousand kwh, consumption intensity was 0.33 thousand

kwh per square meter.

Water Usage

Water shortage is one of the major challenges the world face today.
Water pollution and water poverty have also become one of the most
serious factors restricting China’s economic and social development. The
Group is committed to addressing these challenges through good water
conservation management practices. In order to reduce the consumption
of water resources, the Group has made great efforts to promote water
conservation, improve employees’ awareness of water conservation,
advocate water conservation measures and encourage water reuse.

The slogan “save water” were hung up in important places such as
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the toilets in the office area, the canteen sink and the bathroom in
the dormitory, and the water consumption in the above places were
continuously monitored. Water-saving and water purification facilities
were purchased. The Group did everything possible to reduce water
consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of water resources. The
Group has sufficient water supply and has not encountered any problems
in obtaining suitable water sources. Water consumption of the Group in
2021 was approximately 125,088 tons, consumption intensity was 0.52

tons per square meter.

Use of Packaging Material

The National Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of
Ecological Environment in January 2020 issued plastic bag restriction
“Opinions on Further Strengthening Plastic Pollution Treatment”; the Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and Beijing Municipal
Ecology and Environment Bureau also introduced plastic bag restriction
action plan “Beijing action plan of plastic pollution, required by the end of
2020, supermarkets were forbidden to use of non-biodegradable plastic
bags. At the same time, it advocates green consumption, encourages
and guides consumers to use reusable packaging materials such as
environment-friendly cloth bags and paper bags, and encourages
supermarkets to set up self-service and intelligent reusable shopping
bag sales devices. During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
responded to the requirements of the national and government plastic
restrictions, bans and action plans, completed the elimination of traditional
plastic products and replaced degradable plastic bags, and consumers
can choose whether they need plastic bags through self-service cashier

equipment in stores.

108 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

HieBRMERADAKE - BRKERINBER
RE o AEENKRHEERR - EREUERKRE
RBEFEAEE - 2021F - REBHEFEATH
125,088ME /K& - FI/KERE RE T 7 K0.520F °

BEYMNER

BIZRERNESR - £RRBEIEN2020F1 AL AR
PL(BANE—TMBREMGIAENER) It
RAMBERMUEZEE ERTAERRERGL
ARBITHAECERTMBRISRZITEE)
R EF2020F K - BRI E A A A fF R 22 A
K-FAF - BEREHE  ZBSIEEEER
AREMER AREZETEENBREMH
sRETRESDRN  EEECUEENABYER
EEXKE - BEHR  AEERGERBERRK
FRES  BBLRITHFBHENR - EREL
B B an 98K T 2 T 5B M T AR 2R K B 3
ROBBEEWARBIEWBBUIRREE

EER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group continue to unswervingly
implement the Beijing Municipal Life Waste Management Ordinance,
publicizing and implementing the garbage classification regulation
and putting the management into effect according to the “Work Plan
for the Domestic Garbage Management”, and inspection on garbage
classification work, for they do not conform to the requirements of the
project rectification, will life garbage sorting into the store management
and employees. Strictly implement garbage classification, jointly promote
the store and store environment improvement, so that consumers have
a clean and tidy shopping environment, establish a good environmental

image of the enterprise.

CLIMATE CHANGE AND RESPONSE

Climate change is a challenge the world faces at present. Global warming
and ecological environment change are closely related to human survival.
The increasingly sophisticated and detailed regulatory policies and
measures of the government have made the Group aware that climate
change is changing the competitive environment in the market and
thus bringing risks to business operations: As external environmental
risks faced by the enterprise, extreme weather such as storm, flood
and drought caused by climate change and climate events such as
global warming will affect logistics transportation, commodity supply and
resource allocation of the Group. In view of the government’s policies to
cope with the climate change of the limit of exhaust emission reduction, for
low carbon management idea of publicity, consumers increasingly focus
on enterprise to the environment protection and resource conservation
measures, and for the choice of energy-saving product universality, and
the Group speed up the pace of implementation of measures to tackle of
climate action, by means of scientific management methods to promote
the sustainable development performance. The Group always pays close
attention to climate change, pays close attention to weather forecast
and early warning information in daily operation, and combines logistics,
transportation and traffic conditions to reasonably reserve necessary
supplies and emergency supplies to meet consumer demand, and

manages emergency plans to deal with emergencies. At the same time,
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the Group will continue to strengthen the management of climate risks,
further reduce operational emissions, and continue to promote the use
of environmental protection and energy saving equipment and materials,
so as to achieve parallel energy saving and emission reduction systems
with scientific and technological means. For the energy conservation and
emission reduction measures of the Group, please refer to the Resource

Use and Energy Management section.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Working Environment

The Group is strictly in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
including the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour Contract Law
of the PRC” to create a fair and legitimate working environment as well
as a healthy and safe working environment. Reasonable working hours
and resting time are arranged for our employees. The Group has also

established a labour union to protect various rights of all its employees.

Employment and Dismissal Policies

In accordance with the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, the Group established the “Staff Management
Mechanism”, the “Objective Management System” and the “Education
and Training Administration System” in respect of employees’ recruitment,
promotion and dismissal policies. The Group will adjust employee
compensation in strict accordance with the position, responsibilities,
experience, achievement and performance of employees, and refer to the
market rate to maintain the competitiveness of salary. Further, in order
to maintain the competitiveness of employees and improve their quality,
the Group makes training and promotion plans for employees, carries
out pre-job training and on-the-job training courses for employees, and
provides promotion platforms and channels to fully explore and stimulate
the potential of employees and enable them to fully display their skills.
According to the employment policy of the Group, the group company
will demote, transfer or even terminate the labor contract of the employee

according to the seriousness of the violation of discipline.

110 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

MRF G - AERE O ER - B mAmEH
BEK  BURSBAERERAEHRERR - @
B ARBESFENRERERBRNER - E—
B AL EBN - TEHEITIRR - SRR IBEM
FHEOGE - 280 BE R FF 2 B R B2 g F B A
17 - R A E S RE R iRt R EIRE A Kak

RERDER °

BRBUR

TEEE
REBBIEETREARKANDHEBHL) - (P2
ARAMELE A RS S RMEREROER
REAT - AEHTHREBUAREER2HSS
BHORS  ROEA BT T BRI R E TR E
KBEE - AEERTTRAH  NRE2BY
THREENR -

AT EBREEE

AEEBFRRB(PEARKMBELEHE) R(hE

ARKXNBELEBHAREINRTE - SHHETHE

BEHREREGNTE TCAFERHE) (BESRE

EHE)MBERIEERGE)  XERFHAR
£

BITHZRIE  BE TEEEETHE
% BETBKT  RHFFHOBFNKT - A
B OARNOEETHBES RABTIHE
AEEABRTHERIREANS  HRETH
AT - ERIEYIRE  RHESTAREE
FAOBE  MBBITES  BBTRESNRS
BT o RAEEATHE - £EAABRES

TRRLBHHRERE - HEMHER - #BRE
BEERBREHERMNEIE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REF’ORT

Equal Opportunity

The Group is deeply aware of the importance of equal opportunities,
and understands that the economic benefits and growth results of the
enterprise must be equally distributed and self-actualization opportunities
related to promotion must be equal. The Group has always been
committed to providing equal growth opportunities for employees. The
Group has established an efficient and equitable distribution mechanism
and a fair competition mechanism for employees’ self-growth. It provides
abundant learning opportunities, practical work experience and career
development guidance for employees to improve their professional skills
and help them develop their potential, so as to maintain the healthy

development of employees and the enterprise.

Employee Diversity Policy

The Group is deeply aware of the need to uphold inclusiveness and
diversity, provide equal career development opportunities and a good
working atmosphere for employees, continuously improve employee
welfare, strengthen communication and cooperation, and provide a
diverse and inclusive working environment for employees. When recruiting
candidates, the Group will take age, education background, experience,
values and professional skills into comprehensive consideration to select
suitable candidates. The Group organizes various activities for employees
according to their gender, region, education background and personal
background, so as to bring more communication space for employees.
The Group has an open and transparent competition and selection
system, so that employees feel equal opportunities, and willing to serve

the enterprise.
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Welfare Policy

The Group respects and safeguards the rights of female employees,
oppose and resist sexism. It arranges positions for female employees
reasonably according to the job nature, so that female employees can
enjoy equal and competitive remuneration and benefits as well as equal
opportunities to develop their career. The Group also provides a “mothers’
room” especially for the convenience of female employees in need,
thereby embodying caring corporate culture. The Group also provides
“Special Disease Mutual Security Scheme for Working Female Employees”
for female employees and settle claims in a timely manner. Specialized
body check plans are also provided to female employees, according to
the results of physical examination, health lectures are given to prevent

diseases and improve health and safety awareness.

The Group has built a “reading corner” for the staff to encourage them
to learn culture, acquire knowledge and organized a variety of group

activities from time to time to enrich their spare-time.

The Group encourages and supports its staff to participate in physical
exercise, by occasionally hosting sports programs such as table tennis,
basketball and badminton competitions and provides its staff with fitness

equipment for exercise.

The Group attaches great importance to the provision of assistance
to employees in need and keeps improving the assistance system.
Emergency assistance is available to employees in need and education
subsidy is provided to employees with difficulties in supporting their

children’s education.

The Group has set up its own staff canteen to provide the staff with
safe and convenient breakfast and lunch. All staff are entitled to the

food subsidies.
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Employees Architecture

The Group is mainly engaged in the wholesale and retail business of
fast moving consumer goods. Therefore, a strong and stable workforce
is needed to consolidate the normal and stable operation of the Group.
Employees are also the performance of an enterprise’s important
competitiveness. As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 4,781

employees.
The Group upholds the idea of providing a fair working environment. The
principle of “equal pay for equal work” has been strictly implemented

as well.

The employee structure of the Group is as follows:

B LB REARE
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Employee Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the total number of staff loss is 519, turnover

rate of employees in Group as follows:

By gender
RIERIE S

By type of employment
RIERBIE D

By age group
RFERERE S

By location
i@ E 5

Health and Safety

In accordance with the “Food Safety Law of the PRC” and relevant laws
and regulations referring to the health management for the employees
responsible for distributing food, the Group has established a “Health
Management System for Employees” to ensure the health of employees

and to purchase medical insurance for employees.
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During the Reporting Period, in view of the COVID-19 sporadic outbreaks,
the Group resolutely implemented the government’s epidemic prevention
measures, laid a solid ideological foundation, strengthened faith, took in
accordance with the epidemic emergency plans, prevention and control
plan and management process of the Group, made effort to protect
during the normalization of the epidemic situation, arranged employees to
return to work in orderly manner in accordance with relevant regulations,
organized its employees for nucleic acid testing, made sure the nucleic acid
testing are available for Group’s staff to maintain the health of employees,
called on employees to receive new coronavirus vaccine and booster
injection, effectively increased prevention and control work. At the same
time, the Group communicated the system of epidemic prevention and
control to employees through online micro classes, publicized epidemic
prevention knowledge, ensured that employees mastered relevant
content, improved their awareness and skills of epidemic prevention,
and tested their mastery through quizzes. In order to protect the health
of employees, the Group provides employees with personal protective
equipment, including masks, disinfectant, disposable protective gloves
and hand sanitizer for free during the epidemic, the Group also disinfects
the workplace and take the temperature of employees before they enter

the office area to protect employees.

Healthcare seminars on occupational hazards and disease prevention

are regularly held to keep employees healthy.
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The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety laws and regulations
including the “Safety Production Code of the PRC”, the “Law on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC” and
the “Rules on Supervision Labor Protection Articles”, designed the
“Administrative measures for Distributing Labour Protection Appliances”
for all the employees, builds and keeps a high standard of healthy
and safe working environment that does not jeopardize the health of
employees, regularly inspects and maintains mechanical equipment in
use and provides protection equipment and protective clothing to secure
the occupational safety of employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was never prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations

on occupational safety.

The number and ratio of work-related deaths of the Group’s staff in the

past three years are as follows:

E T TH#E A
EI Tkt ®

Number of work-related fatalities
Rate of work-related fatalities

During the reporting period, the number of working days lost by the

group’s employees due to work-related injury is 1,117 days.

Training and Development of Employees

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “connecting hearts while
making profits with chain stores” and the corporate value of “integrity
before interest, give before taking”. The Group views its employees as
family members and focuses on their long-term development and provide
a platform for employees to show their best and to help employees better
realize their personal value, to achieve a win-win situation between the

enterprise and employees.
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With continuous innovation on the market-oriented of recruitment system
and improvement on remuneration and benefits, the Group adapts to the
keen competition of the labour market to achieve the goal of recruiting

and retaining talents.

The Group provides various specified trainings for frontline staff,
headquarters staff, middle-ranking management and senior management
according to the development plan of the Company, so as to provide
a clear ladder of promotion for employees. Any employees can realize
their value and achieve better development. The promotion mechanism
of the Group is linked with performance assessment. By enhancing
the management system of human resources and offering room for
employees to further develop, the Group can inspire employees to be
enthusiastic at work, thereby enhancing their professional and career

development.

In order to meet the needs of the functional departments, the Group
broadens the employees’ horizons, encourages employees to participate
in external training, enhances their professional competence, and equips
them with advanced concepts and skills in the industry to improve their

working performance.

During the Reporting Period, all the store managers obtained store
manager permit through training, thereby becoming the backbone of
the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s training statistics are as follows:

Internal training times: 110

External training times: 7
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The percentage of employees trained by~ I FIBINHSIEEE AL Male: FEI: 25%
gender Female: LT : 75%

The percentage of employees trained by~ ZEBERIEDNZINEEE AL General staff: EEAE: 2.4%
employee category Middle and above management: ~ FERALEIEAE ¢ 97.6%

The average training hours completed per  Z RN - BEEETHRFZIM Male: 58I : 18.75
employee by gender and employee T Female: ZEI: 18.75
category

The average training hours completed per  1ZESERIZEID - BRREETKS General staff EEAS: 18.75

E[oResE

employee by gender and employee

category

Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, there is no child and forced labour in the
Group as it strictly complies with the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations such as the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour

Contract Law of the PRC”.

To avoid employing child labour, the Human Resources Department of
the Group would strictly examine valid identity cards of job applicants to

verify their actual ages, resolutely putting an end to use of child labor.

To safeguard the employees’ right, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant labour laws and regulations regarding the working hours
of the employees. Employees’ working hours, duty hours, resting time
and holidays are well respected and are strictly arranged in accordance
with relevant labour law and regulations. Any necessary arrangements
of overtime work must be mutually agreed between the management
and employees on a voluntarily basis and any extra workload shall be
fairly rewarded. The Group encourage employees to have a reasonable
work-life balance, allocate work time reasonably, and make a good work

plan. There is no forced labour in the Group.
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To ensure the employment conduct in its compliance with the laws and
regulations, guarantee the employees’ full entitlement to the right to be
informed, to participate, express and supervise and to prevent, the Group
has publicized the current labour management system and established
various channels to gather and integrate the feedback and complaint from
staff, handled and resolved employees’ problems in a timely manner. If
violation is found through verification, corresponding punishment will be

given according to the level of violation and system requirements.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The number of retail suppliers was 510, wholesale suppliers was 673,

including 13 international suppliers, others are Chinese suppliers.

In the course of selecting suppliers, the Group would strictly abide by
the Company’s series of introduction systems, such as the “Supplier
Classification Management Measures”, the “Certificate of Claims and
Purchase Accounts”, the “Channel Introduction Supervision Standards”,
etc. and would consider a range of factors including the product quality,
the supply capacity, reasonableness of price, service quality and business
reputation while strictly reviewing information such as operational
qualifications, licenses and testing reports on product quality in order to
ensure that all products introduced by us are safe and reliable. We have
entered into an agreement for sale and purchase with each supplier that
we introduce, specifying the rights, obligations and related responsibilities
of the suppliers explicitly and requesting the suppliers to provide regular

testing reports of the products that they offer.
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To regulate supplier management of the Group, improve the supplier
introduced and exit mechanism, promote purchasing link operation
quality and efficiency, strengthening the risk prevention and control
of purchasing, the Group adopted “Measures for the management of
supplier introduction and withdrawal”, made clear in supplier selection
and evaluation criteria, determine the elimination of suppliers according

to the evaluation results and rectification.

In order to speed up the introduction of new products, increase customers’
sense of fresh experience and store operation vitality, and improve the
management mechanism of new product entry, the Group has set up a
new product introduction review committee to review the introduction of
new products. The committee will determine the new products for trial
sale according to the introduction reasons, market status and estimated
situation. After the trial sale period, the contribution of the new products
will be assessed by indicators to confirm whether they are turned into
normal products, so as to increase the highlights of new products for

marketing and maintain the product competitiveness of the Group.

The Group attaches great attention to the production environment of
the supply chain. For suppliers involving in food production, we strictly
abide by the provisions of the Food Safety Law of the PRC to ensure a

safe and reliable production environment.

The Group is concerned about the use of environmentally friendly
products and services by its suppliers. Environmental considerations
are taken into account in the selection of suppliers, and suppliers are
assessed through review the documents and field surveys of production

facilities and work processes.
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Food Safety/Product Responsibility

The Group spares no efforts in promoting the knowledge of food safety
and offering trainings to procurement staff, store managers and relevant
employees on the relevant laws and regulations including the “Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)”. To better enforce the
food safety management work and to eliminate the hidden risks of food
safety issues, the Group strictly monitors the quality of the products
pursuant to the “Food Safety Law of the PRC”, the “Product Quality
Law of the PRC” and the requirements of other relevant laws and
regulations. New channels and new products are reviewed and approved
strictly according to the Group’s quality standards. On-site inspections
on newly introduced channels and high risk channels are carried out to
ensure that disqualified channels will not be introduced. The operation
headquarters have enhanced food safety inspections and paid close
attention to shelf life of goods, to ensure that consumers are provided

with safe and reliable food.

During the Reporting Period, no products sold or shipped had to be

recalled for safety and health reasons.

During the Reporting Period, the number of complaints received by
the Group regarding products and services is 1,826, and the above
complaints have all been resolved by the functional departments of the
Group. The Group accepts the supervision of the society. As for the
complaints from all walks of life regarding the Group’s products and
services, it will handle them immediately, timely receive, transfer, reply
and supervise the handling of the mass appeals related to the Group,

and handle them in accordance with the law and regulations.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has been determined to actively maintain and protect the
intellectual property, and respecting the achievement of intellectual
property. The Group continues to improve the intellectual property
management and control system, ensure legal authorization has been

obtained in respect of all types of intellectual property rights.
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Commodity Inspection and Recycling

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the “Food Safety Law
of the PRC” and provides accurate and complete information such as

product labels.

The Group is also in compliance with the provisions of the “Advertising

Law of the PRC”, and there is no false advertising.

The Group applies for certification and ticket inspection for all types of
commodities to ensure that the commodities have legitimate sources,
carries out cold chain inspection for refrigerated and frozen commodities,
and carries out pesticide residue inspection for agricultural and sideline

products to ensure the safety of consumers.

The Group has already established a series of product management
systems including the management instructions for the expiry date of
commodities and quality manuals, so as to guarantee the quality and
safety of the commodities to be sold. If the consumer intends to return the
goods, the retail store shall follow the specific rules related to return and

refund operation methods for relevant goods formulated by the Group.

As a wholesale and retail service provider, the Group does not manufacture
any products. Therefore, no products were recalled for safety and health
reasons during the Reporting Period. If there is actual evidence that the
products sold by the Group have quality problems, the Group will directly
return the defective products to the supplier through retail or wholesale
channels, thereby restricting their access to the market circulation. As for
the quality problems of the products that have been sold, the products
will be destroyed directly by the regulatory authorities or by the suppliers

and will not enter the market again.
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Consumer Right and Interest Protection

The Group strictly adheres to the requirements under the “the Protection
of the Rights and Interests of Consumers of the PRC” and other relevant
laws and regulations, and pays attention to the protection of the consumers
legal rights. The Group also set up a special functional department to

handle issues with consumers.

The Group is highly concerned about the protection of consumers’
privacy and constantly improves the data protection system. Any person
who has access to personal or the Group data is required to fulfill the
obligation of confidentiality. The Group undertakes that the relevant data
obtained through normal consumption will not be disclosed or used for

other purposes.

Anti-corruption

The Group expects all staff to remember and strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations including the “Anti-corruption and Bribery
Act of the PRC”, the “Anti- Money laundering Law of the PRC” and the
“Discipline Inspection and Supervision Law of the PRC”, and requires all
employees to be self-disciplined and upright that they would not accept
any corruption and kickback. No one is allowed to take advantage of
their position to misappropriate funds and property or abuse power for

personal gains.
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The Group monitors and prevents illicit transactions such as bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering through the following measures:

1. The Group has established the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department to accept reports, conduct investigations, and
investigate and handle certain cases, in an attempt to prevent the

staff from corruption.

2. Implement national laws, regulations and rules on anti-corruption,
strengthen publicity and education for employees to consciously

resist all kinds of corruption.

3. Cooperate with suppliers or partners to supervise employees’
behaviors by signing anti-corruption agreement or relevant
supplementary agreement and provide reporting channels to receive

evidence and being supervised.
4. Internal audit.

Working process of discipline inspection and supervision Department

of the Group:

Supervisory complaint channels: hotline and email address for report,

petition letter, complaint.

Working system: “Petition working System”, “Receiving and visiting safety

emergency work plan”

Supervision methods: daily supervision, key supervision, special
supervision, by entering the daily management wechat group, attending
special meetings, discussions with key project related person, actively

collect relevant information to perform the supervision function.
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Working principle: pay close attention to the key inspection standard,
closely observe the implementation of the standard, closely observe
the implementation of the results, closely observe the implementation

of the results.

Handling method: issue “prompt letter”, “Registration Form of Supervision”
and “Supervision Proposal” in accordance with regulations, punish those

who violate rules and disciplines.

To enhance the consciousness of the specification, the red line
consciousness, strengthen the education of clean industry to the key
post stuff of the Group and promote employees honest professional
consciousness, during the Reporting Period, the group carry out the
warning education training to the directors and staff time after time,
such as the important system of procurement staff training and training
backbone personnel warning education projects including anti-corruption

related topics.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees are not involved

in any lawsuits involving corruption, bribery and money laundering.

Community Engagement

The Group has constantly paid attention to the needs of society. It cares
for people in the community through setting up convenience stores in
the community, contributing to society and thereby fulfiling the corporate
social responsibility. During the Reporting Period, the Group had 45

community fresh stores and 28 community convenience stores.
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In order to improve the store service supervision and control mechanism,
broaden social supervision channels, further strengthen the exchange
and communication with customers, and constantly improve the service
quality of the enterprise, the Group has formulated the supervision
mechanism of voluntary supervisors to give full play to the role of voluntary
supervisors in social supervision. During the Reporting Period, the Group
conducted seminar by a variety of forms, on the premise of epidemic
prevention and control, some stores invited voluntary supervisors to their
stores for discussions. Those stores that could not organize supervisors
to attend the meetings due to the epidemic situation also collected
suggestions and opinions from voluntary supervisors through wechat
groups. During the meeting, each store made a specific introduction to
corporate culture, development history, store operation, service work and
other links; The supervisors also positively affirmed the advantages of
store operation and service, and put forward valuable suggestions and
opinions on the shortcomings of store operation. In view of the opinions
and suggestions put forward by the supervisors, the stores have made
careful records and in-depth studies, and found feasible solutions to meet
the needs of consumers and improve customer satisfaction. During the
period of “15 March” 2021, the Group carried out the “March 15” opinion
solicitation activity with the theme of “Safeguarding safe and unblocked
consumption”. 27 voluntary supervisors came into the store and gave
affirmation and suggestions on the work of the store based on commodity
supply, commodity price, epidemic prevention and control measures, etc.

which help the store to serve the community residents better.

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

o
i

BERTEEBREEEHOKSE  hRELE
B E- TR EBEENZRMNEE
CERGEE  HIETEBEEREER
B RN BRERGEEEUHIEEER - B#E
B ARERBZEVARREKLEEEEA
BB IR A M R B R AT IR TR RS
FEEHK  ARERASEXEMEERS
[EH - RBMERNOTEARESER
BEMREHEEER - 2FPSPIEHHEEX
£ BRER  PIEKE  METIESRSHBMT

£ A S
BB

ES
B 12 7T

il D%

AR

\\\>§; i

&

BE &
o

gH
pFes

I

ARENA SNEEBHLHBEREPIELER
RETIENER 4G T 7T EE - RARFHPELEHR

MTRZBEOREHTEENZEMER - #tHE
BEMRHMBERMER @ PUEMET TRER
BRAURARF - WKH B AITRAREE » &
NHREBEZ R RESEEWMEE - 20214F
[315]HifE - ARBEREITELZ2BBEE]R
TENSIGEABERY  27URKEEREE
EHESPIERRERME  BRER - RIED

ERENREER TR TEELRETER

HEE UBBEREFAtEERETER
B IRES -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR

%K) to the needy in the community for 11 years, The service targets

The Group has been distributing the “Red Heart Service Card (&

include community residents with temporary difficulties and long-term
needs, disabled persons with mobility difficulties, and elderly people
living alone who have no one to take care of them. In accordance
with the requirements of the Group on continuing to do a good job in
love service, the shops deliver goods to the love service objects, send
posters to their homes, contact the love service objects regularly, help
them to cut hair, celebrate birthdays, pay for living expenses, clean
up and mail parcels, etc. During the festival, gifts of condolence and
the word “fu” symbolizing the festival are sent to them. In 2021, the
Group provided home delivery service for over 100 people with the “red

heart service card” in 68 communities over 500 times, the amount of

commodity involved RMB64,000.

In order to further create a harmonious consumer environment and build
a harmonious society, the Group will launch the activity of “Commodity
Knowledge into Community” in July 2021. With “vegetable basket” and
“rice bag” as the theme, the Group invited community residents to
watch the self-made propaganda film named “Never forget the original
aspiration”, conveyed the good wishes to the Party and the motherland,
presented the spirit of state-owned enterprises, gathered the strength and
responsibility of state-owned enterprises, and introduced various existing
business modes of Jingkelong to the community residents. Organize
community residents to visit the distribution center, vegetable base, meat
factory, so as to close the relationship between community residents
and Jingkelong, improve community residents’ awareness of Jingkelong

corporate culture and product quality, and increase customer loyalty.

The Group encourages employees to care for people in need in society,

promotes its corporate culture and fulfills corporate social responsibility.
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INDEX OF THE CONTENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects and KPIs

TRER EARBAEENIER

A. Environmental
FTEHEA —RE

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : By

KPI A1.1
RS AE I IRAT 1

KPI' A1.2

PASHEBIEIRAT.2

KPI A1.3

PASHEMIEIRAL.3

KPI A1.4

RABEAE DUEIZEAT .4

KPI A1.5

FABAEBUEIEALS

KPI A1.6

RASHA R IEIRA1.6
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Description

Eipus

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BERiE R AR EUE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity.

B (8E) REERMEE (BE2)RERE
BRERTE -

Total hazardous waste produced and
intensity.
FEXEEREENHERTE °

Total non-hazardous waste produced and
intensity.

MELBERRMEERTE -

Description of emissions target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
HAATET BV EE B IR R RERE LR
SATERERAI AP BR o

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MR R ERBEEEEYN A - RiE
APTET S AYREE B 1S R AR E L B EFT
FERHY PR o

(BR - HEREBBE)RB RS

Section

)l

ENVIRONMENTOL
PROTECTION-Emission
RIERE — )

Due to the small amount and
the absence of statistical
data, based on the principle
of materiality, this will not be
reported.

E & 8AEE R MR A S E
& - EREEMRAIMAER

& o
N/A
TE R

Due to the small amount and
the absence of statistical
data, based on the principle
of materiality, this will not be
reported.
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Subject Areas, Aspects and KPIs
TELE BEERBERENER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : EREA

KPI' A2.1

A4 UEIEA2.1

KPI A2.2
RASIEMIEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3

RS IR UIEIZA2.3

KPI A2.4

4 fk E?&%EJTA2 4

KPI A2.5

RS A IS IRA2.5

Aspect A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources

BHA3 : RERKRARER

KPI A3.1

A S4B DUEIEAS. 1

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHEAS : RIREL

KPI A4.1

RS A R R AL
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Description

i

Direct and indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.

SRR B S MERR, RRE
REE -

IRAAFEE

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFKERTE o

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

i FTET 7 MRS IR A X B AR R A EE
B B IRPTERER A B o

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

Ha i SKEGE KR LRI B A FIEE - ARk
Fral LM RK s B E R RESE LR R
FrER R 288 -

Total packaging material used for finished

products and with reference to per unit

produced.

%Wuuﬁﬁﬁﬁ BEMENBERGEESN
g o

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

A E IR TR RAE RN BN
EREENERFHEAZENTE -

Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
B R LAl g H BT AELETENE
Xﬂ%ﬁ@%ﬁ KIEEITTE o

RIE - e MERWRE

Section

vyl

ENVIRONMENTOL
PROTECTION-Energy
Management

BRERE-BRER

ENVIRONMENTOL
PROTECTION-Water Usage
RERE-FKER

ENVIRONMENTOL
PROTECTION-Energy
Management

RERE-ERERE

ENVIRONMENTOL
PROTECTION-Water Usage

RIFRE — AKER

This is not applicable as the
Group is not a manufacturing
enterprise.

REBIIEEERE - WAER
BERE °

THE ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

RIEMRAEIR

CLIMATE CHANGE AND
RESPONSE

RIREC AR
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Subject Areas, Aspects and KPIs

TEEHE EERBARENIES
B. Social
FEHEB —#HE

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERETIER

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EfE

KPI B1.1

RSB UEIEB .1

KPI B1.2

BRAERIERBT.2

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: BRREEZE

KPI B2.1

RS 4E IEIEB2.1

KPI B2.2
RS IEMIEIRB2.2

KPI B2.3

B4R UIERB2.3

Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEEBS : & KiEI

KPI B3.1

B 45 A 1R B3. 1

KPI B3.2

FASAE IR 1EB3.2
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Description

i

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
IR~ BERE - Fhodn Ritm S5
WIEEEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

BRI - FhARRI Kb B 5 R E B
K o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BE=F(BEERFE)BFRIETK
BAB KL E -

Lost days due to work injury.
EIEEAIIEAS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

I PTER AR B BB SR (R FR R 2 22 ¥4t~ DA KR
MHEAMITRERTE -

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.

B REEERESNZIEEA D
IHg; =

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

iR REERRE D - BREE KR
8 TR o

Section

vyl

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES
Architecture

BEEEX—(RERRE

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Employee Turnover

BRERER-EERERIER

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Health and Safety

BRER-@FEEZE

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Health and Safety
ERER—fZRELE

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Health and Safety

BERR-—2RAZE

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Training and Development of
Employee

RIBEER — (B BEIEER

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Training and Development of
Employee

BEEE—EEHEIIEE R



Subject Areas, Aspects and KPIs
TELE BEERBERENER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4 : & T %8|

KPI B4.1

AR IR B 1ZEB4.1

KPI B4.2

BB IEIRBA.2
Operating Practices
EEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : ftrEEERE

KPI B5.1
RASR4E NFEIEB5. 1

KPI B5.2

R A5 A 1RB6.2

KPI B5.3

FASAE IR 17B5.3

KPI B5.4

AR IEIEBS.4

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

KPI B6.1

iR 1A IE1EB6. 1
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Description

i

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour.

g%@*ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%E’U%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁa%l&%ﬁ
|25 T

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

T B3R B AR B R B RR B B B PR
R

Number of suppliers by geographical

region.

i E S DB EREE -

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Hat A R B EE B S - MERITE
BB HEREE - LARBEEAIHER
TT&JIEL j'\jj_/ﬁ

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along

the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
ot 7 B s A e S IR B O R IR S At
g.-;mrsﬁmfrg:w AKABRAIMAT MR A

% o

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

R BRIE R PR (R (2 2 AR IRE m
BRAGHIIED] - A RABRAENIT M EERTTE ©

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

E%&Eujﬁuﬂu,ﬁ%ﬁw H 7 2 B R I
HmmAERKNE S

RIE - e MERWRE

Section

vyl

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Labour Standards

EIRBUR — 8 TR

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES -
Labour Standards

ERBR - 5T AR

OPERATING PRACTICES -
Supply Chain Management
EETR—(HEEEIR

OPERATING PRACTICES -
Supply Chain Management

BEXEHR-HEEEE

OPERATING PRACTICES -
Supply Chain Management

BRESR-HEREE

OPERATING PRACTICES -
Supply Chain Management

EEER-HERER

OPERATING PRACTICES - Food
Safety/Product Responsibility

RE/Em}

il

EEEH-RLE T
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Subject Areas, Aspects and KPIs Description Section

TELGE BEERBERERER Ei::pud g}

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related OPERATING PRACTICES - Food
complaints received and how they are Safety/Product Responsibility
dealt with.

BB IR IRB6.2 BEBANERRBREORFHEUREY ZEXEBHE-RERE /EREL
FE °

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to OPERATING PRACTICES -
observing and protecting intellectual Intellectual Property Protect
property rlghts

BB RIETRB6.3 it AR RRIEAMHERBANED -  SEFR-AFERRE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process  OPERATING PRACTICES -
and recall procedures. Commaodity Inspection and

Recycling

BB RUIERB6.4 il E SRR EMEKER - EEER A miniREmE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection OPERATING PRACTICES -
and privacy policies, and how they are Consumer Right and Interest
implemented and monitored. Protection

RS AE N E1RB6.5 HILEEEBRMRERALRBBUR - AR EEFH - HBEERRE

BAMIT MEERITA ©

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases OPERATING PRACTICES -
regarding corrupt practices brought -Anti-corruption
against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases.

RS AR e 1RBT .1 FE#&%W%’T%&@A&E%%&H&E% EEER-RES

HBESFARGOEE MFAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and OPERATING PRACTICES -
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they -Anti-corruption
are implemented and monitored.

BBE MIE1RBT.2 A SR b R B IRIE T - ARMBEBT  EEEHR-RES
NERRE o

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training OPERATING PRACTICES -
prowded to directors and staff. -Anti-corruption

PSR N IE1EBT.3 it mES K& 8 TIRHOREFE © EEER-RES

Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS8 : HEBRE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. OPERATING PRACTICES -
Community Engagement
FASR AR RHE1EB8. 1 BETEMERE(MHE BEEHE ST EEFH-HERLHE
ko @Rk - BE) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed. OPERATING PRACTICES -
Community Engagement
PSR AEIEIEBS.2 FEFEBMBAER(NEELER) ° ZEXEBHR-—HERSH
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TS

Da Hua Shen Zi [2022] No. 007124 KEFETF[2022]0071245%
To The Shareholders Of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited: TRREREFAEEERAERATZERE
. AUDIT OPINION — ~EIE
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHESTUERAREEREEERNERR
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Jingkelong Company”), AU TEERRRARMB®RE - 2
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets and the balance 2021F 12 ABTEMEH R AR EEARE
sheets of Jingkelong Company as at 31 December 2021, the x2021FEMAHEERARFEER - A6
consolidated income statement and the income statement of KERRHESRER AR ARREE
Jingkelong Company, the consolidated statement of changes in B BRI AR IS MR T -

shareholders’ equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
of Jingkelong Company, and the statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the cash flow statement of Jingkelong
Company for the year then ended 2021, and other certain

explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair BMRAE  EHOMBHRREMBERNTE
view of the financial position of Jingkelong Company as at 31 EROCEGHEANBERE  AaRMT
December 2021 and of financial performance and cash flows of REEAR2021F12 431 ANE M LA A
Jingkelong Company for the year ended 2021 year then ended WA A 22021 FEH & HF R B A A&
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business MREMRETE ©

Enterprises.
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BASIS FOR AUDIT OPINION

We performed our audit in accordance with the Chinese Auditing
Standards for Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor’s
Responsibility for Auditing Financial Statements section of the
audit report further explains our responsibilities under these
standards. In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants, we are independent of Jingkelong
Company and fulfill other responsibilities in terms of professional
ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that we based on the
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Except for the matters mentioned in the part of “basics for
qualified opinion”, we determine that the following matters as
key audit matters are required to be communicated in the audit
report.

1. Wholesale and retail income credit loss allowance

2. Accounts receivable credit loss allowance
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3.1 Wholesale and retail income credit loss allowance

Refer to IV (20) and VI (38) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

3.1.1Description

As stated in Note VI (38) “operating income and
operating cost” in Notes to the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements
of Jingkelong Company, Jingkelong Company’s
wholesale income is RMB6,843.8543 million which
was 67.76% of operating income and retail income is
RMB3,243.9629 million which was 32.12% of operating
income (wholesale income was RMB6,697.7840
million, which was 60.89% of operating income and
retail income was RMB4,287.4377 million, which
was 38.98% of operating income in the year 2020).
Wholesale and retail income are the key components
of Company’s operating income and the amount
is significant. In addition, due to revenue is one of
Jingkelong Company’s key performance indicators,
there is an inherent risk that management will
manipulate the timing of revenue recognition in order
to achieve a specific goal or expectation. Thus, we
identify and measure wholesale and retail income as

the key audit matters.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

ESEES

3.1.2How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of wholesale and retail income, our procedures

included, amongst others:

We checked accounting policies related to
recognizing wholesale income and retail income of
Jingkelong Company and evaluated the design of
internal controls related to the revenue cycle and

test the effectiveness of key internal controls;.

In terms of wholesaling business, along with
analytic review, we also checked signed sales
contracts, delivery records, customer acceptance
records, relevant accounting vouchers and
their supporting documents (including Notice of
Delivery, Invoices, Bank receipts, etc.), and we
also select some customers to conduct letters to
confirm whether the record of sales revenue is

true and complete.

In terms of retailing business, subsequent to
solid analytical review, we selected some stores
and observed the operation situation on the
spot, according to the distribution and operation
performances of retail stores. In addition, we
checked the sales list daily report of the retail
store, the commodity sales financial accounting

vouchers and check to the bank statement;

Our internal IT experts conducted company-
level IT audit, which including: IT general control
tests and application control tests. As information
system played an important part in wholesaling
and retailing business, our internal IT experts
performed a detailed check on the revenue

related stock movement data.
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Based on the audit work performed, we believe that
the management’s confirmation and measurement of

wholesale and retail revenue is reasonable.

3.2 Accounts receivable credit loss allowance

Refer to IV (9) and VI (3) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

3.2.1Description

As stated on VI (3) “accounts receivable” in Notes
to the consolidated financial statements and the
consolidated financial statements of Jingkelong
Company, Jingkelong Company’s net consolidated
accounts receivable was RMB936.2295 million
on 31 December 2021, which is mainly wholesale
business and accounts for 11.94% of total assets,
the net wholesale business accounts receivable on 31
December 2021 was RMB889.6777million, (Jingkelong
Company’s net consolidated accounts receivable was
RMB968.1689 million on 31 December 2020, which
accounted for 12.09% of total assets, including the
net wholesale business accounts receivable on 31
December 2020 was RMB926.0218 million). Accounts
receivable has both the large balance and the large
proportion of the total assets, in addition, they also
may face uncertainty in the market environment.
Finally, the assessment of credit impairment losses
on accounts receivable involves management’s
comprehensive analysis of all reasonable and
evidenced information, including historical and forward-
looking information. Based on the judgment below, we
identify the accounts receivable credit loss allowance

as a key audit matter.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

ESEES

3.2.2How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of accounts receivable credit loss allowance,

our procedures included, amongst others:

We understood, evaluated and tested the
management’s assessment of the recoverability
of receivables and the validity of the design
and operation of the related provisions for the
provision of bad debts, including the basis for
determining the portfolio of accounts receivable,
and the accounts receivable. Regular assessment
of ageing analysis and recoverability of accounts

receivable balances;

As for accounts receivable with provision for bad
debts according to the combination of credit risk
characteristics, we reviewed the management’s
setting of credit risk characteristics combination
and reviewed whether the account receivable age

division is accurate;

For accounts receivable with a single significant
amount, independently test their recoverability,
check relevant supporting evidence, including
entry basis, payment collection records, and
check whether the year-end balance of accounts

receivable is accurate;

Samples are drawn from the procedures for the
execution of the receivables and the payment

after the balance sheet date;

138 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

2 FitEYH
ST EKERTERERBKRG

=
=
T

—

CHMBROEIZEAEFN

T FERAAEEEY
JFE U5 R SR AT [ W 1 ) B £ A
M EFFEMERBRRGE
MR B HE I B R AETTH B
M - BV HETE FE YRR AR
BEKE - YR A AR R
201 0 FE W B R R R T Uk (=)
1 TE B R

HRERBERRREHBES
RN ERMERBRY
FEMARR - BPERT B
BHREREBRFHEAS D
RIE C WHERER T BUER

HERE B D R ERE -

HNEBERSEERNNEWE
o IR E R B
BEMAXFHEER B
AR - BIRRE  BE
FE W BR SR R AR FE A 7 HERE

Tl BRUR 7R S B W R SR 1T 1K
ERFREEABRARKRM

HAER



(5) We obtained the detailed list of the credit loss
allowance of Jingkelong Company, and checked
whether the accrual method is implemented
according to the credit loss allowance policy; in
addition, we recalculated whether the accrued

amount of credit loss allowance is accurate

Based on the audit work performed, we believe that the
management’s overall assessment of the provision for credit

losses on accounts receivable is acceptable.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of Jingkelong Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2021 annual report of other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion to financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not declare any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact. Thus, we are unable to determine
whether there is a material misstatement of other information

related to this matter.
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VL.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management of Jingkelong Company is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management of
Jingkelong Company is responsible for assessing Jingkelong
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to
liquidate Jingkelong Company or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

Jingkelong Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

6.1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

6.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jingkelong

Company'’s internal control.

6.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
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6.4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on Jingkelong Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in these financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause Jingkelong

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

6.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

6.6 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Jingkelong Company to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards (If applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
Chinese Certified Public Accountant (The Project Partner):

Wang Kaili

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Sun Wenwen

Beijing, China

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

aHBEERE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12531H

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN  ERRAERAXEERNARAR]

Amount unit: RMB
SREMN  ARET

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
Notes 20215 20204
ltem EH T 12A31H 12A31H
Current Assets: REBEE :
Cash and bank balances E¥ES I 1,125,814,037 | 1,189,823,325
Notes receivable N EE VI 2 1,535,600 6,617,315
Accounts receivable FEUTAR X VI 3 936,229,470 968,168,935
Prepayments FEFRIE VI 4 824,722,793 845,291,921
Other receivables H b e R VI 5 165,898,618 195,341,949
Inventories FE VI 6 1,618,527,017 | 1,5083,337,631
Other current assets Hitms&E VI 7 174,255,461 129,197,554
Total current assets REBEEA 4,846,982,996 | 4,837,778,630
Non-current Assets: FRBEE :
Other non-current financial assets EMIEnRBemEE VI 8 104,782,276 131,508,869
Investment properties RE M EHE VI 9 161,533,071 170,223,635
Fixed assets BETEEE VI 10 786,288,242 854,530,354
Construction in progress FEITRE VI 11 152,597,710 138,005,745
Right-of-use assets REERE VI 12 981,615,797 | 1,008,151,388
Intangible assets mILEAE VI 13 265,128,095 280,151,222
Goodwill EES VI 14 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REFEER VI 15 245,441,646 298,550,451
Deferred tax assets RIEFMEHEE VI 16 23,237,989 20,880,124
Other non-current assets HtEmo&E VI 18 187,810,862 183,997,659
Total non-current assets I RBEESE 2,995,109,476 | 3,172,673,235
TOTAL ASSETS BEA 7,842,092,472 | 8,010,451,865
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings HEMER VI 19 | 2,381,030,839 | 2,334,237,881
Notes payable FERRE VI 20 467,332,344 449,442 574
Accounts payable FERTRRER VI 21 740,337,043 720,959,512
Advances from customers JEdFRTE VI 22 9,075,871 7,094,294
Contract liabilities ARAEE VI 23 361,858,117 459,132,615
Payroll payable JRE A1 B T 35 B VI 24 1,545,319 1,621,215
Taxes payable ERXTRE VI 25 35,920,244 47,897,918
Other payables HAn IR VI 26 198,824,807 237,031,259
Including: Interest payable Hrb: EAFE VI 26 - -
Dividends payable JFE R VI 26 5,333,891 6,389,222
Non-current liabilities due —FREHNIEREEE
within one year VI 27 167,827,272 158,537,320
Other current liabilities HEtmsak VI 28 59,968,477 65,446,387
Total current liabilities RBAESS 4,423,720,333 | 4,481,400,975
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
BHEERIE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Amount unit: RMB

BB IR RRREEEEERDBRAR SHEN  ARETT
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
Notes 20214 20204
ltem TH H i 12A31H 12A31H
Non-current Liabilities: FRBEME
Bonds payable e ESH VI 29 403,545,776 402,932,044
Leases liabilities HEEE VI 30 897,255,777 911,131,824
Deferred income FEIEW = VI 32 26,720,324 34,039,487
Deferred tax liabilities BLEFMSHARE VI 16 24,076,718 30,427,271
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEES 1,351,598,595 | 1,378,530,626
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEEF 5,775,318,928 | 5,859,931,601
Shareholders’ equity: RERER
Share capital &N VI 33 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves = WIN/N VI 34 605,177,454 605,043,091
Other comprehensive income EbiRE W VI 35 - 309,414
Surplus reserves BEANTE VI 36 169,059,880 169,059,880
Undistributed profits FAOMFE VI 37 487,060,672 550,756,039

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent company

BERBARRRESRST

1,673,518,006

1,737,388,424

Minority interests DY R ER 393,255,538 413,131,840
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BRERSE 2,066,773,544 | 2,150,520,264
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BENMRRERAST

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

7,842,092,472

8,010,451,865

The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been

signed by

Zhang Liwei
Legal Representative:
EEMFHA -
RIUE

Li Chunyan
Chief Financial Officer:
FTEDITIEEEA -

FHEK

HNE161 A EFI03ENHM HMARM TR A
R D

F144B 2 F160EMHBMEANTALEE -

Wang Panzhou
Chief Accountant:

EiEBRAA

EHM
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NARIAEERER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021412H831H
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN  ERRAERAXEERNARAR]

Amount unit: RMB
SREEMN  ARKT

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
Notes 20215 20204
ltem HR TR 12A31H 12HA31H
Current Assets: REEE
Cash and bank balances BEES 289,252,296 288,671,813
Accounts receivable JEUBR N XV 1 85,664,480 65,313,274
Prepayments TERFOR 661,336 395,433
Other receivables H At FEUI R XV 2 420,225,552 501,300,499
Inventories TE 217,868,602 230,249,302
Other current assets Hib & E 477,246,341 559,413,223
Total current assets REBEES 1,490,918,607 | 1,645,343,544
Non-current Assets: FREEE :
Long-term equity investment RERERE XV 3 1,246,991,571 | 1,246,991,571
Investment properties & EHE 40,840,208 44,076,640
Fixed assets BB E 577,358,412 620,909,700
Construction in progress EEIR 108,340,792 106,158,024
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 484,074,757 529,065,785
Intangible assets mAE 71,271,435 76,112,422
Long-term prepaid expenses REFHER 149,283,315 193,639,402
Deferred tax assets BELEAMSHEE 13,304,136 12,327,517
Other non-current assets HtERBEE 6,866,129 6,875,277
Total non-current assets FREBEESE 2,698,330,755 | 2,836,156,338
TOTAL ASSETS EEMAG 4,189,249,362 | 4,481,499,882
Current Liabilities: REBEaE
Short-term borrowings HHEER 700,724,778 840,577,906
Notes payable B RIE - 17,369,805
Accounts payable FETBR SR 511,630,906 548,476,923
Advances from customers TEWGRIE 6,405,098 4,841,385
Contract liabilities ARAE 309,511,254 309,982,898
Payroll payable JRE A B T 7 1,165,280 1,272,989
Taxes payable ERHE 780,491 3,190,287
Other payables H At R 111,669,747 113,980,031
Including: Interest payable Hep o EAAIE - -
Dividends payable FERTARF 101,291 55,022
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREENIERBBE 79,064,686 84,267,448
Other current liabilities HEtnsaE 36,967,144 35,626,490
Total current liabilities RBEEE 1,757,919,384 | 1,959,586,162
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12531H
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN - RREEEREERNARAR

Amount unit: RMB
SREMN  ARET

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
Notes 20215 20204
ltem THH T 12A31H 12A31H
Non-current Liabilities: kREBEE :
Bonds payable B ESH 403,545,776 402,932,044
Leases liabilities HEBE 440,620,166 473,857,261
Deferred income EEW 21,904,475 27,177,846
Total non-current liabilities FRBABES 866,070,417 903,967,151
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEF 2,623,989,801 | 2,863,553,313
Shareholders’ equity: RERER
Share capital &4 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BARRNE 615,293,521 615,293,521
Other comprehensive income Hinsiz 4 Wz - -
Surplus reserves el YN 145,282,646 145,282,646
Undistributed profits KHBELHE 392,463,394 445,150,402
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BRES S 1,565,259,561 | 1,617,946,569
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EEMBRREREG
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 4,189,249,362 | 4,481,499,882

HNE161 A EF403ANH B MAM TRAT

The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been

HERAEKED

F144BEEF160ENPBERRANT ALEE

signed by
Zhang Liwei Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
JEEMREA FEEISILFERA - BIHEREA -
RIE =EHRK FHEM
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

aFHFER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021F &

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BENING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN : LR R EEAXEERGERAA

ltem

|, Total operating income
Including: Operating income
Il Total operating costs
Including: Operating cost
Tax and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Add: Other Income
Investment income
Gains or losses on changes in fair value
Impairment losses on credits
Gains or losses on disposal of assets
IIl. Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
IV. Total profit
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit
() Classified by business continuity
1. Net profit from continued operations
2. Net profit from discontinued operations
(I} Classified by ownership
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
parent company
2. Profit or loss attrioutable to minority interests

VERENA

A 2RHA

RRENA

A ERAHA
Re kM
HEER
ERER
HHER
i Rl
REha
LhEERSNE
fERAERR
BERENE

EEHE

0 B2
i ERind

il

B ERER

RHE

410
1+ SIS

2 B IHIE SR
(-)RFAREESE

1 GERERARRNENE

Notes
HE

VI 38

VI 38
VI 39
V1140
VI 41
VI 42
VI3
Vi 44
VI 45
VI 46
Vi 47

VI 48
VI 49

VI 50

2021.1.1-2021.12.31
015E

11,056,555,323
11,056,555,323
11,013,360,087
8,933,300,747
41,011,568
1,610,843,878
283,285,515
144,828,379
20,268,221
14,399,875
(25,559,594
(11,549,723)
5,483,155
46,237,170
12,662,382
15,560,145
43,339,407
32,394,925
10,044,482

10,944,482

(22,474,226)
33,418,708

Amount unit; RMB
SHEN  ARET

2020.1,1-2020.12.31
20205

11,979,644,054
11,979,644,654
11,929,045,279
9,718,869,692
45,097,342
1,745,482,015
260,277,786
169,318,444
24,506,275
1,197,882
89,236,083
(16,856,248)
7.184,727
165,867,994
17,411,628
10,397 447
162,882,175
80,079,106
82,808,069

82,808,069

54,660,554
28,142,515
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Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021F &

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

Amount unit; RMB

BREN I RRREREEERAERAT SBEN ARET
Notes 2021.1.1-2021.12.31 2020.1.1-2020.12.31
ltem 1ER e 02158 2020FF
VI. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax o Bt e ERR GRS - -
() Net value of other comprehensive income attributable ()BT AREMEMEA NG
to shareholders of the parent company after tax Wé}%%ﬁ - -
1. Other comprehensive income which cannot be CENBERRNANE A YA
reclassified into profit or loss subsequently - -
(1) Remeasurement of changes in net defined (N EFERET R EETE
benefit liabllties or assets - -
2) Share in investees’ other comprehensive QR TR ERNE i Al
income cannot be reclassified into profit
or loss under equity method - -
2. Other comprehensive income which can be 2 BEARERRNERGA YR
reclassified into profit or loss subsequently - -
(1) Share in investees’ other comprehensive Rz TUEERNEMEA A
income can be reclassified into profit or
loss under equity method - -
(2) Balancing arising from the translation of (INEEERRTEEE
foreign currency financial statements - -
(I Net value of other comprehensive income (Z)BERD BiRR M A 2 Y
attributable to minority interests after tax fikse - -
VI, Total comprehensive income - BAYGRE 10,944,482 82,803,069
() Total comprenensive income attributable to ( JEBRTRARENGRA NG ER
shareholders of the parent company (22,474,226) 54,660,554
(1) Total comprehensive income attributable to (Z)EER HRRMG A NELE
minority interests 33,418,708 28,142,515
VIl. Earnings per share N\ il -
() Basic earings per share (—)EASRKE(T/R) VI 52 (0.05) 013
(1) Diluted earmings per share (Z)hESRUR(L/R) - -
The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of  EHNE161EH E F 403 E K I MK M 5T AR5
the financial statements MM E D

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been

signed by

Zhang Liwei
Legal Representative:
JEEMFA
RIE

Li Chunyan
Chief Financial Officer:
FTESHITIEBEEA :

353

F144BEF160EMIBEMERANTALES

Wang Panzhou
Chief Accountant:

BATHERAA -
EH8M
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NCIRRIVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit; RMB
BREN I RRREREEERAERAT SEEN: ARET
Notes 2021.1.1-2021.12.31 2020.1.1-2020.12.31
ftem %R ik 015§ 20205
| Total operating income - EEBA XV 4 3,354,113,331 4,311,677,997
Less: operating cost B EENA XV 4 2,563,624,265 3,306,391,476
Tax and surcharges HeRmm 19,955,944 21,518,927
Seling expenses HEER 629,063,650 673,614,924
Administrative expenses ERER 159,458,342 146,581,357
Financial expenses HBER 37,226,783 33,165,756
Add:  Other Income i Efhis 14,387,842 17,307,295
Investment income REWE XV5 24,679,091 32,608,613
Impairment losses on credts EREBERR 10 -
Gains or losses on disposal of assets REREWS (88,981) -
Il Operating profit - %%IJ I (BB - J5E7) (16,237,691) 90,321,465
Add:  Non-operating income 1 EFMEA 9,868,051 12,351,206
Less: Non-operating expenses B é’%?\\iﬁ 5,430,279 2,773,356
Ill. Total profit = FlEem(EReE - 5EES) (11,799,919) 99,899,405
Less: Income tax expense K ﬁﬁ BHER (334,052) 16,572,757
IV, Net profit W FHEBOFERU - 15E5) (11,465,867) 83,326,648
1. Net profit from continued operations (—)RELEFHBE(FERU - 585 (11,465,867) 83,326,648
2. Net profit from discontinued operations (D)RIEE=FHROEERI - [5E3]) - -
V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax B EtiRANENEGTE - -
() Other comprehensive income which cannot be () TMHENBEERNE A YR
reclassified into profit or loss subsequently - -
1. Remeasurement of changes in net defined beneft BN ERER AR YT
liabilties or assets - -
2. Share in investees’ other comprehensive income 2 Enr M BEaNEtRaNa
cannot be reclassified into profit or loss under
equity method - -
(I) Other comprehensive income which can be (D)BENBEERN AU
reclassified into profit or loss subsequently - -
1. Share in investees’ other comprehensive income 1 BRtTUEBRNEEANE
can be reclassified into profit or loss under
equity method - -
2. Foreign currency financial statement translation 2 HEHBERENEEE
difference - -
VI, Total comprehensive income Y G (11,465,867) 83,326,648

The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of A F161E = FE403E I ISR K W 3T 2 A 7%
the financial statements R MBI

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been HF144EZE160BNIBBERAUTALEE

signed by
Zhang Liwei Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
JEEREA FTESTIIFREA : EAHEREA
(MR - THEK FRM
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
afREERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 /&
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Amount unit; RMB

RUEN : AR EEREEERAERAR SREN : ARET
Notes 2021.1.1-2021.12.31 2020.1.1-2020.12.31
ltem EH Bl 202158 20205
I. Cash flows from operating activities - REIBELNRERE:
Cash received from selling goods and rendering HERER  RELSKRINES
services 12,380,452,730 13,755,918,377
Other cash received relating to operating WEEpEL 2R BENRS
activities VI 53 217,485,014 223,214,819
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities RATEHE S N/Nit 12,597,937,744 13,979,133,196
Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving BERS  BX8BINNBEE
services 10,610,074,571 11,392,586,653
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees TREBINREBIZRMRS 724,081,777 711,118,399
Taxes and surcharges paid TRNBERE 255,999,754 288,192,128
Other cash paid related to operating activities IHEMBELLETHERNRE VI 53 615,846,985 732,085,896
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating LEEHRLTIL NG
activities 12,206,003,087 13,123,983,071
Net cash flow from operating activities RETHELNHRSREEE 391,934,657 855,150,125
II. Cash flows from investing activities Z REFBELNGRERE:
Cash received from interest income uﬁl@& ek 1,167,000 22,500,000
Cash received from investment income NERENZRIINES 10,998,993 6,692,935
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, JZ‘EEEEE CEBFEENEMREEEN
and other long-term assets BHREFE 1,294,864 1,111,726
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries RETRARAMEREMPIINRSFE
and other business units (194,717) -
Other cash received relating to investing YEEpEEEEDERN RS
activities VI 83 207,649,335 75,229,714
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities RETHEE TN 220,915,475 105,534,375
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BEETEE  BVEAENEQLRBEEY
construction in progress, intangible assets REEE
and other long-term assets 103,657,832 41,164,975
Net cash paid for investment REZ RGBS - 22,500,000
Other cash paid relating to investing activities IREMERE RS BN RS VI 53 184,533,337 101,200,025
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing RETBEETL it
activities 288,191,169 164,865,000
Net cash flow from investing activities REZHEENREREFE (67,275,694) (59,330,625
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHBEEREXR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit: RMB
RREBM IR REEEEEERNERAA THEEBN : ARETT
Notes 2021.1.1-2021.12.31 2020.1.1-2020.12.31
ltem TR TE 01 FE 20205 %
IIl. Cash flows from financing activities = EEEBELNEERE:
Cash received from investments MU E RE 5 £ - -
Including: Cash received from capital B IR SRR B W EINE S

contribution from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries - -
Cash received from borrowings DEEZRINES 4,011,778,876 4,029,981,428

Cash received from other financing activities H&z IEEEERHABNRE VI 53 400,000 -
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EETHR TN 4,012,178,876 4,029,981,428
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities BEEBXANERS 3,965,300,119 3,931,341,933
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest ARBRFH - FERERFIEZANRS
payments 184,983,578 206,579,153
Including: Dividends and profits paid by B FREX NG BRRORA - 7
subsidiaries to minority shareholders 51,961,514 44,850,926
Cash paid for other financing activates SEMESEESEREMNES VI 53 200,251,182 521,843,310
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EXIHELRL
activities 4,350,534,879 4,659,764,396
Net cash flow from financing activities ELTYEANBETEFE (338,356,003) (629,782,968)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to [0 ERGHHBELRBLEEINTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate (220,625) 1,493,422
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents T - B4 RRSEENEENE (13,917,665) 167,529,954
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at n: BIRe B EENMSE
the beginning of the year 1,032,379,757 864,849,803

VI, Balance of cash and cash equivalents A HARERREEENBE
at the end of the year 1,018,462,092 1,032,379,757

The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of EHWE161EH EFE 4038 W8 #E il R U it 2 2B 7%

the financial statements WFRMAERE D
The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been F14485FF BB HRERANUNTALTEE
signed by
Zhang Liwei Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
JEERFA FEBFIIEFERA : BB REA
RYE TEHMK F M
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIR T RER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 /&
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

RHEEN  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

ltem

. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from selling goods and rendering
services

Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving
services

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid related to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from investment

Cash received from investment income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

JEH

- BERBELORIRE:
HERR  ROSHIGINRS

E A BEEHERRS
BEEBRERAG
BEAm  BXSBIAORE

SARBINEARIXNNRS
XFRREHE
IAEMEEEEHARNR S
BREHReRL G
BEEDELHREREIR
CRARBELNRERE
W ENE N S
RERERERENES

REETEE  BVAENEMRYE

ENENE 2 F8
W EpEREEBERNRS
REEGRERA NG

BRETAE  EVAENAGRYE

Exfinge

REX[NRSE
XAEBEEERD AR S
REEBRS R G
REEDELNRLREFE

Notes
Bl

2021.1.1-2021.12.31
2021

3,622,372,688
152,861,427
3,775,234,115

2,909,946,253
374,123,795
68,794,607
296,010,335
3,648,874,990
126,359,125

500,000,000
60,448,108

653,996
400,140,353
961,242,457

27,911,088
747,703,212

775,614,300
185,628,157

Amount unit; RMB
SREN : ARET
2020.1.1-2020.12.31

20205

4,702,033,598
139,654,556
4,841,688,154

3,831,000,461
375,935,842
98,297,970
239,391,658
4,544,625,931
297,062,223

650,000,000
76,995,775

383,802
300,061,017
1,027,440,594

20,860,250
900,000,000

920,860,250
106,580,344
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARRETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

Prepared by: BEIING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BHEMN  LRRREARXEERNERAF

[tem

I1l. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from other financing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest

payments

Cash paid for other financing activates
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to
change in foreign currency exchange rate

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

V1. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

Notes
AR i

= BERBELNRERE !
BRETRHNRE
AR RHARNRS
ETEBRRANG
BEEHX AL
DEEMN - MEREMNEXANRE

XNEMEZEEHARNT S
ERRBTERM G
LERDELNTENEFE

M EXEBHRERALEENNGE

T BeRBEEENFENE
m: ENRERELSENSE

A BREERASSENEE

2021.1.1-2021.12.31
015

950,000,000
20,000,000
970,000,000
1,089,783,548

83,692,053
106,050,187
1,279,525,788
(309,525,788
(134,811)
2,326,683

286,925,613

289,252,296

Amount unit: RMB
SBEN: ARET

2020.1.1-2020.12.31
202058
939,783,548

039,783,548
750,000,000

91,275,530
401,814,140
1,243,089,670
(303,306,122)
177,529
100,513,974

186,411,639

286,925,613

The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been

signed by

Zhang Liwei
Legal Representative:
JEEMFHRA
RIE
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HERMERED

Li Chunyan
Chief Financial Officer:
ETESIIEEEA -

=5

HNFE161EEFI03EMM B MR IR AN

F144EEF160EMTBRMEAUTALEE

Wang Panzhou
Chief Accountant:
BHBEATNA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
aBRREREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214F/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIzE855) » 8B BA R T)

Prepared by: BEWING JNGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
REEN A RRRRERRARNERAA

Amount unit RMB
£REN: \RET

For the year ended 31 December 2021
NAEE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
ERNSLRRRER
Other Total
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus — Undistributed Minority  shareholders’
capital Teserves income reserves profits Subtotal interests equity
Item B o R0 AfeeUE BROE  AREAE Nt VEBRER  RRERSH
| Balance at the end of the prior period ~ —+ FEFRET 412220000 605,043,091 309414 169,059,880 550,756,039  1,787,388.424 413,131,840  2,150,520,264
Add: Changes in accounting polides 111+ €5 EE - - - - - - - -
Correcton of prior erors HBERET - - - - - - - -
Business combination under A-ZTo5AN
common confrol - - - - - - - -
Others i - - - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the period = » AEFAE 412,220,000 605,043,091 309414 169,059,880 550,756,089 1,737,388424 413,131,840  2,150520,264
Il Increase or decrease amount inthe year =  AEEEEHST (RN - [FE7)) - 134,363 (309414) - (63695367 (638T0AME) (19876302  (83,746720)
() Total comprehensive income (-)Ehhass - - - - (a2 (247428 33488 10044482
(1) Contrbution and reduction of (Z)RERATR AR
shareholders” capital - 134,363 - - - 134,363 (2,148,364) (2,014,001)
1. Ordinary shares contrbution 1 RERADERK
from shareholders - - - - - - (21822100 (2,182,210)
2. Capital contrbution from holders 2 EERTAREERAES
of other equty instruments - - - - - - - -
3, Dividencls payments recognized 3 RigEARREENEE
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - - -
4. Others 4 £ - 134,363 - - - 134,363 33,906 168,269
(I Proft contrioution (2)fErE - - - - W2m04) (@220041)  (50859,915)  (92,081,056)
1. Appropriaion to surlus 1 RORBLE
fesenves - - - - - - - -
2. Appropriaton to generel isk 2 RO-REREE
reserve - - - - - - - -
3. Distibuton fo shaeholdrs 3 HRENAR - - - <200 22000 0SNG (2061915
4, Otes Il - - - - B9 9 - 59
(V) Intemal transfer witin shareholders () B ERRTEE
equity - - - - - - - -
1, Capita resenves transfered o RN Gy
captal or shares) - - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves fransferred fo 2+ REDEBSEAR (AR
capltal or shares) - - - - - - - -
3, Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRDERRER
losses - - - - - - - -
¢, Changes in defned beneft plans IRV CRE ) b B
carried forward to retained [
eamings - - - - - - - -
5. Other comprehensive income 5 EhfFeNakEet Y
carried forward to refeined
eamings - - - - - - - -
6. Other 6 Eft - - - - - - - -
(V) Special resene (F)2R5E - - - - - - - -
1. Appropriaion n the perod 1~ RERE - - - - - - - -
2. Usage in the period 2 KERE - - - - - - - -
V1) Other (M)At - - (309414) - - (309414) (286,731) (596,145)
V. Balance at the end of the year I AEEFRRE 412,220,000 605,177,454 - 169059880  487,060672 1,673518,006 393,255,538  2,066,773,544
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
ARREESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepaed by BEING JNGKELONG COMPANY LMITED
FHEN LR EEEREERNARAT

Amount unit. RMB
BB \RHT

For the year ended 31 December 2020

N05E
Equity attributable to shereholders of the parent company
BERILIRRER
Other Total
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus— Undlistrbuted Minorty  shareholders'
captal 18SE1VES income 18SEIVES profits Subtotal nterests equity
tem ER e LU i AR AARHE Nt JERRER  BRERAH
| Belance at the end of the prior period ~ — + HEFFBE 412,020000 605,043,001 300414 160727215  550,263661 1728563381 4G5794357  2,184,357,738
Add: Changes in accounting polides 111+ €5BIRES
Correction of prior errors HBEREL - - - - (128791 (128791 (1915201 (24773202
Busingss combination under AT REAR
common control - - - - - - - -
Others £ - - - - _ - _ _
Il Balance at the beginning of the period = » REFAAE 412,00000 605,043,001 300414 160727215 537405750 1715705470 443879066  2,150,584,536
Il Increass or decrease amount in the year = » REBEBBESAE(F U - B8R - - - BB 13330200 21682054 (0746 (906427
(I Total comprefensive income (-)EakhEsE - - . - BABR0SRL  GAGE0SRY 28142515 82,808,069
(I} Contrbuton and reduction of (Z)RERATIH &R
shareholders' capital - - - - - - - -
1. Ordinary shares contibufion 1~ RERADERR
from shareholders - - - - - - - -
2. Capital contrbution from holders 2 AMRRTAREERNER
of other equty instruments - - - - - - - -
3. Diidends payments recognized 3 RhxAaARRERNSE
in shareholders' equity - - - - - - - -
4. Others -t - - - - _ - _ _
(1) Proft contrbution (Z)HENE - - S BB (4131026 (320776000 (BBSBOTAN)  (91,867,341)
1. Appropriation to Surplus 1 RRERLE
T6SEIVeS - - - 8,332,665 (8,332,669) - - -
2. Appropriaton to general risk 2 RO-HEREE
feseve - - - - - - - -
3. Distrbution to shareholders 3 HRROAR - - - - (0e00)  Ro9TTE00) (588894l (91867.341)
4. Others 4 Hf - - - - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within shareholders' (70 RRiEA A
eouity - - - - - - - -
1. Capital resemves transferred to 1 BRLEEEER(ART)
captal or shares| - - - - - - - -
2. Surlus reserves ransferred to 2 BENEBERR(IRE)
capttal {or shares) - - - - - - - -
3, Surplus reserves made up for 3 BELERREE
[osses - - - - - - - -
4, Changes in defned beneft plans L EERAIEAYBEEARN
caried forward to retained &
eanings - - - - - - - -
5. Other comprehensive income 5 EfalaEEREle
caried forward to retained
eamings - - - - - - - -
6. Other 6 Eft - - - - - _ _ _
V) Specal reserve (7)=mEE - - - - - - - _
1. Appropriaton in the period 1~ R0 - - - - - - - -
2, Usage In the period 2 THER - - - - - - - -
(V1) Other ()it - - - - . . B )
V. Balance at the end of the year B REERHE 412,220000 605,043,091 309414 169059880 550,756,039 1737388424 413131840 2,150,620264
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The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been F144HZF160EMNTHEHREBUTALTESE ¢

signed by
Zhang Liwei Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
EERFHA - FEEIHIIEERA - EIHEREEA -
[ THEK FHBM
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY

NEICRERE TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 2021%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
BREM L RREEERRARNARAA

Item R

. Balance at the end of the prior period ~ — + FEEREE
Add:  Changes in accounting policies n: eHHREE

Correction of prior errors HBEREL
Others 0

Il Balance at the beginning of the period = REEAEE

Il Increase or decrease amount in the year = ~ KEEHEHSE(F )

WA - 54831)
() Total comprehensive income (-)eaknes
() Contribution and reduction of

shareholders’ capital

1. Ordlnary shares contribution from 1 BEEAR
shareholders

2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EtifERT
of other equity instruments FRAE

3. Dividends payments recognized in
shareholders’ equity
4. Others
(1) Profit contribution
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general risk

B0
4-Eff
(2)HENE

1 RRESLE
2 RR-RERER

(Z)BREAELER

afE
K

8 BSAIET AR

8

i

fesene
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRRHAR
4. Others 4 £t
(IV) Internal transfer within shareholders’ (m)BRESADLE
equity
1. Capltal reserves transferred o 1 ERLBELER
capital (or shares) (i)
2. Surplus reserves transferred to 2 BHLNRELEL
capital (or shares) (3f7)
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BBLERREE
losses
4, Changes in defined beneft plans 4 FER R EEE
carried forward to retained BEERENR
eamings

5. Other comprehensive income 5 Eftizal

carried forward to retaned L6
eamings
6. Other 6t
(V) Special reserve (h)5EEE
1. Appropriation in the period 1 KHRR
2. Usage in the period 2 TEER
V) Other (77)Ef
IV Balance at the end of the year N KEERSRE

et

Amount unit; RMB
SBEf ARET

For the year ended 31 December 2021

221§
Other Total
comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Capital share ~ Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity
o BR0E  Hib&AuE N AOBAE  RRERAH
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 145,282,646 445,150,402 1,617,946,569
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 145,282,646 445,150,402 1,617,946,569
- - - - (52,687,008) (52,687,008)
- - - - (11,465,867) (11,465,867)
- - - - (41,221,141 (41,221,141
- - - - (41,222,000) (41,222,000)
- - - - 859 859
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 145,282,646 392,463,394 1,565,259,561
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AR SR B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214F/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEWING JNGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BREM ARREEREEERNARAA

Item

|, Balance at the end of the prior period
Add:  Changes in accounting policies
Correction of prior errors
Others
II. Balance at the beginning of the period

Ill. Increase or decrease amount in the year

() Total comprehensive income
(I Contribution and reduction of
shareholders’ capital

1. Ordinary shares contribution from

shareholders
2. Capital contribution from holders
of other equity instruments

3. Dividends payments recognized in

shareholders’ equity
4, Others
() Profit contribution

1. Appropriation to surplus reserves

2. Appropriation to general risk
reserve
3. Distribution to shareholders
4. Others
(IV) Internal transfer within shareholders’
equity
1. Capital reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
2. Surplus reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
3. Surplus reserves made up for
losses
4. Changes in defined benefit plans
carried forward to retained
eanings
5. Other comprehensive income
carried forward to retained
eamnings
6. Other
(V) Special reserve
1. Appropriation in the period
2. Usage in the period
(Vi) Other
V. Balance at the end of the year

AR

LR
I §7HEEE -

2
KHEELSLR(8)
AT - J5%3831) -
(HEFahaes -
(DIRRRANRL AR

(Rt
o REERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

02055

X

Currency RMB

Capital share
LE

412,220,000

m%i?%& -
-4 -
412,220,000

1 RREADERR

2 EMERTERS

ERAER -
3 RO ARR

EENEE -
4 Kt -

(Z)HEDE -

1 RERSLE -
2 RE-HRERER

3 HERNA -
4 At -

(m)RRER NG

1 BALEERER

(35%) -
2 BHLREAET

(Fk%) -
3 BHLERHER

4 REREHIEY

BRERRNG

5 EffFAlELE
Tl

6 Ef -

(B)FBkE -

1 KEA -
2 KHER -

412,220,000

Capital reserves
BRRE

615,293,521

615,203,521

615,293,521

Other
comprenensive
income

Afpiralka

Surplus reserves

BRDE

g

136,949,981

136,949,981

8,332,665

8,332,665
8,332,665

145,282,646

SREN : \RET

Total

Undistributed shareholders’
10| \ts e%w

ﬁi/ ET‘J éﬁﬂ =
403,134,019 1,567,597 521
403,134,019 1,567,597,521
42,016,383 50,349,048
83,326,648 83,326,648
(41,310,265) (82,977,600)
(8,332,665) -
(82,977,600) (82,977,600)
445,150,402 1,617,946,569
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The notes as set out from page 161 to 403 form an integral part of &N F161EH = FA03E NI B KM E R A
the financial statements R AR D

The financial statements as set out from page 144 to 160 have been F144HZF160EMNTHEREBUTALTESE ¢

signed by
Zhang Liwei Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative: Chief Financial Officer: Chief Accountant:
VEEREA - FESIHIIEERA - EEHIEREEA -
RME FHEK FHEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214FE

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB412,220,000. The company’s unified
social credit code is 91110000101782670P. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 26 February 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as 31
December 2021.

The controlling shareholder of the Group is Beijing Chaofu State-
owned Assets Management Co., Ltd. (“Chaofu Company”),
which was established in China, the original name was Beijing
Chaofu Company Food Company, and renamed “Beijing Chaofu

Company Food Company” on 3 July 2021.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company were approved by the board of

directors on 30 March 2022.

—  REIEFER

IRREEREEERGAR AR AR
A1) B—REFREARLME([HE ]
e RmBR AT - 72004911 18 AL
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ERREEEZERY - AMEARBARE
412,220,0007T - hEREH—ERARES
91110000101782670P © ZAN & & 48 F 7 7k
MG ETREASE c ARRREWBT
RE(HBIAEE D TEREAEHERN
TERBEEY o

o

M2006F9H258 « RARFAEITAREYE
BRHRIEBR BB A X I ER AT AIER
£ - R2008F2A26H  AARIMEIHE
S ETHANE R L BIRHRS BRI IRE A E
IREMNER B - B E2021F 128310 * &
NABFTBITIRA B E 41,2228 % -

AEBRIERBERBRPEKZIANIERAE
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TRARREEARIILRHEREEEERARA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 42 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on 15 February 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, the Group has adopted the accrual basis of
accounting. Except for certain financial instruments, the Company
adopts the historical cost as the principle of measurement in
the financial statements. When assets are impaired, provisions
for asset impairment are made in accordance with relevant

requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements prepared by the Group have been

in compliance with ASBE and truly and completely reflect the

financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and the

operating results, cash flows and other relevant information of the

Company for the 2021.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1.

Accounting period

The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year

from January 1 to December 31.

Business period

The normal operating cycle refers to the period from the
purchase of assets for processing to the realization of cash
or cash equivalents. The Group regards 12 months as an
operating cycle and uses it as the standard for dividing the

liquidity of assets and liabilities.

Functional currency

RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment
where the Group and its domestic subsidiaries operate,
and the Group and its domestic subsidiaries used RMB as
the functional currency. The financial statements have been

prepared in RMB.

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A7 N

B H5 R 2= M 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4. Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control

Business combination refers to a transaction or event in
which two or more separate enterprises are combined to
form a reporting entity. Business combinations are divided
into business combinations under common control and

business combinations not under common control.

4.1 Business combination under the same control

The enterprises participating in the merger are
ultimately controlled by the same party or the same
multiple parties before and after the merger, and the
control is not temporary. It is a business combination
under the same control. In a business combination
under the same control, the party that obtains control
of other participating companies on the combining
date is the combining party, and the other participating
companies are the combined party. The merger date
refers to the date on which the combining party

actually obtains control of the combined party.

The assets and liabilities acquired by the combining
party are measured at the book value of the
combined party on the combining date. The difference
between the book value of the net assets acquired
by the merger and the book value of the combined
consideration paid (or the total face value of the
issued shares) is adjusted for the capital reserve (share
premium); if the capital reserve (share premium) is not

sufficient to offset, the retained earnings are adjusted.

The direct costs incurred by the merging party for the
business combination shall be included in the current

profit and loss when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

- EERHREN R ()

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ FEA—EHTHER—ZEHTEEEHH
combination under the same control and not under HETEEREE)

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) FE—ZHTEEEG

Enterprises that participate in the merger are not
under the same party or the same multiple parties’
ultimate control before and after the merger, which is a
business combination not under the same control. For
a business combination not under the same control,
the party that obtains control of other participating
companies on the purchase date is the purchaser, and
the other companies participating in the combination
are the purchased party. The purchase date refers
to the date on which the purchaser actually obtains

control of the purchased party.

For a business combination not under the same
control, the cost of the combination includes the
assets paid by the purchaser to obtain control of the
purchased party, the liabilities incurred or assumed,
and the fair value of the equity securities issued on the
purchase date. Intermediary expenses such as audits,
legal services, evaluation and consulting, and other
management expenses are included in the current
profit and loss when incurred. The transaction cost
of equity securities or debt securities issued by the
purchaser as the merger consideration is included in
the initial recognition amount of equity securities or
debt securities. The contingent consideration involved
is included in the merger cost based on its fair value at
the date of purchase. If there is new or further evidence

of the existing conditions on the purchase date within
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHBEAR A ()

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4~ E—EFTHER—ZHTEESH
combination under the same control and not under HETEEREE)
the same control (Continued)
4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) H[E—#ZHTEELGE)

(Continued)

12 months of the purchase date and the adjustment
or consideration is required, adjust the merger
accordingly reputation. The merger costs incurred by
the purchaser and the identifiable net assets obtained
in the merger are measured at the fair value at the date
of purchase. The difference between the merger cost
and the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of
the acquired party acquired on the acquisition date is
recognized as goodwill. If the merger cost is less than
the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired party acquired in the merger, first of all, the
measured fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired party and the
measurement of the merger cost shall be reviewed. If
the merger cost is still less than the fair value share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets obtained in the
merger, the difference is included in the current profit

and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

C BEESRBRENEEEE (@)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ FEA—EHTHER—ZEHTEEEHH
WEHEBFEE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) FE—BHTLESGE)
(Continued)

If the purchaser obtains the deductible temporary
difference of the purchased party and fails to confirm
the deferred income tax asset recognition condition
on the purchase date, within 12 months after the
purchase date, if new or further information is obtained
indicating the purchase The relevant situation on the
day already exists. If the economic benefit brought by
the deductible temporary difference on the purchase
date is expected to be realized, the relevant deferred
income tax assets are recognized, and the goodwill
is reduced, and the goodwill is not offset enough.
The difference is recognized as the current profit and
loss; in addition to the above, if the deferred income
tax assets related to the business combination are

recognized, it is included in the current profit and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHBEAR A ()

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4 E—EFTMER—ZFTEEEH
HETEEREE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) FEA—EZHTLESGHE)
(Continued)

Business combination under different control realized BRZAR D HEBRNIER—ZF

step by step through multiple transactions, according
to the “Notice of the Ministry of Finance on Issuing the
Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Enterprises
No. 5” (Caikui [2012] No. 19) and “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 33-Mergers”
“Financial Statement” Article 51 on the “package deal”
judgment criteria (see Note 4, 5 (2)), to determine
whether the multiple transactions belong to “package

deal”. If it belongs to a “package deal”, refer to
the previous paragraphs of this part and the notes
V.11 “Long-term equity investment” for accounting
treatment; if it does not belong to a “package deal”,
distinguish between individual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements for related accounting

treatment:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

M- EESTBERME R (2)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ FEA—EHTHER—ZEHTEEEHH
WEHEBFEE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) HE—ZHTLELSGHE)
(Continued)

In the individual financial statements, the sum of
the book value of the equity investment held by the
purchaser before the purchase date and the new
investment cost of the purchase date is taken as the
initial investment cost of the investment; the equity
of the purchaser held before the purchase date If
other comprehensive income is involved, the other
comprehensive income related to the investment will
be accounted for on the same basis as the purchaser ’s
direct disposal of related assets or liabilities (i.e, except
for Except for the corresponding share in the changes
caused by the net liabilities or net assets of the defined
benefit plan, the rest is transferred to the current

investment income).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHBEAR A ()

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4 E—EFTMER—ZFTEEEH
HETEEREE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(Continued)

(2) FE—ZEHTLELSHE)

In the consolidated financial statements, the equity of
the purchased party held before the purchase date is
remeasured according to the fair value of the equity
at the purchase date, and the difference between the
fair value and its book value is included in the current
investment income; held before the purchase date
If the equity of the purchased party involves other
comprehensive income, the other comprehensive
income related to it should be accounted for on the
same basis as the purchaser ’s direct disposal of
related assets or liabilities (i.e, except for Except for the
corresponding share in the changes caused by the net
liabilities or net assets of the defined benefit plan, the
rest are converted into the current investment income

of the purchase date).
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M- EESTBERME R (2)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

B ORI R AR B 5%

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5»

B O B 2 BE R EE R A

5.1 Principles for determining the scope of (1)

consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control. The
control refers to the power to influence the investee
and participate in its operating activities to obtain
benefits, the amount at which shall be effected by
the power. The scope of consolidation financial
statements includes the Company and all subsidiaries.
The subsidiaries refer to the entity controlled by the

Company.

The company will conduct a reassessment, once
control related elements involved in the definition
involved in the above cause the relevant facts and

circumstances have changed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()

5 SOHMBHmRNE G EAE)

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BOHHBREREN T %

statements

From the date of obtaining the net assets of the
subsidiary and the actual control of the production
and operation decision, the Group began to include
it in the scope of consolidation; the inclusion of the
scope of consolidation is suspended from the date of
loss of actual control. For the disposed subsidiaries,
the operating results and cash flows before the
disposal date have been properly included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated cash
flow statement; Subsidiaries disposed of in the current
period do not adjust the opening balance of the
consolidated balance sheet. For subsidiaries that are
not consolidated under the same control, the operating
results and cash flows of the future purchases have
been properly included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated cash flow statement, and
the opening and closing figures of the consolidated
financial statements are not adjusted. Subsidiaries
that have increased business combinations under
the same control and those that have been merged
under the merger, the operating results and cash
flows from the beginning of the current period to the
date of consolidation have been properly included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
cash flow statement, and adjust the comparison of

consolidated financial statements at the same time.

172 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

HEGF AR FEEMEELE
RENERZEHREZBE KA
RIFAISEHMA S GHEE Tk
ERRHIE, ARELERAE R
B-HREENTAR BEEAR
BIMEERNRNBERECLEE
HBIEEARIERMEHRE R
EXFEHEENTFLRA A
FAREANTEERBROBUE -
SER— S TR EA LN T A
Al HEBERRMNCERRERE
SHRECKEEMREESHF
HMEMAMBRERERT BT
FAEEWHTBREROGVENY
Lh 8 o R — 2RI T ¥ A G50
BF DR RBREA T EOEE O
B EBAHESBVESHHA
FEERRNMRSRECLEE M
BEEAFFEENAHESRE
=P WERBARETHER
REE LB -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 /&
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)
IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EESTBERANETEEE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GOt HmRNESSEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) EHUBREREL T (E)
statements (Continued)
In the preparation of the consolidated financial EREEHMBmER - FAA

statements, if the accounting policies or accounting
periods adopted by the subsidiaries and the company
are inconsistent, the necessary adjustments shall be
made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting periods of the company. For subsidiaries
acquired from business combinations not under the
same control, the financial statements are adjusted
based on the fair value of identifiable net assets at the

acquisition date.

All major current balances, transactions and unrealized
profits in the company are offset when the consolidated

financial statements are prepared.

The shareholder’s equity of the subsidiary and the
portion of the current net profit or loss that is not
owned by the Company are separately presented
as minority shareholders’ equity and minority
shareholders’ gains and losses in the consolidated
financial statements under shareholders’ equity and
net profit. The portion of the subsidiary’s current net
profit or loss that belongs to minority shareholders’
equity is presented as “minority shareholder gains and
losses” under the net profit item in the consolidated
income statement. The loss of a subsidiary shared by a
minority shareholder exceeds the share of the minority
shareholder’s equity at the beginning of the subsidiary,

and it still reduces the minority shareholders’ equity.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERNME AR ()

5 SOHMBHmRNE G EAE)

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BOHHBREREN T2 (&)

statements (Continued)

When the control of the original subsidiary is lost due
to the disposal of part of the equity investment or
other reasons, the remaining equity is re-measured
according to its fair value on the date of loss of
control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal
of the equity and the fair value of the remaining
equity, less the difference between the share of the
original shareholding and the share of the net assets
that the original subsidiary has continued to calculate
from the date of purchase, which is included in
investment income of loss of control in the current
period. Other comprehensive income related to the
original subsidiary’s equity investment shall be treated
on the same basis as the directly disposed of the
relevant assets or liabilities of the purchased party
when the control is lost, That is, in addition to the
re-measurement of changes in the net liabilities or
net assets of the defined benefit plan in the original
subsidiary, the rest will be converted into current
investment income. Thereafter, the remaining equity of
the part is subsequently measured in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term Equity
Investment” or “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments”. For details, refers to Note
IV., 11 “long-term equity investment” or this Note IV. 8

“financial instruments”.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EESTBERANETEEE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GOt HmRNESSEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) EHUBREREL T (E)

statements (Continued)

If the Company disposes of the equity investment in the
subsidiary through multiple transactions until it loses
control, it shall distinguish whether the transactions
dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary
until the loss of control are a package transaction.
The terms, conditions, and economic impact of each
transaction for the disposal of equity investments in
subsidiaries are consistent with one or more of the
following conditions, and generally indicate that multiple
transactions should be accounted for as a package
transaction: M These transactions are concluded at
the same time or with consideration of each other’s
influence; @These transactions as a whole can achieve
a complete business result; @The occurrence of a
transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one other transaction; @A transaction alone is not
economical, but it is economical when considered
together with other transactions. If it is not a package
transaction, each of the transactions shall be partially
disposed of in the long-term equity of the subsidiary
in accordance with “without loss of control” (refers

to Note IV, 11, and (2) 4). The accounting principle
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEEEME AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5 SOHMBHmRNE G EAE)

5 Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BOHHBREREN T2 (&)

statements (Continued)

is applied to the principle that “the control of the
original subsidiary is lost due to the disposal of part
of the equity investment or other reasons” (mentioned
in the previous paragraph). Disposal of the equity
investment in a subsidiary until the loss of control is a
package transaction, and the transactions are treated
as a transaction that disposes of the subsidiary and
loses control; However, the difference between the
disposal price and the disposal investment before
the loss of control and the share of the net assets of
the subsidiary is recognized as other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements, and
it is transferred to the current profit and loss of loss of

control when the control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

6

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized when the

Group becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

II/

RISk I ot
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets according to
the business model of managing financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets: Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income; financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial
recognition. For financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense
is directly recognized in profit or loss; for other
categories of financial assets, the related transaction
costs are included in the initial recognition amount. For
the accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from
the sale of products or the provision of labor services
that do not contain or consider the significant financing
components, the Group determines the amount of the
consideration to be received as the initial recognition

amount.
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- EERHREN R ()

1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

EMITAE)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8

(1) =HEENTE  BRAE

(%)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

ABBRKA G B R 2 BB E

8.1.1Financial assets measured at amortized cost @)

The business model of the Group’s management
of financial assets measured at amortized cost
is to collect contractual cash flows, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements, that is, the cash flow
generated on a specific date is only the payment
of the principal and the interest based on the
outstanding principal amount. The Group’s
financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The gains or losses arising from amortization or

impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

8.1.2Financial assets measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income

The Group’s business model for managing such
financial assets is to target both the collection
of contractual cash flows and the sale, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements. The Group’s financial
assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The impairment losses or gains, exchange
gains and losses, and interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognized

in profit or loss.

In addition, the Group designates certain non-
tradable equity instrument investments as
financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group’s
related dividend income of such financial assets
is included in the current profit and loss, and
changes in fair value are included in other
comprehensive income. When the financial
assets are derecognized, the accumulated
gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred from other
comprehensive income to retained earnings,

which are not recognized in profit or loss.
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MIAE)
8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of (1) =HEENTE  BRAE

financial assets (Continued) (%)

8.1.3Financial assets measured at fair value through ® URpEEGEAAZE:
profit or loss EHEmEHEE
The Group classifies financial assets that are NG B bt DA B AR AN BT
measured at fair value through financial assets ENEMEENMURAREE
that are measured at fair value through profit or FFEREEZHF AREMES
loss. In addition, in the initial recognition, in order W emEE ISR
to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting BE DBEAURAAREER
mismatch, the Group designates certain financial EEHEHFAEHERD
assets as financial assets measured at fair value TREE o I EVIREE
through profit or loss. For such financial assets, RE - AEBRTERIE
the Group adopts fair value for subsequent EZRLGRER B30 e
measurement, and changes in fair value are BEEREAURAREMER
included in profit or loss for the current period. SEHHEHFAEHERDY

TREE  HRHBBEERE
E ARERAAAEBEE
TRERE  2ABEEY
STAEHEE o
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEEEME AR (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8- &RWMIAE)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of 2) =HEENTE  BRAE

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities CRIBBERVIEERRDEAURA
and other financial liabilities at fair value through profit hEEEAEEHAEHES
or loss. For financial liabilities measured at fair value WeRmBEMEMeRERE -8
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense RUARAABENEEEEZHTAE
is directly recognized in profit or loss. The related HEaNemAaE HEXSE
transaction expense of other financial liabilities is REZFTAEHER - Hih &/
included in the initial recognition amount. AENHEERSERGT AENBE
REH °
8.2.1Financial liabilities measured at fair value through O HUarpEEGEAAZE
profit or loss AE BB Z B &
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through AR EEEHE S8
profit or loss, including financial liabilities (including AEHEENES/MAnE -
derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial BERStemEE(EERS
liabilities that are designated at fair value through BB EMITETR) MUAHE
profit or loss. REETAANRRBEMNE
BEEHFAZHERNS
BMEE -
Transactional financial liabilities (including REEeHBEEBEBRESR
derivatives that are financial liabilities) are BEMITETER)  ZBAA
subsequently measured at fair value. In addition BEETRENZ  BEE
to related to hedge accounting, changes in fair Hesta@N  AnEEE
value are recognized in profit or loss. FETABBER -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

EMITAE)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8

(2) =HMEMENSE > BEHATE
(%)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)
KUAaniBlEst s AREZEE

AEHEmAEHE E(E)

WHEERAAAEBEFER

8.2.1Financial liabilities measured at fair value through @

profit or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value

through profit or loss, the change in fair value of HEHHAZHEZNSR
the liability caused by changes in the Company’s B8E  ZBERAKEEBEH
own credit risk is included in other comprehensive ERRARES5 BN R RE
income. When this financial liabilities is BEZ T AR MEE R

derecognition, the accumulated changes in fair B#IrmRZEER - A
value arising from changes in its own credit HiGel=ma FEAR
risk, which are included in other comprehensive BEBSIENEAREBER

income, are transferred to retained earnings. The
remaining changes in fair value are included in
the current profit and loss. If adopted the method
mentioned before, the impact of changes in the
financial liabilities’ own credit risk will cause or
expand the accounting mismatch in profit and
loss, and the Group accounts for the entire
gain or loss of the financial liability (including the
impact of changes in the company’s own credit

risk) to the current profit and loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

8.2.20¢ther financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost, except for financial
assets transferred to financial assets and
financial liabilities, Gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised in
profit or loss. The recognition and measurement

of transfer of financial assets

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets

The transfer of financial assets is conformed to criteria
of derecognition, when one of following conditions
are met: O The termination of a contractual right to
collect cash flow from a financial asset shall terminate
the recognition of the financial asset. @ If the Group
has transferred almost all risks and rewards on the
ownership of financial assets to the transferee, it should
also derecognize the financial assets.@ Although the
Group has not transferred or remained almost all risks
and rewards on the ownership of financial assets to
the transferee, they gave up the control of the financial
assets, thus, it should also derecognize the financial

assets.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MIAE)

(3 Z=HMEEBBHERMXBENIES

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

If the entity has neither transferred nor remained almost
all risks and rewards on the ownership of financial
assets, and they do not give up the control of the
financial assets, they confirm relevant financial assets
and financial liabilities in accordance with the extent
of continuing involvement in the transferred financial
assets. The extent of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial assets is the risk level faced by the
enterprise resulting from changes in value of financial

asset.

If the overall transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the transferred financial assets
and the combination of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulated changes in the fair
value of other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

E(E)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

If a partial transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the carrying amount of
the transferred financial assets is allocated between
derecognized portion and non-derecognized portion
based on respective fair values. In addition, the
difference between the carrying amount mentioned
above and the combination of the consideration
received from the transfer and the accumulated
changes in the fair value that are allocated to
derecognized portion and were recognized previously
in other comprehensive income is recognized in the

profit or loss.

For financial assets sold with recourse or endorsement
and discount of holding financial assets, the Group
has to determine whether almost all risk and reward
of ownership of these financial assets have been
transferred. If almost all risk and reward of ownership
of a financial asset have been transferred to transferee,
this financial asset is derecognized; if almost all risk
and reward of ownership of a financial asset have been
reserved, this financial asset is not derecognized; if
almost all risk and reward of ownership of a financial
asset have been neither transferred nor reserved, then
the Group has to further confirm whether the Group
keeps control of this asset, and carries out accounting
treatments based on the principles mentioned in each

paragraph above.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

EMITAE)

8 Financial instruments (Continued) 8
2B B ER

cRAE(GE—FD)NERES
E,ZEE(%EF E’] Z’X%.f&iﬁgnmux

8.4 The derecognition of financial liabilities (4)

Once the present obligation of financial liabilities (or

parts of them) has been lifted, financial liabilities (or

parts of them) of the Group has been derecognized.
The Group (borrower) enters into an agreement with

the lender to replace the original financial liabilities

EREBE(RZFIEREE) -
AEE(E AT ) REHT7 %R
#oUEESReRBEN TR

mReRaE BEFcmAES
RERBENEREREEL ETR
B RIEERRERAE  RRE

liabilities are derecognition and a new financial liability BR—EFcHEE  AfEHY

in the form of new financial liabilities, and the new
financial liabilities are substantially different from the

original financial liabilities, and the original financial

is recognized. The Group makes substantial changes RemaE(SH E—H9) e R
on contractual terms of original financial liabilities (or FEHEE BN BIEER

parts of them), then they derecognize the original RemanE  RERRRERERN
financial liabilities and confirm a new financial liability in ERER—ENcmasE -

accordance with the revised terms.

TRARIE-BD)RLEER
B ARESEREEER N
MHEE(BRELNIFRSEER
EENRBE)CHNER AR
HifEs o

The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liabilities (or parts of them) and consideration paid
(including transferred non-cash assets or liabilities) is
recognized in profit or loss, when financial liabilities (or

parts of them) are derecognized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.5

8.6

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has statutory rights to offset recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities, and currently
enforces this legal right, at the same time, the Group
plans to settle the financial assets on a net basis or
simultaneously and liquidate the financial liabilities,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in
the balance sheet at offsetting amounts. In addition,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and are not offset in

the other situation.

Method for determining the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
If the financial instructions have an active market,
the fair value will be evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market. Specifically, the quoted price in an
active market refers to price that are readily available
from exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing
services and others, and it represents the price of a
market transaction that actually occur in a fair trade.
If the financial instructions have no active market, the
fair value will be evidenced by a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Valuation
techniques include reference to the price used in recent
market transactions by parties familiar with the situation

and voluntary transactions, with reference to the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued)

8.6

8.7

Method for determining the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

current fair value of other financial instructions that are
substantially identical, discounted cash flow methods
and option pricing models. When it is valuation, the
Group adopts valuation techniques that are applicable
in the current circumstances and that are sufficiently
supported by data and other information, which used
to select the characteristics of the assets or liabilities
to be considered in relation to the market participants’
transactions in the relevant assets or liabilities, and
use the relevant observable input values as much as
possible. However, unallowable values will be used, if

the relevant observable input values are not available

or are not practicable.

Equity instrument

Equity instrument refers to a contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group issues (including
refinancing), repurchases, sells or writes off equity
instruments as changes in equity. Transaction costs
associated with equity transactions are deducted from

equity.

The Group’s various distributions of equity instrument
holders (excluding stock dividends) reduce
shareholders’ equity. The Group does not recognize

changes in fair value of equity instruments.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9

Impairment of financial assets

The financial assets that the Group needs to recognize
impairment loss are financial assets measured at amortized
cost, debt instrument investments measured at fair value
and whose changes are included in other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, which mainly includes notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables,
debt investment, other debt investment, and long-term
receivables. In addition, for contract assets and parts of
financial guarantee contracts, impairment provision should
also be made and credit impairment losses recognized in
accordance with the accounting policies described in this

section.

9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision

Based on the expected credit losses, the Group
makes provision for impairment and recognizes credit
impairment losses for each of the above items in
accordance with its applicable expected credit loss
measurement method (general method or simplified

method).

Credit loss refers to the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets).
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 SEMEEREE)
9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision (1) BEEFEEZ S E(E)

(Continued)

General approach for the measurement of expected TEEERBETEN K LR
credit losses refers that the Group assesses whether B AEEEEEEEAGRA
the credit risk of financial assets ((including other FEeMmEE(EEREESEM
applicable items such as contract assets, the same ERAEE - TROMERRRBEY
below) has increased significantly since the initial WHERERCDEBEELN - W
recognition on each balance sheet date. If the REARAR B VRERRD BEZE
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial m- AEBZRBREENEETE
recognition, the Group measures the loss preparation HREHERELANSEAEEX
according to the amount equivalent to the expected IR ERRER B VR ERE
credit loss during the entire life period; if the credit REELEN  AEBZRBHAER
risk has not increased significantly since the initial RK12ME A ATEEEAEXRN
recognition, the Group measures the loss provision it 2B K EE AEEEFTGE
based on the amount of 12-month expected credit TEEEREXLE  ZEEMAAE
losses. The Group considers all reasonable and BEXKEBEMNES  BREAEERE
evidenced information, including forward-looking B oo

information, when assessing expected credit losses.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.1

9.2

Recognized method for impairment provision

(Continued)

For financial instruments with lower credit risk on
the balance sheet date, the Group assumes that its
credit risk has not increased significantly since the
initial recognition, it choose to measure loss based
on 12-month expected credit losses/not choose
a simplified approach, according to whether the
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
confirmation, the loss is prepared based on the
expected credit loss amount in the next 12 months or

the whole life period.

Judgment criteria for whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition

If the probability of default of a financial asset on the
estimated duration of the balance sheet is significantly
higher than the probability of default during the
estimated duration of the initial recognition, the credit
risk of the financial asset is significantly increased.
Except for special circumstances, the Group uses
the change in default risk occurring within the next
12 months as a reasonable estimate of the change
in default risk throughout the life period to determine
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since

the initial recognition.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESREEREE)

9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9

9.3 Combined method for assessing expected credit (3) UAEBEBET A HRRLY

risk based on portfolio

The Group evaluates credit risk individually for financial
assets with significantly different credit risks, such as:
receivables from related parties; and has disputes with
the other party or receivables involving litigation or
arbitration; there are clear indications that the debtor is
likely to be unable to meet the repayment obligations

of the receivables.

In addition to individual financial assets that assess
credit risk, the Group classifies financial assets into
different groups based on common risk characteristics

and evaluates credit risk on a portfolio basis.

9.4 Accounting treatment of financial assets impairment

At the end of the period, the Group calculates the
expected credit losses of various financial assets. If
the estimated credit loss is greater than the carrying
amount of its current impairment provision, the
difference is recognized as the impairment loss; if
it is less than the carrying amount of the current
impairment provision, the difference is recognized as

the impairment gain.

(4)
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BRSO BRI FEFEIY
KRR ~ (REVEWGRIE  EBH
B RRABEBARAIEBEET
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of

accounts receivable and other receivables

9.5.1Accounts receivable

For receivables that do not contain significant
financing components, the Company measures
loss provision based on the amount of expected
credit losses equivalent to the entire duration of

the life.

For receivables with significant financing
components, the Company chooses to always
measure the loss provision based on the amount

of expected credit losses during the lifetime.

In addition to individual accounts receivable for
assessing credit risk, they are classified into
different combinations based on their credit risk

characteristics:

Item
HA

Aging of accounts receivable portfolio
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Determine the basis for the combination

BEASHKE

This combination is based on the age of receivables as a

credit risk feature.

FEW RS ARECAE A
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1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 SEMEEREE)
9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of (5) FEWERZRAMERS S FELL
accounts receivable and other receivables BEL % (E)
(Continued)
9.5.20ther receivable @ Aft st
The Group measures the impairment loss based I 55 B R 1 EL b FE W SR 1= A
on the amount of expected credit losses in the BBREVNRERBRESEL
next 12 months or the entire duration, based on BERN - WABAERARK
whether the credit risk of other receivables has 12@AA « KBEEFEHKN
increased significantly since the initial recognition. TEHERBANSETER
In addition to other receivables that assess BEX - BT EBENEED
credit risk individually, they are classified into [ B ) EL A PR U RN - B
different combinations based on their credit risk HERRRSE - #EES
characteristics: "RTEAEE :
ltem Determine the basis for the combination
EE BEASHKE
Aging of other receivable portfolio This combination is based on the age of other receivables
as a credit risk feature.
Hih e R AE & A A HE b KRR R ERE AR -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10

Inventories

10.1 Classification of inventories

Inventories include goods in stocks, raw materials,

goods in product and low value consumables.

10.2 The measurement of inventories received and

issued

The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost;
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is

determined using First in first out.

10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and

measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking
into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EESTBERANETEEE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10 Inventories (Continued) 10 - BEE (&)

FE BT FE RS EER

10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and 3)

measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories (Continued)

For the inventory with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of
inventories is provided according to the type of
inventory; for other inventories, the decline in value of
inventories is provided at the difference of the cost of a
single inventory item exceeding its net realizable value.
After the provision of decline in value of inventories
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value
of the inventory to be written down below cost no
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the original provision for
decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

HyEH 1B 52 ()

CHEMEERERFEEAN
A SRR A B FENZRET R
FEHKERE  SARTFEKRESE
iR MRAFREFEEBED
TERRDEHER  BEEFEN
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EREAENTFEREEBSEN
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Bk

10.4 The stock count system for inventories is the (4) FEHBFHERKEBEF -
perpetual inventory system
10.5 Amortization methods of low-value consumables (5) 1EEZFERBEBET %

Low-value consumables are written off in full when

issued for use.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11 Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity
investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly
control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-
term equity investment of the Group that is not able to
control, jointly control or significantly influence on the
investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset
or the financial asset measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The related accounting policies refers to Note IV, 7

financial instruments.

11.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214FE

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the

investee.

11.2.1A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount of
additional investment or disinvestment. Except for
cash dividends or profits which include in actual
payment or consideration as the Group obtains
the investment but have not been paid, the
investment income for the period is recognized
according to cash dividends or profits declared to

distribute by the investee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment cost
is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-

term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

1 - RBRERE(E)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

BATERBREERLE(E)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit 2)

or loss (Continued)

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes
its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss after making appropriate adjustments

based on the fair value of the investee’s individual
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERNME AR ()

1 - REBRERE(E)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) BETEBRBERERLEGE)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for Q BuniBREHNRHRERE

using the equity method (Continued)

separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of the
investee to conform to its own accounting policies
and accounting period, and recognize investment
income and other comprehensive income based
on the adjusted financial statements. For the
Group’s transactions with its associates and
joint ventures where assets contributed or sold
does not constitute a business, unrealized
intra-group profits or losses are recognized as
investment income or loss to the extent that those
attributable to the Group’s proportionate share of
interest are eliminated. However, unrealized losses
resulting from the Group’s transactions with its
investees which represent impairment losses on

the transferred assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

1 - RBRERE(E)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

BATERBREERLE(E)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit 2)

or loss (Continued)

WhE LB 12

11.2.3Acquisitions of minority interest (©)

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated from
the purchase date (or the acquisition date) based
on new additional proportions of shares is used
to adjust capital reserves, if capital reserves are
not sufficient to be written down, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

11.2.4Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-term
equity investment without losing power of control,
the difference between its disposal price and its
subsidiary’ net assets attributable to the Company
corresponding to the disposal of long-term
equity investment is recorded in owner’s equity.
For other circumstances of disposing of a long-
term equity investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and actual purchase price is

recorded in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer

after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13 Fixed assets 13 -BEEEE

13.1 Recognition of fixed assets (1)

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.

13.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets 2)

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives from the month after
they are brought to working condition for the intended
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed

assets are as follows:

Useful life (year)

Category ]| WEFR(F)
Buildings BE NEEY) 20-35
Machinery and equipment 2 "‘“1% 5-10
Office equipment LN 5
Vehicles ERSE 5-8

B E B ERZ KM
BEgEREREERM  REH
B HEIKEEEMIEH
W ERSTEe—EEFFE
MBVEE - BT EEEHRERHE
BRAMGHEMNIRATBERANE
B - BERAREHE FinG R
AT UARER » BIEEERKAIL
ZREAREBARRNTEL
Miaat & -

EREEEENITERL %

B E & EERITEE Al 65 A Ak Az
RAR  KAERFHEESER
SRR E  c SEETEE
MERS® - B FREMEN
EXRQT

Annual
Residual depreciation
value (%) (%)

RER(%) FIEER(%)

4 2.74-4.85
5 9.50-19.40
-5 19.00-19.40
4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()

13 -BEEE(#E)

138 Fixed assets (Continued)

13.3 Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets 3) BEHABETEENZEMRBZERE
leased under finance leases 1B %

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.

13.4 Other explanations

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13

14

15

Fixed assets (Continued)

13.4 Other explanations (Continued)

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.
The actual costs include various construction expenditures
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized
before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

it is ready for intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERNME AR ()

15 Borrowing costs (Continued) CBERERE)

HMEREREREFLENNSER A
EHARBAHNEREFEARITREN
TERERERSNRE
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing WaBENESETUERE  —REZR
BRIEEXLBBEMBRHEONE
E X IR P BOR A PTIR B — MR B

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the

actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for B A S

the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or

any investment income on the temporary investment of

those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general- MERER  BEERNELERE - EAMEL
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of AR IR — R SR INAE T 5T B R
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying JE °©

a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

HAEBEMMGHNEERFTRLBHEE
REGHEMERNELEDRE A LEDIE

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,

1:

investment properties and inventories which need to be

acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of

time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production of the asset is resumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

16

Intangible assets

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Intangible assets include land use right, software

development costs and distribution network software.

Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an

intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its

original cost is amortized using straight line method over its

estimated useful life.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life

and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period

end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary.

The useful lives and the amortization method are as follows:

Item
EHA

Land use rights

T fE

Software

RS
Operating rights of distribution network

7 AR A SR

Useful lives

EAS®

33-50 years
33-504F
5-10 years
5-104F
5-10 years
5-10%F
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HiK  HERSHERNEREENE
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T

Amortization method

BEHE

Straight line method
BRE
Straight line method
HEA
Straight line method
BHA
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEEEME AR (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17 Long-term prepaid expenses 17 - REZFHRER
Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have ROPGBEBRAC KR ERERRER
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period MABSHEBENDBHRE—FUL
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term HEBER  RESGEBRAAEESXS
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected B D B8 -

benefit periods.

18 Long-term assets impairment 18 - REAEERME
For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed HRETEE  FRIE - EMA5m
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite ROBEBEEE « UKAEXGFTEMNRE
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long- MEHERETFAR - AEEE B
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated TEMNRARERE  HEFRAEEE
enterprises and leases right-of-use asset etc., the Group ZARBIECHMEE - AEBEREESR
assesses if any of them is impaired at the balance sheet BEXRAHAHRSFEREDR - FE
date. If there is any evidence indicating that an asset is BWENRA - AfEETEATES5E - #
impaired, recoverable amounts shall be estimated for TRERNR - 8 - FRASHIEEN
impairment test. Goodwill and intangible assets with a | EEMMAEDNAFEARENER
uncertainty useful life and intangible assets which have not BE  BAcSFERETR - §F1
reach work condition shall be tested for impairment annually EITHERR -

regardless of whether there is any evidence indicating that

the assets have been impaired.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EESTBERANETEEE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18 - RMMEERE(H)

18 Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is
determined based on the sales price agreed in an arm’s
length transaction. When no sales agreement but the active
market of an asset is available, its fair value is determined
according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales agreement and
the active market of an asset are available, its fair value
is estimated on the basis of best information which is can
be obtained. The disposal expenses include asset- related
legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling fees and direct
costs incurred for the asset intended sale. The present
value of expected future cash flows of an asset is the
amount that an asset’s expected future cash flows arising
from its continuous use and final disposal are discounted
at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to

generate independent cash inflows.
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHBEAR A ()

18~ RPEEREE)

R BRETEBIROEE - AT
statements is tested at least annually for impairment, BENHR  BHE20FRREE I #E
TEERRCEA NN BRBUERZ RN E
EARAEEES - ARERRPEE
DENEENEEMNEEMRMAENT]
e BENEREEER - wREE
BURERK - MEBKSEEERD #

18 Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial

irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the

synergies of the business combination. If the result of the

test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,

is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding

EREEANEELAESNEENRE
BE BREEEEAXNEELAESTR
BENIIMEM BT REENREEER

impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is L E - R AR E A S IBE ER R
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that HEE

is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,

and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other

assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

L EEREER KRR - AR
A FEREESARENETD -

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19 Employee benefits 19 ~ B T &

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee

benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined
contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under
defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities
during the accounting period of when employees render
service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or

capitalized in costs of related assets.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERNME AR ()

20 Revenue 20 ~ A

The revenue is recognized when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity, and the contract between
the Group and the customer meets the following conditions:
All parties have approved the contract and have committed
to perform their obligations; The contract identifies the
rights and obligations of the parties relating to the goods
transferred or the provision of services; The contract has a
clear payment terms associated with the transferred goods;
The contract has commercial substance, which means the
contract will change risk, time distribution or amount of
the future cash flows; The consideration that the Group is
entitled to for the transfer of goods to customers is likely to

be recovered.

From the effective date of the contract, the Group identifies
each individual performance obligations and allocates
the transaction price proportionally to each individual
performance obligation based on the relative proportion of
the individual selling price of the commodities promised by
each individual performance obligation. When determining
the transaction price, the impact of variable consideration,
major financing components in the contract, non-cash

consideration, and customer consideration are considered.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20 Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

For each individual performance obligation in the contract,
the Group will recognize the transaction price allocated
to the individual performance obligation as revenue in
accordance with the performance progress period during
the relevant performance period, if one of the following
conditions is met: the customer obtains and consumes the
economic benefits of the Group’s performance as the Group
perform it; the customer can control the products under
construction in the course of the Group’s performance;
The goods produced during the performance of the Group
have irreplaceable uses and the Group has the right to
receive payments for the portion of the performance that
has been completed to date. In addition, the performance
of the contract is determined by the input method or the
output method according to the nature of the transferred
goods. When the performance of the contract cannot be
reasonably determined, if the expenses incurred by the
Group are expected to be compensated, the revenue will
be recognized according to the amount of costs incurred
until the performance of the contract can be achieved

reasonably.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()

20 Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

If one of the above conditions is not met, the Group will
distribute the transaction price confirmation revenue of the
individual performance obligation when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity. When determining
whether the customer has obtained control of the
commodity, the Group will consider the following situations:
the Group has the current right to collect the goods, which
means that the customer has a current payment obligation
for the goods; the Company has transferred the legal title of
the item to the customer, which means that the customer
has already own the legal title of the item; the Group has
transferred the goods in kind to the customer, that is, the
customer has possessed the goods in kind; the Group has
transferred the main risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the customer, that is, the customer has obtained
the main risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
customer has accepted the goods. The other indications

that the customer has obtained control of the goods.

20.1 Revenue from sales of goods

The Group’s merchandise sales are mainly divided
into retail sales and wholesale sales. Revenues of
retail sales are recognized, when goods are sold to
customers, the customers receive the goods, and
the Group collects payments of goods or has a right
to collect payments of goods; in addition, revenue
of wholesale sales are recognized, when the goods
are sent to clients and the clients check, receive and
confirm the goods, and the Group collects payments

of goods or has a right to collect payments of goods.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EESTBERANETEEE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20 Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

BamEERA ()

20.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued) (1)

As for the business that selling goods with award
credits for customers, when selling the goods,
the Group will apportion the purchase price or the
receivables of the goods between the income from
the sale of the goods and the individual sales price
determined by the award credits, and The amount of
the purchase price or the receivables minus the bonus
points shall be recognized as revenue. The award

credits shall be recognized as deferred income.

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

award credits expected to be redeemed.
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20.2 Revenue from rendering of services (2) BEEBERA
When the amount of revenue from rendering of services ERHEHEWARNS BT 5t
can be reliably measured, the associated economic 2 HEMLERNERAER

benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of
completion of the transaction can be measured reliably
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the
transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from

rendering of services is recognized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()
20 ~ WA (#)

20 Revenue (Continued)

RHEBRA(E)

20.2 Revenue from rendering of services (Continued) 2)

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and
the service costs incurred are regarded as the current
cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated

as anticipated, no revenue is recognized.

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the
promotional activities. When the various services have
been provided and related economic benefit probably
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of

service is recognized.

20.3 Rental Income

The operating leases of the Group as a lessor
mainly include leasing, sublease of properties and
counters, etc., using the straight-line method or other
systematic and reasonable methods to recognize the
lease receipts from operating leases as rental income
during each period of the lease term. The initial direct
costs related to operating leases are capitalized when
incurred and included in the current profit and loss in
installments on the same basis as the confirmation of
rental income throughout the lease period. Obtained
variable lease payments related to operating leases
that are not included in the lease receipts are included

in the current profit and loss when they actually occur.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group,
which do not include any capital contribution from the
government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income. The Group defines government
grants that are acquired for the acquisition or otherwise
formation of long-term assets as government grants related
to assets, and the rest of them are defined as government
grants related to income. If the government documents do
not have a specific classification, the grants will be divided
into government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income by the following methods: (1) the
government documents confirm the specific programme
of the grants, according to the proportion, which based
on the grants expend on assets and expenses separately
in the specific programme’s budget, it is used to divide
the government grants. Meanwhile, the division ratio will
be reviewed at each balance sheet date and changed it if
necessary. (2) The government documents do not confirm
the specific programme and only have a general explanation
for the programme, which will be regard as government
grants related to income. If a government grant is a transfer
of a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received
or receivable, otherwise, a non-monetary asset will be
measured at fair value. If the fair value is not accurate, the
grant is measured at nominal amount and credited to the

current profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21

Government grants (Continued)

The government grants of the Group are normally
recognized and measured at the moment they are actually
received. However, if they have conclusive evidence to
prove that they can correspond the relevant provisions
of the financial support policies and they will receive the
financial support funds in the future, it is measured by the
amount of money receivable. The government grants that
measured by the amount of money receivable will meet
the following conditions simultaneously: (1) the amount of
receivables have been confirmed by the documents, which
issued by the related authorities of the government, or the
Group calculate reasonable receivables depending on the
relevant provisions of officially released Measures for the
Administration of Financial Funds, as well as, there is no
significant uncertainty about the amount; (2) According
to the regulations based on ‘Government Information
Disclosure Ordinance’ issued by local finance department
officially, the financial support project and Measures for
the Administration of Financial Funds should be initiative
publicly. The formulation of this management approach is
general and benefit for all enterprise, instead of a specific
enterprise, which means the company who meets the
specified conditions can apply it; (3) the approval of the
related grants has promised the disbursement period, and
the payment is guaranteed by the corresponding budget.
Thus, they have a reasonable guarantee about the grants

and will receive them within the prescribed time.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21

Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income, it is allocated to the profit or loss for the
period over the useful life of related assets reasonably and
systematically, or offset the book value of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized
as deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over
the period in which the related costs are recognized, or
offset the related cost; if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses and losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current

period, or offset the related cost.

At the same time, if the government grants contain both
assets related and income related, the accounting treatment
will depend on the different parts of government grants; if it
is difficult to distinguish, the whole government grants are

classified as the income-related government grants.

The government grants related to daily activities of the
Group relying on the essence of economic business,
the grant is recognized in other income or offset related
expenses of cost, otherwise, recognized in non-operating

income or non-operating expenses.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21 Government grants (Continued)

When the government grants that confirmed by the Group
required to be returned, if they have the balance of related
deferred income, they can offset the book value of them,
the other government grants are classified as current profits
and losses or adjust the book value of the assets. If not, the
government grants are included in the current profits and

losses directly.

22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFBHEE ELEFEHEE
(Continued) (#&)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(2) EEZFEHEERELZEHARE

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profits or
taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred tax
liability is not recognized. In addition, for deductible
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHBEAR A ()

22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFIBREE ELFEHAR

(Continued) (%)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized.In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be deducted except to the extent that
it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFBHEE ELEFEHEE
(Continued) (#&)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(2) EEZFEHEERELZEHARE

(Continued)

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be
carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible losses

and tax credits can be deducted.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to
tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in

which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount
is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable

income is available.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()

22 EEFIBREE ELFEHAR
(%)

22 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

22.3 Income tax FriEB&H

3

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Income tax is recognized as an income or an expense
and included in the income statement for the current
period, except to the extent that the current income tax
related to a transaction or events which is recognized
under other comprehensive income or directly
recorded in equity, deferred tax recorded under other
comprehensive income or equity, and deferred tax
arises from a business combination that have impact

on the carrying value of goodwill.

22.4 Offsetting of income taxes

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 Lease

Leases are defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for

a period of time in exchange for consideration.

23.1 The Group as a lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that simplify processing and low-value

asset leases.

The right-of-use asset measured Initially at cost,
the cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise: @
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; @ any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; @ any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; @ an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The straight-
line method is used by the Group to withdraw
depreciation of the right-of-use assets based on the
lease term specified in the lease contract from the
lease start date; and the Group determines whether
the right-of-use asset is impaired in accordance with
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 8 — Impairment of Assets” and accounts for the
recognized impairment losses (refer to Note IV. 18

“Long-term asset impairment”).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESTBERME AR ()

23 Lease (Continued) 23 - HE(#E)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) ZFEFERBREALRHEEELE
(%)

A lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Lease payments is the payments made by
a lessee to a lessor relating to the right to use an
underlying asset during the lease term, comprising the
following: @ fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives; @ variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; @ the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and @ payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. ®
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees. The Group calculates the
interest expense of the lease liability for each period
of the lease term according to a fixed periodic interest
rate, and it is included in the current profit or loss or

capitalized into the value of the relevant assets.
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C BEESRBRENEEEE (@)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 Lease (Continued) 23 ~HHEE)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) FEFEERRBEALREEEL
(%)

The variable lease payments that are not included in
the measurement of the lease liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss or related asset costs in the period in

which they are incurred.

For short-term leases and low-value assets leases, the
Group has chosen to simplify the processing and to
include the relevant asset costs or current profits and
losses in a straight-line method or other systematically
reasonable method during each period of the lease

term.

When the lease scope, lease consideration, and lease
term change other than the original contract terms
occur, the Group will treat the lease change as a
separate lease or as a separate lease for accounting
treatment. When it is not a separate lease, the
company re-measures the lease liability based on the
present value of the lease payment and the revised
discount rate on the effective date of the lease change,
and adjusts the book value of the right-of-use asset
accordingly. The book value of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero. However, if the lease liability
still needs to be further reduced, the Company will
include the remaining amount in the current profit and

loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBERNME AR ()

23 Lease (Continued) 23 - HE(#E)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) ZFEFERBREALRHEEELE
(%)
All lease contracts of the Group, as long as they AEBHZIHABEEGR  REF
meet the scope and conditions of the “Regulations on AFEMAEBEEEAESRES

ETERIRARE ) (B &[2020]105% ) i
R E MGG ED - REEOHE
EHEEREAR D REARTE
AR E S ¥72021 6 A30 H AIAY E
NHEENKE  GEZEREENE
ERREBREHEE MR

Accounting Treatment of Rental Concessions Related
to the New Coronary Pneumonia Epidemic” (Cai Kuai
[2021] No. 10), that is the lease consideration after
concession is reduced or basically unchanged from
before the concession; the concession is only for

the lease payments payable before 30 June 2022;

after considering qualitative and quantitative factors, HrmEXREL) HESRE - &
it is determined that there are no major changes in Y EMESRME - B20205F1A

other terms and conditions of the lease, the following 1B EEERAIN T E AR
simplified methods will be adopted for rent reductions,
deferred payment, and other rent reductions since 1

January 2021:

Continue to calculate the interest expense of the M B PR B AR AT — B IT IR R 5T
lease liability at the same discount rate as before EHEBBENMNEEBRILFAR

HiE s EERRERBEN ™
WJRE AR EEITRI R
ESREME - AEEREZW
HMeERB2HENRE  £2
PR a2 h ik 5 R B IR A & S & 75

the reduction and include it in the current profit and
loss, continue to use the same method as before
the reduction to withdraw depreciation and other
subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset.

The Group treats the reduced or exempted rent as a

variable lease payment. When the original rent payment
obligation is reached, such as a reduction agreement,
the cash amount is discounted at the discount rate
before reduction to offset the relevant asset costs or

expenses, and the lease liability is adjusted accordingly;
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 Lease (Continued) 23 ~HHEE)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) FEFEERRBEALREEEL
(&)
If the payment of rent is delayed, the lease liability R e AR R E EN AN E
recognized in the previous period shall be offset when At lEess BRI
the actual payment is made. HAR B E M S R BER K
B - 5B BRI R R AT R R R
B RE T FRIE o
23.2 The Group as a lessor (2) FEEEBHBEALFHEEKE
23.2.1The classification of leases O MWHESHE
A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either AEFEEHEMKRA  ER
a finance lease or an operating lease, based RHEMELE - BHED BRb
on the substance of the transaction at the EHEMKLHEE - gEMH
commencement date. A finance lease refers to S EREELBBRTHE
that a lease transfers substantially all the risks and ELEMBERBANLETS
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying HRBMBHOESE - &2
asset. An operating lease is the other lease that HE - BEKRBEHRELIN
except a finance lease. HHEMBEE -
23.2.20perating leases © KEHE
A lessor shall recognise lease payments from AEBRAEGENEME
operating leases as rental income for each period HEEMNEE  BREHRE
of the lease term on either a straight-line basis or K E WGREE T RR A TH & H
another systematic basis. The initial direct costs NEHBHES KA - B
related to operating leases are capitalized as EHEMBENTREEER
incurred, and it is included in the current profit REBEERTFUERL £
and loss in the same period as the confirmed AR EHERNERARERE
rental income, during the entire lease period. The TWARBBEE S BT A
variable lease payments that are not included in EHEZ c MEMELEHE
the lease payments related to the operating leases EEBEMRTAHERFE
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. WA EHEENTE - RER

TERFTAZHER -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

s BEEETTERAME A (&)
23 Lease (Continued) 23 - HE(#E)

23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued) (2) FEFERBLHBEALRHEEEKE

(#)
23.2.3Finance leases ® FEMHE
At the commencement date, the Group confirms REEHFAEAR - AEERE
the financing lease receivable and terminates the REWRERER - WKL
recognition of the finance lease assets. WRAMEHEERE -
The finance lease receivables are initially measured FEU B E & FUARE RS

at the sum of the un-guaranteed residual value
and the lease receivables that have not been
received on the lease beginning date, based on
the sum of the present value of the leased interest
rate, which comprises the following: A. fixed
payments and in-substance fixed payments, less
any lease incentives payable; B. variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; C. the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; D. payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease; E. any residual value guarantees provided
to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the
lessee or a third party unrelated to the lessor that
is financially capable of discharging the obligations

under the guarantee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 Lease (Continued)

23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued)

23.2.3Finance leases (Continued)

The variable lease payments received by the
Group that are not included in the measurement
of the net amount of the leased investment are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

24 Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates

(1) Changes in accounting policies

7)

The impact of Enterprise Accounting Standards

Explanation No.14 on the Company

On 2 February 2021, the Ministry of Finance
issued “No.14 of Enterprise Accounting Standards
Explanation”. (Cai kuai [2021]No.1, hereinafter
referred to as “Explanation 14”), form 2 February

2022 (hereinafter referred to as “Transport day”).

The Company implement Explanation No.14 from
Transport day, and it has no significant impact on

financial statements during the reporting date.

AN
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEEEME AR (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24 Changes in significant accounting policies and 24 ~-EEGHEX - SHATTNEEE)

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (1) EFHEEE(E)
2) The impact of Enterprise Accounting Standards 2) HITEXREIERBEZS
Explanation No.15 on the Company U RN A
The Ministry of Finance issued “No.15 of 2021912 A318 - B EpEs
Enterprise Accounting Standards Explanation”. TR ERRESE5
(Cai kuai [2021]N0.35, hereinafter referred to 5% (B €12021]355% © AT~
as “Explanation 15”) from 31 December 2021. I EREE15TR]) - RNEMh 2
Explanation No.15 is specified for a ranking AREE - BE1STE AR
through an internal settlement center, financial NEBEEFR L - BBERAE
company, etc. HERNAIRKEEUASE
TEFRGE—EBOYRET
THE -
The Company implement Explanation No.15 from RKAFIE2021F12A31H R
31 December 2021, and it has no significant WITERRE159R - BU1THRIE15
impact on a comparable financial statements. RE RS RERESE

=474
REE o

(2) Changes in accounting estimates (2) EFtiGrEE

None. &= o
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V. TAXATION

1. Major taxes and tax rates
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A -HIR

1. FEBERBE

Tax types Tax basis Tax rate

ABKIE BE
Value-added tax Note 1 13%/9%/6%/5%/3%
EEH F

Consumption tax
HBH

City construction and maintenance tax

W R R

Education surcharge

HEENM

Local education surcharge

Taxable sales subject to consumption tax
HETERUIA

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
B meEH

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
EX e

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax

5%

5%/7%

3%

2%

WAHE EHM R

Corporate income tax Taxable income See table below

REREH FEMM G FRTE
Tax rate of

Taxable entities Tax basis income tax

B EE BRI BB E

Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Company Limited Note 2 16.5%

X FABBERAF 2

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Note 2 16.5%

BB TEMNER A 2

Chaopi International Trading (Hong Kong) Company Limited Note 2 16.5%

PRERE S (FH)BRAA T2

Others 25%

Hith & R~

Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the 1 RAVEET R HIEB R T A ER

BHEREE - SRR BRIRIEIARTUERE
AAEMEEREAE -

output value-added tax after deduction of input value-
added tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a

basis of sales resolved by relevant tax laws.

Note 2: The Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong 22 ARRZFARBXFABTEERA
A - BTN ER AR LRI ER
B (EB)ERABAETBTME LM
RAE EBEBRUCEREE X
FS T % 516.5% °

Company Limited, Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company
Limited and Chaopi International Trading (Hong Kong)
Company Limited were registered and established in Hong
Kong and in accordance with Hong Kong taxation law its

corporate income tax rate was 16.5%.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREREE
STATEMENTS
All AMOUNTS IN RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED. PREEEIAEAIN  REANSHEEMIHRARE

T o

The following note items (including the main item notes of the NTHERBEE(SEARMBRREZEAT
company’s financial statements) unless otherwise specified, B)BRIEFRIEEL - [F4 38202141 A1
“beginning of the year” refers to 1 January 2021, “ending of the B[ RX]#2021F12H318 [ EFF
year” refers to 31 December 2021, and “end of the previous K |3E2020F 12 A31H : [ A4 |452021 F
year” refers to 31 December 2020; “This year” refers to 2021, € o [ B |452020%F F -

and “previous year” refers to 2020.

1. Cash and bank balances 1 -E¥ES
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F —E-FTF
ltem 1EH +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Cash on hand BEFRE 7,604,708 7,980,955
Cash in bank RITIER 1,010,857,384 1,024,398,802
Other cash and cash equivalents Hith & &£ (531)

(Note 1) 107,351,945 157,443,568
Total A5t 1,125,814,037 1,189,823,325
Including: Overseas deposits B ERAEEINO R IEARER

(Note 2) (7x2) 55,852,703 20,743,514
Note 1: As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financing 1 R2021F12A31H - "EBMNFAE

margin deposit is RMB107,351,945 (31 December EZIBRINRESHERBARE
2020: RMB157,443,568), the margin deposits with use 107,351,94570( 2020512 A31H + A
restrictions was RMB72,321,243 (31 December 2020: R#157,443,56870) © EP ZHRF
RMB116,101,904), and details were referred to Note SERABARET2,321,2437T(2020F
(Vl) 20. Notes payable, the loan margin deposit was 12A31H : AR¥116,101,9047T) *
RMB35,030,702 (31 December 2020: RMB41,341,664). 2 RWEEN  20[EFRE - BRIRE

S FER A ARE35,030,7027T( 20204F
12A31H : AR¥41,341,6647T) °

Note 2: Bank deposits placed overseas are the money deposited T2 1 FRAEEINGIRITE R AT AR EIE
by the subsidiary Chaopi International Trading (Hong Kong) BES(BB)ERATFHINEEESR
Company Limited in HSBC Hong Kong Bank. RITEVFRIE o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

S

N B BEBREEERE)

Notes receivable 2 EWRERE
Classification of notes receivable FEREBZENSE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E=-—F —ETF
ltem HE +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—H”
Bank acceptance RITHRHIESR 1,535,600 5,117,315
Trade acceptance EEAGIEE - 1,500,000
Total At 1,535,600 6,617,315
Accounts receivable 3 FEEWERR
2021.12.31 2020 12 31
—E-—F —ETF
ltem TH H +=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Accounts receivable FEUAR SR 936,229,470 968,168,935
Total A&t 936,229,470 968,168,935
(1) 31 December 2021 (1) 2021%12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category R R R D S B
2021.12.31
ZEC-E+ZA=t-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
RESE EREXER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) Net book value
Category F $41(%) €8 GHRIHI%) HEER
Accounts receivable with single provison ~ BIESHE(EBIBLEAY
for credit loss R 837,001 - 837,001 100 -
Accounts receivable with credit loss provision AR IREERKEES
based on portfolio BWER 976,524,055 100 40,294,585 4 936,229,470
Total 977,361,056 100 41,131,586 4 936,229,470
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3 BWERMRE)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2021 (Continued) (1) 2021%412531H (%)

The aging of accounts receivable is as follows FEUER AR B N T
2021.12.31
ZEC-F+ZAZT-H
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion% allowance  Net book value
Aging i Ex £ 4(%) EREXER REEE
Within 1 year 1ENA 893,486,191 92 - 893,486,191
1-2 years 1226 17,114,839 2 831,981 16,282,858
2-3 years 2E3F 13,959,645 1 1,568,202 12,391,443
3-4 years 3R4F 13,596,552 1 3,597,002 9,999,550
4-5 years 4255 8,138,856 1 4,069,428 4,069,428
Over 5 years 5E L 31,064,973 3 31,064,973 -
Total At 977,361,056 100 41,131,586 936,229,470
Credit loss provision ERBRERNER
Change in this year
rEEBHEE
Opening Recovery or Resale or Ending
balance Accrual reversal write-off balance
Category &l EN6BE iR WEREE  BHAAE ERBE
Payment g3 33,330,586 13,762,257 4,305,551 1,655,706 41,131,586
Total At 33,330,586 13,762,257 4,305,551 1,655,706 41,131,586
In the portfolio, accounts receivable with provision for AT BEREBEOMAIRER
credit losses based on the aging analysis method 18 R RN BR 70
2021.12.31
—g-—%+-A=+-8
Accounts Credit loss
receivable allowance Proportion%
Aging BRiER BRI ERBKXERE TR EEAI (%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 893,486,191 - 0
1-2 years 1226 16,733,032 450,174 3
2-3 years 25 3F 13,768,270 1,376,827 10
3-4 years 3E4F 13,332,733 3,333,183 25
4-5 years 4555 8,138,856 4,069,428 50
Over 5 years 5FE M F 31,064,973 31,064,973 100
Total a5t 976,524,055 40,294,585
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMERREEGRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERR(E)
(1) 31 December 2021 (Continued) (1) 20214F12H31H (%)
Accounts receivable with single provision for credit loss BIEFHRE R B R EENEUERRK
2021.12.31
—g=-£+=A=t-R

Accounts Credit loss
Company receivable allowance  Proportion% Reason for provision
B &R EHER  GREBXER  HHRIAI(%) FREH
Yizhiyao (Tianjin) Technology Development Co., Ltd. 573,091 573,091 100 Cannot be recovered
—RE(RRHERRERAA SREREENE
Datong Yiyang Commercial Co., Ltd. 263,910 263,910 100 Cannot be recovered
AREFBZERAR SREAEENE
Total
At 837,001 837,001
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2020

N BRI BHREEERE)

3 FEWRRRR(E)

(2) 2020%12H31H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEURBR SR $E 1 7R
2020.12.31
ZECREFCA=T-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
BEGE EREXER
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)  Net book value
Category B3 2% 551(%) 28 FiRRAI(%) EEER
Accounts recelvable with single provision B2 (EBBA £
for credt loss RS 2,563,822 - 2,563,822 100 -
Accounts receivable with creditloss  HABASHEERBLERL
provision based on portfolio G 998,935,699 100 30,766,764 3 968,168,935
Total =h 1,001,499,521 100 38,330,586 3 968,168,935
The aging of accounts receivable is as follows PR SR AR e 20 T
2020.12.31
ZEIEEtZA=TH
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging friie °F £ 1(%) RREXER REEE
Within 1 year 1ER 894,933,285 89 350,789 894,582,496
1-2 years 1228 43,108,254 4 1,510,045 41,598,209
2-3 years 2%23F 16,621,697 2 1,879,666 14,742,031
3-4 years 324F 9,197,538 1 2,316,683 6,380,855
4-5 years 4Z5F 20,780,152 2 10,414,808 10,365,344
Over 5 years 5FMF 16,858,595 2 16,858,595 -
Total = 1,001,499,521 100 33,330,586 968,168,935
EREXRERFNBER
Credit loss provision
Change in this year
rEEHEE
Recovery or Resale or
Opening balance Accrual reversal write-off  Ending balance
Category £ ENNE HES WEEE EiEanis FERBE
Payment & 21,074,518 12,362,246 106,178 - 33,330,586
Total At 21,074,518 12,362,246 106,178 - 33,330,586
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B BHRREBR TR (E)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2020 (Continued)

In the portfolio, accounts receivable with provision for

3

FE W B R (48)

(2) 20204128318 (%)
HMEF - BIRE DT ETIRIER

credit losses based on the aging analysis method B EE M R TR
2020.12.31
—ZEEF+_A=+—H
Accounts Credit loss
receivable allowance Proportion%
Aging ARie FEUER K ERBRER FTHREEHI(%)
Within 1 year 1FE LA 894,582,497 - 0
1-2 years 18224 42,884,751 1,286,542 3
2-3 years 2FE3F 16,380,034 1,638,003 10
3-4 years 3E44F 9,174,473 2,293,618 25
4-5 years 4EBF 20,730,687 10,365,344 50
Over 5 years 5% A+ 15,183,257 15,183,257 100
Total &3t 998,935,699 30,766,764
(3) The top five accounts receivable of the year-end (3) BREGEBENFEARGEIAER
balance aggregated by the owing party FEW R 1ER
31 December 2021 2021%12H831H
Percentage of Year-end amount
total accounts of credit loss
Company Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%) provision
fEEYRR AR BRAXER
B ER RBASEEHE E2 F41(%) EREE
Wumart south development Co.,Ltd. (Wu-mart’) Independent third party 266,925,066 28 5,660,450
WEBRERABETLAATERE NE]) BUE=H
Bejing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (*Jingdong’) Independent third party 137,672,019 15 358,872
URRRULEZERATDATHRERR]) BUE=H
Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (*Yonghu?’) Independent third party 53,908,865 6 27,274
KBBEERR AT R N0E]) BUE=H
Vipshop Independent third party 43,551,773 5 -
mg BUE=7H
Carrefour Independent third party 33,006,263 4 347,462
FER BUE=H
Total A3t 534,963,986 58 6,394,058
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BBREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) The top five accounts receivable of the year-end

balance aggregated by the owing party (Continued)

31 December 2020

3

BRI ()
(3) BRFTBEHFERGHEITEN

FERIRH R ()
2020512 A31H

Proportion of the
amount to the  Closing balance
total accounts of credit loss
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
o - ERMEREESD  ERERER
BB BASEBE °F ELA1(%) FREH
Wu-mart Independent third party 297,225,127 29 3,693,657
nx BUE=H
Jingdong Independent third party 130,189,025 13 225,107
7R BUE=H
Yonghui Independent third party 40,743,964 4 47,528
KIE BUE=H
Shanxi MeetAll Chain Supermarket Go,, Ltd. (*MestAl’)  Independent third party 29,249,827 3 -
WEERIFEERTRNBRAR I TERI T  BuFE=H
Wuhan Watsons Personal Products Store Co., Ltd.
("Watsons”) Independent third party 28,028,703 3 121
REREREARRAEERARATHRERER])  BuE=jH
Total =i 525,436,646 52 3,966,413

The Group normally allows a credit period of no more
than 90 days to its customers with a longer credit

period of 180 days granted to its major customers.

On 31 December 2021, the total accounts receivable
due from Wu-mart, Carrefour, Beijing Lotus
Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd., Yonghui, Jingdong,
Tianjin jumei.com Technology Co., Ltd, Vipshop,
BHG and MeetAll amounted to RMB219,608,971 (31
December 2020: RMB183,096,337) were limited by
being factored to secure certain bank loans of the

Group.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AU BmKREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

3 BWERMRE)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

BRNT BRR R F R A B & Y

(3) The top five accounts receivable of the year-end (3)

balance aggregated by the owing party (Continued)

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for
amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts receivable
factoring to the Group. HSBC collected the entire
amount of accounts receivable and is only required
to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess of
the loan amount. As the Group has not transferred
specifically identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate
share of all or part of the cash flows or part of
specifically identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot
apply the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

Since factored accounts receivable is on full recourses
basis, the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating of these receivables, it
continues to recognize the receivables and has
recognized the cash received from the bank as

accounts receivable secured loan (See Note (VI) 19).

FEWRR* 1557 (&)

RIBA LB HE QRITRBOMRIE
W& BEERTEAEEREED
HBIBEMEFRESR70%H R
TTER - (B RTUHRE W BR K
2HEHE  ERAEEXNESR
EREEOE - ERKERER
BRRERETHE - AIHRM
D BAREBREHRREEREN—
ELHPINBRERETEE - ATk
REOW—ELH - Bt - N
B T BESTE TR IE B FE U IR SRR D
JEFAL L RERAEDY o

RIRTHZREN RUKIERE
BRE AEBYAREBZEE
Yo BR 3K P A b O B KR B A 3R
B HitEEEREKER - I
A IRTT I B B0 3 & HERR B B W AR
HRIBLEFR(HIFER - 19) ©

Factoring accounts receivable on

full recourses basis

FRERNEVIRRRE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—B-—fF —ECEF
+=A=+-B| +=ZA=t+-AH
Carrying amount of transferred ~ EREAEMNKREEE
assets 219,608,971 183,096,337
Carrying amount of related EEBERNEREER
liabilities 5,775,305 13,392,510
Net book value BB 213,833,666 169,703,827
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4

Prepayments

(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging

&

N BRI BHREEERE)

4~ FENFKE

(1) BEHBLZIER ST

analysis
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
ZEC-E+ZAZt-8 ZECEETZA=T-H
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging x| E (%) £ ELAI(%)
Within 1 year 1EUR 824,722,793 100 845,291,921 100
Total 824,722,793 100 845,291,921 100

On 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there

was no prepayment from shareholders who held voting

shares of more than 5% (including 5%).

Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments
31 December 2021

Name of entity
B EHE

Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd.
FELRRBRHERREEAR

Beijing Boao Huarong Technology and
Trade Co., Ltd.
IRERERNEERAA

Mars Wrigley Candy (China) Co., Ltd.
BREEER(PE)BERAR

Guizhou Moutai Wine Sales Co., Ltd.
ENF R BHEEBRAT

Mondelez Shanghai Food Coporate
Management Co., Ltd
BHERREEER(LB)ABRAR

Relationship with the Group

EAKEE%
Independent third party
BUE=H
Independent third party
BUE=H

Independent third party
BUE=H

Independent third party
BIE=H

Independent third party

2021412 A31H K20205 12 A
318 @ A HREPEAMHALR
£E5% (55%) A _EFRERD B
fRFRAFRIE ©

(2) BENHREEFRGEIREN
I HIESR
2021%12831H

Amount Unsettled reason

202,924,400 Haven't received goods
AR E &

132,485,075 Haven't received goods
ARYE| &)

37,997,766 Haven't received goods
ARUE &

34,047,464 Haven't received goods
i ARYE &)

33,700,353 Haven't received goods

HARKEEY

Total

441,155,058
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMERREEGRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

Prepayments (Continued)

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2020

4 -

BNREE)

R HIER ()
2020412 431H

(2) BENHREEFRGENLEN

Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount  Unsettled reason

B AR ERREBR S ALERA

Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 254,675,501 Haven't received goods

HERRRERHEERALAT BUE=H HARMEI &N

Guizhou Moutai Wine Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 54,852,180 Haven't received goods

EMFABRERRAR BUE=H HARMEI &N

Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 45,672,620 Haven't received goods

ERTAF IR EREA LT Bug=h HARMEI SN

Yihai Kerry Food Marketing Co., Ltd. Independent third party 40,948,246 Haven't received goods

HERRRREHERAR Bug=h HAMEI &N

Mondelez Shanghai Food Corporate Management Co., Ltd  Independent third party 34,897,399 Haven't received goods

EARMAEEE(LE)ARAR Bug=h HAMEI &N

Total Bt 430,945,946
Other receivables 5 HfnpEWR

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F -

ltem 15 H +=A=+—~H +=-A=+—~H
Other receivables HoAth UK 165,898,618 195,341,949
Interest receivables FEURIB - -
Dividend receivables P WA A ) - -
Total = 165,898,618 195,341,949
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables EERIER
(1) 31 December 2021 (1) 20214 12A31H
Presentation of other receivables by category H YR B R
2021.12.31
ZB--F+ZAZt-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REE EREAER Net book
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category E5 i EA1(%) 8 HREA(%) FEERE
Other receivables with single provision for BERERBAERN
credit loss Hi W 942,134 1 942,134 100 -
Other receivables with credit loss provision RAAHRERRLEER
based on portfolio E b 168,662,310 99 2,763,692 2 165,898,618
Total At 169,604,444 100 3,705,826 2 165,898,618
Presentation of other receivables according to aging H el R BRI T
analysis
2021.12.31
ZE--F+ZA=1-H
Carrying Credit loss
amount Proportion% allowance  Net book value
Aging iR k2 L%  EREXER REER
Within 1 year 1ELAR 151,081,968 89 - 151,081,968
1-2 years 1226 8,808,692 5 262,346 8,546,346
2-3 years 2R3F 4,095,394 2 800,204 3,295,190
3-4 years REY LS 3,749,626 2 1,087,274 2,662,352
4-5 years 4EHE 933,764 1 621,002 312,762
Over 5 years 5ELAE 935,000 1 935,000 -
Total A% 169,604,444 100 3,705,826 165,898,618
The detail of credit loss allowance ZERBRERENER

The amount change in this year
FERHEH
Recovery or Resale or
2021.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off ~ 2021.12.31

Category <] EN8E iR KEREE  EHSEE FAME
Rent and promotion ReRiEEE 10,437,804 2,524,568 431,540 8825006 3,705,826
Total At 10,437,804 2,524,568 431,540 8,825,006 3,705,826
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMERREEGRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1)

31 December 2021 (Continued)

Other receivables that are individually significant and

5

Hitb WK ()
AR ER ()

(1) 2021412831 H (4)
BEHEEREREENEMmER

for which credit loss allowance has been assessed =
individually

Carrying Credit loss
Content of other receivables amount allowance Rate% Reason

BREXE

RftERHAE RESE BeE  HELA%) B
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 184,784 184,784 100 Cannot be recovered
BIIEZ5(LB)ERA CRRmENE
China Resources 49,288 49,288 100 Cannot be recovered
28 CRRmENE
Dumex Baby Food Co Ltd 203,922 203,922 100 Cannot be recovered
SEREENTRDED CRRmENE
Naisili Lishui Sales Co., Ltd. 304,140 304,140 100 Cannot be recovered
MEEBKEERRAR CRRmENE
Guangzhou Qunhe Cosmetics Co., Ltd. 200,000 200,000 100 Cannot be recovered
BMNERIERARAR CRRmELE
Total 942,134 942,134

i
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(1) 31 December 2021(Continued) (1) 2021F12H31H(#&)
In the portfolio, other receivables for which credit Hew - BIERDTEIRER
loss provisions are made based on the aging analysis 1B A EL At LR
method
2021.12.31
“R--F+-A=t-H
Other receivables  Credit loss allowance Proportion%
Aging iR HitEWE ERBLER FHRAI(%)
Within 1 year 1EBI 151,081,068 - 0
1-2 years 1826 8,808,692 262,346 3
2-3 years pEX]S 3,661,323 366,133 10
3-4 years 3Z4E 3,549,804 887,451 25
4-5 years 4Z5E 625,523 312,762 50
Over 5 years 5ELE 935,000 935,000 100
Total A& 168,662,310 2,763,692
Provision for bad debts BEREBTHRER

The first stage The second stage  The third stage
£-[ER EZRB £ZRER
Expected credit  Expected credit

loss for the entire  loss for the entire

Expected credit duration (no  duration (credit
loss in the next  credit impairment  impairment has
Bad debt provision BRER 12 months occurred) occurred) Total

BREEREEAE REFSRMENE
AR1ERRAE BRX(ABEER RAX(CRERR

REX BE) W) ait
Opening Balance ENRE 3,156,552 - 7,281,252 10,437,804
The beginning balance s in the current period IR - - - -
~ Move to the second stage —E\E-RE - - - -
- Move to the third stage —#EAE= E“F“ - - - -
- Back to the second stage —BEE-RE - - - -
- Back to the first stage —#EE-E5 - - - -
Withdrawal for this period RER 2,524,568 - - 2,524,568
Reversal for this period REER 431,540 - - 431,540
Resell for this period TEEf - - - -
Written off for this period RERH 2,713,668 - 6,111,338 8,825,006
Other changes £t &) - - - -
Ending balance ERBE 2,535,912 - 1,169,914 3,705,826
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5

Details of other receivables (Continued)

@

31 December 2020

Presentation of other receivables by category

SOV BHRKRIERERE)

Hitb WK ()
AR ER ()

2) 2020%F12H31H
HAh UKD SRR

2020.12.31
-+ -A=1-R
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REHE BRBRER Net book
Amount - Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category Ly Ex £LA1(%) £8  FHELOI(%) REER
Other receivables with single provision for B JE:HE(E A EX &
credit loss Et LR 7,713,272 4 7281251 94 432,021
Other receivables with credit loss provision ;ziﬁ HHEERBLREN
based on portfolio Et Y 198,066,481 9% 3,156,558 2 194,909,928
Total At 205,779,753 100 10,437,804 5 195,341,949
Presentation of other receivables according to aging HipEW G BRI T
analysis
2020.12.31
“E-ZF+-A=+—-H
Carrying Credit loss
amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging BRiR x| %) ERBXEE EEERE
Within 1 year EN 146,823,610 71 1,886,588 144,937,022
1-2 years 1226 46,222,990 22 2,001,568 44,221,422
2-3 years 253F 5,523,281 3 761,018 4,762,263
3-4 years 3Z4F 1,623,101 1 633,880 989,221
4-5 years 4EHE - - - -
Over 5 years 5EL 5,586,771 3 5,154,750 432,021
Total A&t 205,779,753 100 10,437,804 195,341,949
The detail of credit loss allowance ERBEXERENER
The amount change in this year
Recovery or  Resale or
2020.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off  2020.12.31
Category Ll FHRE PR WESERE BEARE  FARE
Rent and promotion HekieEE 5821937 4,677,518 7,606 54,045 10,437,804
Total Al 5,821,937 4,677,518 7,606 54,045 10,437,804
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HiEWRE)

Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)

(2) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (2) 20204 1231 H(Continued)
Other receivables that are individually significant and BIRFHREREREENHMmEK
for which credit loss allowance has been assessed B
individually

Carrying  Credit loss
Content of other receivables amount  allowance Rate% Reason
 EEEx RN
HitERFTAA FHEsE  HEeE (%) 2
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 4,656,771 4,224,750 91 Full bad debt provision for the part
unrecovered, according to the
agreement
TREEERETSER AT REEHE - URUERHD HER
R
Beijing Flamenco Catering Co., Ltd. 1,883,838 1,883,838 100 Revoke the business license
I RmHHFI R ERERRF BIHEERR
Beijing Dachu Xiaocai Hotel Co., Ltd. 2,750 2,750 100 Revoke the business license
IR NEEEBR AR BHEERR
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 184,784 184,784 100 Cannot be recovered
BIEZS (LB ERAR CRREZND
China Resources 49,289 49,289 100 Cannot be recovered
B3 CHEREZND
Dumex Baby Food Co., Ltd. 203,922 203,922 100 Cannot be recovered
SEHENRREMERDA CHEREZND
Naaisi Lishui Sales Co., Ltd. 304,140 304,140 100 Cannot be recovered
MEHRBKEEERAA CHRREZND
Guangzhou Qunhe Cosmetics Co., Ltd. 200,000 200,000 100 Cannot be recovered
BMER A RERAT CHEREZND
Datong Lok Cheng Commercial Co., Ltd. 84,116 84,116 100 Cannot be recovered
PNGE ST=E221 NG CHRREZND
Meiaisi Cosmetics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. 143,662 143,662 100 Cannot be recovered
ERMbAm (EMN)BRAR CHRREZND
Total 7,713,272 7,281,251
At
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMERREEGRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HthFEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BB 1EE (&)
(2) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (2) 2020%12H31H(#)
In the portfolio, other receivables for which credit HeER - BRERSDWEIRER
loss provisions are made based on the aging analysis B RN E ALK
method
2020.12.31
ZECRETCA=T-H
Credit loss
Other receivables allowance Proportion%
Aging Bk E IR EREAEE SHRELHI(%)
Within 1 year 1ELAR 144,937,021 - 0
1-2 years 1524 45,589,095 1,367,673 3
2-3 years 2ZE3F 5,291,404 529,140 10
3-4 years 3F4F 1,318,961 329,740 25
4-5 years 4ZB5F - - 50
Over 5 years 54 LA F 930,000 930,000 100
Total &t 198,066,481 3,156,553
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(2) 31 December 2020(Continued) (2) 2020F12A3H (%)
Provision for bad debts EREBIRIER

The first stage  The second stage  The third stage
E-R& ERE E-R&
Expected credit  Expected credit

loss for the entire  loss for the entire

Expected credit duration (o duration (credit
loss in the next ~ credit impairment ~ impairment has
12 months oceurred) oceurred) Total

BEFRARAE BEFRARME
AR12EARS RER(REEE REX(ERLR

Bad debt provision BRER ERBX BRE) ARE) At
Opening Balance E%E 1,597,186 - 4,224,750 5,821,936
The beginning balance is in the current period ~ FAIEEE AL - - - -
- Move to the second stage —BA SRR - - - -
- Move to the third stage —#AEZRR (54,455) - 54,455 -
- Back to the second stage —EEE-RG - - - -
~ Back to the first stage —#AE-ER - - - -
Withdrawal for this period KEHR 1,621,426 - 3,056,092 4,677,518
Reversal for this period rEER 7,605 - - 7,605
Resell for this period piN:aLs - - - -
Written off for this period REGH - - 54,045 54,045
Other changes Hi g - - - _
Ending balance ERHE 3,156,552 - 7,281,252 10,437,804
(3)  Other receivables presented by nature (3)  EHCIEMEE 5N A fEYC L

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—E-—F —ECTF
Nature of other receivable H GRS +=BA=+—H +=-HA=+—H
Promotional fee FEd (R 55 & A 109,164,278 151,768,767
Security deposit and deposit FERRES RS 8,025,587 10,326,264
Current payment R 40,152,875 31,605,240
Other Hi 8,555,878 1,641,678
Total &5t 165,898,618 195,341,949
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMERREEGRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

5 HAEWERAE)
AR ER ()

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) RN BENFARGFEIALE

receivables

31 December 2021

b FEA TR
20215124311

Proportion of

the amount to  Closing balance

Nature of other the total other of credit loss

Company name receivables Closing balance receivable (%) allowance

HEMERGEE EREXER

e REME FREE HLLHI(%) ERBE

Wall’s (China) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 11,369,125 7 -
MBE(RE)ARAF RHE

Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 8,081,793 5 184,875
BIEESH(L8)BRAR R4E

China Foodstuffs Penglai Co., Ltd. Security deposit 5,274,608 3 -

PRRMERERAA B4

Zhongshan Jiajian Living Products Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 4,122,302 2 189,406
FLEREERRERAR R5E

Yihai Kerry Food Marketing Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 2,916,371 2 -
HERRRREHERAR R$HE

Total fit 31,764,199 19 374,281

31 December 2020

202012 A31H

Proportion of the

amount to the total  Closing balance

Nature of other other receivable of credit loss

Company name receivables Closing balance (%) allowance

o EEBERGEE  GRERER

B AR TENE EREH #IEL1(%) ERBE

L.SNOWTRADINGLIMITED Current payment 26,482,500 13 794,475
L.SNOWTRADINGLIMITED (5

Mondelez Shanghai Fpod Coporate Management Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 15,997,499 8 -
BARROEER(LE)ERAT RE

Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 11,586,943 5 37,421
BHIEESH(LB)BRAR RRHE

Unicharm Living Products (China) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 8,983,228 4 -
AREEERm(PE)ERAT eHE

Zhongshan Jiajian Living Products Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 5,772,685 3 90,752
RLEREERRERAT Ri5E

Total &t 68,822,855 33 922,648
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N BRI BHREEERE)

6. Inventories EFE
Presentation of Inventories by category FESHE
2021.12.31
ZB--F+ZA=1-H
Carrying amount Impairment  Net book value
Item 1BH REHE BiERE REEE
Merchandise inventory EfFEm 1,613,429,857 - 1,613,429,857
Raw material FRATE 5,007,160 - 5,097,160
Goods in process FEM - - -
Low-value consumables EBSERD - - -
Total Azt 1,618,527,017 - 1,618,527,017
2020.12.31
“E-EE+-A=1-H

Carrying amount Impairment Net book value
ltem 5H REH#E BEERE REEE
Merchandise inventory EBEm 1,500,960,832 - 1,500,960,832
Raw material B 2,376,799 - 2,376,799
Goods in process EER - - _
Low-value consumables EESEM - - -
Total At 1,508,337,631 - 1,503,337,631

The Group is principally engaged in retail and wholesale
business of fast moving consumer goods, which are daily
necessities. Inventories could be realized faster, and the risk
of inventory impairment is small. As at 31 December 2021,
the inventory turnover was good, and the management
believes that there is no sign of impairment. Thus, there was
no need for accrual for impairment of the inventory at the

end of the period.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no

inventories were pledged or guaranteed.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AU BmKREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Other current assets 7 HERBEE

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—E-—F —EC-TF
ltem 5§ +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Deductible input value-added tax FIIEIET 157,495,178 111,275,389
Prepaid lease expenses FEHeEH 2,675,337 2,473,968
Prepaid heating expenses FFEHEER 3,160,505 3,354,425
Other prepaid expenses (Note) HEmF#ERGE 2,336,998 1,020,539
Receivable return cost FEWGRE R AR 8,587,443 11,073,233
Total A5t 174,255,461 129,197,554

Note: Prepaid cooling fees, property fees, cleaning fees and

i HthGFBEREIZeERMHLE B
security fees, etc. are the primary expenses of other prepaid 28 CRE2E  RLBS -

expenses.

for the enjoyment of Wuliangye No. 1 fund products

by monetary funds RMB11.67 million with a fund share
of 11,638,983.05 in April 2018. In August 2021, 10%

(1,163,898 shares) were redeemed,

and the remaining fund

shares held were 10,475,085.05 shares.

8. Other non-current financial assets 8 HittkREBEMEE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E—F —E-TF
ltem HE +=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Classified financial assets at fair SENAAREBEFEEHEZS
value through profit or loss AFAEHEENEREE 104,782,276 131,508,869
Including: Debt instrument Hi: ERIAKRSE
investments - -
Equity instrument R TEKREGE)
investments (Note) 104,782,276 131,508,869
Subtotal % 104,782,276 131,508,869
Less: Current portion that matures B —FREIEE S
within one year - -
Total A5t 104,782,276 131,508,869
Note:  Chaopi Trading, the subsidiary of the Company, subscribed i ARBZFRAEIFHIEEER201854 A

UEBES ARB116TETREEE
FRRIKESER  FHENESMHE
#£11,638,983.0517 < 2021487 « &
[E110% (1,163,8981)) + FlersH M E
©17%8/10,475,085.051) °
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Investment properties 9 BREMEHE
Investment properties under the cost method BRI BEANREMEHE
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H
Land use
Buildings rights Total
EER
ltem EH BEY LA &5t
. Original carrying amount - EERME
1.2021.1.1 1. FUI&E 139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
2. Increase in the period 2. RFIE NS - - -
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets MHETEEEA - - -
(2) Increase in business combination @ EAHHEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period LAFERLERE - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MBAETEE - - -
(2) Transfer to intangible assets QEAEFEE - - -
4,2021.12.31 4, FRHFE 139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
II. Accumulated depreciation and = REITEMRTEs
amortization
1.2021.1.1 1. F&HE 65,287,259 26,638,698 91,925,957
2. Increase in the period 2 RFEENEE 5,257,362 3,433,202 8,690,564
(1) Accrual or amortization (1)aHR sk 24 5,257,362 3,433,202 8,690,564
(2) Transfer from fixed assets OQRETEEBA - - -
(3) Increase in business combination @EAMEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. AERLERE - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MEABTEE - - -
(2) Transfer to intangible assets QEANELAE - - -
4.2021.12.31 4. FREFF 70,544,621 30,071,900 100,616,521
I1l. Net book value = REEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. FREEER
2021 68,704,263 92,828,808 161,533,071
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. FHEREEE
2021 73,961,625 96,262,010 170,223,635
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL VAN
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 REMEHEGE)

9. Investment properties (Continued)

AT EBEAGREMEHE(F)

2020612 A31H

Investment properties under the cost method (Continued)

31 December 2020

Land use
Buildings rights Total
FEX
ltem JEHH BEY) Tt A &&f
I. Original carrying amount — - REERE
1.2020.1.1 1. Fe8 139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
2. Increase in the period 2. NEEMETE - - -
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets MIEEEEEEA - - -
(2) Business mergers increased QEEFHEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. ANFHLEH - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MEAETEE - - -
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets QBB EE - - -
4.2020.12.31 4, FREEE 139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
Il. Accumulated depreciation and = BFHnENREEE
amortization
1.2020.1.1 1. FY&E 60,029,897 283,205,496 83,235,393
2. Increase in the period 2. RFHENNEEE 5,257,362 3,438,202 8,690,564
(1) Accrual or amortization (1)FHR 2 3 5,257,362 3,433,202 8,690,564
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets QNRETEEEA - - -
(3) Business mergers increased B)EAFHEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period L AFEFHLEEE - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MBAETEE - - -
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets QBAENEE - - -
4.2020.12.31 4. FREH 65,287,259 26,638,698 91,925,957
I1l. Net book value = EHERE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. FRERAEE
2020 73,961,625 96,262,010 170,228,635
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. FHREEE
2020 79,218,987 99,695,212 178,914,199

2021412 431 H &2020% 128318 -
ERERTRBEFERINOREER
HIFE o

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there
was no investment properties that were pledged to secure

certain of the Group’s long-term bank loans.

2021412 A31H 22020412 A31H -
AEERE R ES R T EHES
BRHAHMAE -

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, all land
use rights in the investment properties of the Group are

medium-term lease.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

S

- B BRREEERE)

/\
STATEMENTS (Continued)
10. Fixed assets 10  -BEEEE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—EB-—F ZETHF
ltem 1ER +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
Fixed assets EEEE 768,682,515 836,924,662
Disposal on fixed assets EEEEEE 17,605,727 17,605,692
Total &t 786,288,242 854,530,354
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BEEZHERR
31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Electronic
Machinery and  devices and  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item ER EEREEN HERE ETRERIM EnRf &t
I Original carrying amount - HERE
1. 2021.1.1 1. FUHE 1,056,215,287 848,658,939 184,895,369 50,773,597  2,140,543,142
2. Increase in the period 2. KEENE - 18,006,681 8,531,558 8,310,349  34,848588
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 4,348,726 6,469,269 7,963,187 18,781,182
(2) Transferred from the construction () FRIEEA
in process - 18,657,955 1,287,899 347,162 15,293,016
(3) Transferred from the investment () RELRHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Accept donations () BXRE - - 774,390 - 774,390
3. Decrease in the period 3. KERD - 58,893,377 14,765,079 6,768,377 80,426,833
(1) Disposal or retirement () AERE - 58893377 14,765,079 6,768,377 80,426,833
(2) Transferred to the investment [ EAREEEE
properties - - - - -
4, 2021.12.31 4 ERBE 1,056,215,287 807,772,243 178,661,848 52,315,569  2,094,964,897
Il. Accumulative depreciation - BithE
1. 202111 1. E88 466,301,906 658,840,085 138,526,118 39,950,371 1,303,618,480
2. Increase in the period 2 REENE 36438928 32964804 15355753 9955679 94,715,164
(1) Accrual (1) AR 36,438,928 32,964,804 15,355,753 9,955,679 94,715,164
(2) Transferred from the investment () RELRHEEA
properties - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. KERLE - 53,465,383 12,447,562 6,138,317 72,051,262
(1) Disposal or scrap () AERE - 53465383 12,447,562 6,138,317 72,051,262
(2) Transferred to investment (@ EARENRE
properties - - - - -
4. 2021.12.31 4 ERBE 502740834 638,339,506 141,434,309 43,767,733  1,326,282,382
IIl. Net book value = REEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. EXEMEE
2021 553,474,403 169,432,737 37,221,539 8,547,836 768,682,515
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. FIEREE
2021 589,913,331 189,818,854 46,369,251 10,823,226 836,924,662
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

(1) Details of fixed assets (Continued)

31 December 2020

RISk I ot

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
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S

7N

10 - BE&EE#E)

SOV BHRKRIERERE)

(1) BEEZERERE)

202012 A31H

Electronic
Machinery and ~ devicesand  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
ltem 13H REREEN BEEE ITRRREM Btk GEl
|. Original carrying amount - RARE
1. 2020.1.1 1. ENEBE 1,006,215,237 864,850,461 188,986,400 49,633,861  2,159,685,959
2. Increase in the period 2. REEME - 21,534,333 12,711,343 4,695,661 38,941,337
(1) Purchase (1) B2 - 7,021,49% 10,949,515 1,106,281 19,077,291
(2) Transferred from the construction () EBIEEA
in process - 14,612,838 1,761,828 3,589,380 19,864,046
(3) Transferred from the investment () REURHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased () REAHHEN - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. TERD - 377258% 16,802,374 3555925 58,084,154
(1) Disposal () RERE - IIT58% 16802374 3555925 58,084,154
(2) Transferred to the investment () BARENEHE
properties - - - - -
4. 2020.12.31 4 FRHE 1,006,215,237 848,658,939 184,895,369 50,773,097 2,140,543,142
II. Accumulative depreciation ~ ZHAE
1. 2020.1.1 1. EHE 429862978 650,493,113 137,786,473 36,894,805 1,265,037 419
2. Increase in the period 2. REENE 36,438,928 37,775,862 16,570,553 1,348411 102,133,754
(1) Accrual (1) RERHR 36,438,928 37,775,862 16,570,553 1348411 102,133,754
(2) Transferred from the investment () REURHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased () XA - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 FERSE - 29428890 15,830,908 8292895 53,552,693
(3) Disposal (1) AERE - 29,428,890 15,830,908 8,292,895 53,562,693
(4) Transferred to investment (@) EAREERHE
properties - - - - -
4, 2020.12.31 4 FRHE 466,301,906 668,840,085 138,526,118 39,960,371 1,303,618,480
Ill. Net book value = hEERE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. EREAER
2020 580,913,331 189,818,854 46,369,251 10,823,226 836,924,662
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. ENEEEE
2020 626,302,269 214,357,348 51,199,927 12,739,006 904,648,540

2021412 431 H & 2020412 A

1 BAAERAERITRAMEG
KA R ) T X B PR A B E A
EE o

As at 31 December 2021, and 31 December 2020, no
fixed assets were restricted as they were been pledged

to secure certain of the long-term Group’s bank loans.
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N> BMEHRREEZRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 -BEEEEHE)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

(1) Details of fixed assets (Continued) (1) BEEZERRE)
Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have MR2021F12A31H » Rt ZERE
not been obtained as at 31 December 2021 BEMNETEES)

Reasons for
not obtaining
certificates of

Expected time
of obtaining
certificates of

Net book value title title

RHEEE BAREER

Item EH REFE FERR RERE

Room1-201 Unit 13, Chenxin Garden, Datong ~ KRRZTEE13-1-2017E 383,520 In progress 20226
ERfER

R2020F12A31H » KT ZERE
BEENETEER

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have

not been obtained as at 31 December 2020

Reasons for Expected time
not obtaining of obtaining
Net book value  certificates of title  certificates of title

) RIEERE BEtEERE

Item EE REFE BERA BENH
Room1-201 Unit 13, Chenxin Garden, Datong ~ AREEEE13-1-201RE 383,520 In progress 20214

FESEH
(2) Disposal on fixed assets 2) BEzEZEEE

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—E-—F —ETF

ltem 1ER +=ZA=+—H +-A=+—H
Housing warehouse FEEE 17,605,727 17,605,692
Total A&t 17,605,727 17,605,692
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.

N B BEBREEERE)

Construction in progress 11 EEIRE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F —E_TF
ltem 15 H +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
Construction in progress EEITRR 152,597,710 138,005,745
Engineer material TEWE - -
Total &5 152,597,710 138,005,745

(1) Details of construction in progress

(1) EZEIEBHMT

20211231 20201231
- Sul: 4 a8 ECRETCA=T-H

Carrying Net book Carying Net book

amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
ltem A BERE REEF BETE | BESE  REER  BEGE
Shuanggiao Project (Notet)' SETR(H) 50,232,654 - 50232654 | 50,232,654 - 5023265
Pingfang Project (Note2) TRIR(H) 43,859,815 - 43850815 | 43,859,815 - 43850815
Pingfang Refigeratory Project IRAEIE 9,617,821 - 961782 | 9617821 - 961782
Logistics center renovation MRPLEYR 3,199,923 - 3,199923 | 3276959 - 3216959
System Software Project ZgEnTR 39,952,332 - 30952332 | 28542459 - 28542459
Other EfpER 5,735,165 - 5735165 | 2476097 - 2476087
Total At 152,597,710 - 152,507,710 | 138,006,745 - 138,005,745
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current period

N BRI BHREEERE)

11 EEIRE)

(2) EELBEIBEBHAFELERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215 E
Transferred
to fixed
assets,
intangible
assets or
long-term
Budget Increase in prepaid Other
amount 202111 theperiod  expenses  deduction 2021.12.31
T
B BVE
“E-- ERRHG \ “E--
Item BE2H BEY  -A-B AEEm B8R HbES t-AZt-H
Shuangajao Project (Notet)" EBTR(H) 108,988,036 50,232,654 - - - 50,232,654
Pingfang Project (Note?) TEIR(®) 73,655,986 43,859,815 - - - 43859815
Pingfang Refigeratory Project TEREIR 35,047,286 9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
Logistics center renovation ZHERTR 79,400,004 28,542,459 12,258,930 849,057 - 30,952,332
System Software Project mEmhER 1312464 3276950 3317419 3,304,455 - 3,199,923
Others AfprEIR 181969580 2476037 24069673 18243970 2566575 5,735,165
Total At 486,373,356 138,005,745 30,646,022 22487482 2,566,575 152,597,710
Amount injected as a Amount of
proportion of budget ~ Construction progress accumulated  Including: Capitalized  Interest capitalization
Project name amount (%) (%) capitalized interest  interest in the period  rate for the period (%) Source of funds
B REHE
REER IRRAGRELH(%) IREE®%)  ASEALZHEE BAfeE  AERISERLE() EERE
Shuangajao Project (Notet)" ) 46 3,000,000 - - Qwn funds and bank loans
SRTE BERERE-RER
Pingfang Project (Note?) 60 60 425,988 - = Own funds end bank loans
IRIE BEESRET-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27 2 - - - Qwn funds and bank loans
TEREIR BERERET-RER
Logistics center renovation 51 51 - - = Own funds end bank loans
FhEpIR BEESRET-RER
System Software Project 90 90 - - - Own funds end bank loans
miROES BERERE-HRER
Others 3 3 136,79 136,79 4 Qwn funds and bank loans
EfpERTE BEESRET-RER
Total 3,562,783 136,79
it
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.

Construction in progress (Continued)

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

S

/N\

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

B BHRREBR TR (E)

11 -EEIRE)

(2) EEHEIBEBEHAFELEER

the current period (Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2020%F &
Transferred
to fixed
assets,
infangiole
assets or
long-term
Budget Increase in prepaid Other
amount 202011 the period expenses deduction 2020.12.31
NG
E ElE
i ., EEE . ERRER - %%
fem AR BE®  -A-B KEED %8R EME) ToA=T-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note1)* EETR(H) 108988036 50,232,654 - - - 50232654
Pingfang Project (Note2) TREIE(GH) 73,605,986 43,853,852 5,963 - - 43859815
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project TERETR 35,047286 9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
Logistics center transfom MRRLER 10492067 6,079,348 3454894 6,257,283 - 3276959
System Software Project ZFEpIE 84334553 31857631 6122748 9437920 - 28500459
Others EMERTE 88607653 338705 41580668 36478200 2985114 2476087
Total it 401125781 141,980,011 51164278 52173426 2965114 138,005,745
Amount injected as a
proportion of budget ~ Gonstruction progress - Amount of accumulated  Including: Capitalized  Interest capitalization
Project name amount ?%) (%) capitalized interest ~ interest in the eﬁriod rate for the period(%) ~ Source of funds
ER RER
ER%RE TRRAEEEMLA) IRERM  MERALERLE Erfes  RERIRERCEW) A&ME
Shuan%giao Project (Note1)* 4 4 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
$BTE BEEERFA-HER
Ping an{g Project (Note2) 60 60 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
BEESRFA-HER
Pm anngefngeraory Project a oa - - - Own funds and bank loans
BEESRBH-RER
Logitics center transform 91 91 - - = Own funds end bank loans
RRLER BEESRBT-RER
gstem Software Project 4 4 - - - Own funds end bank loans
ENEH BEESRBT-RER
Others & a7 - - = Own funds end bank loans
EfpfRIR BEESRET-RER
Total 3,425,988 -
ai

According to the revised budget amount for subsequent

years/periods, the project budget and the proportions

of project investments of the total budget in respective

periods were restated.

* ZEHEARBERUEFESHME
BIRNAESRELENESR
MHENIEERERTRREAE
TAERLLR -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current period (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

264 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The costs of Shuangqgiao Project mainly consisted
of land compensation cost. Due the change in
planning policies on the requisitioned land, the
Company has not obtained the land use right
certificate yet. Pursuant to the Land Requisition
and Compensation Agreement between the
Company and the People’s Government of
Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang District, Beijing
and its supplemental agreement, the amount
prepaid to the latter shall be refunded in full to the
Company in case of any change in policies or any
other situation that may affect land requisition of
the Company. Therefore, the management believes

that there is no risk of impairment for the project.

As at 31 December 2021, the costs of Pingfang
Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The
Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s
license and predicted to start the project in 2022.
Therefore, the management believes that there is

no risk of impairment for the project.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

N BRI BHREEERE)

11 -ERIRE)

@)

EETBETREEXFHEER

(%)

A ERETIRNBRAIZALINEE
B o mMRNEUR LS R AR B
RELBCERE - AREHK
RS LIEAEE - RIBEAAF
BAE R A [ B AR BT
AT LI R B 1 e ) I
BAMBNLE - MREFEEBE
Bl HrEEQREAL
MEMEER - ERTHGERE
HBARBUTESC RIS
ERURAATE o Bt - BEE
REAZAIERTFERERR

2 - HE2021F12A31 B FEIEN
BAXTEARTETR - RAAE
ERERBIAMBREP - HEat
2022F BT - EIRERAZEL
BAGFERERRE



12. The right-of-use asset

31 December 2021

ltem

I. Original carrying amount
1. 2021.1.1
2. Increase in the period
Asset lease
3. Decrease in the period

Early termination of asset lease

Lease expires

Lease change remeasurement

4, 2021.12.31
Il. Accumulative depreciation

1, 2021.1.1

2. Increase in the period
Accrual

3. Decrease in the period
Disposal
Lease expires

Lease change remeasurement

4, 2021.12.31
Ill.Net book value

1. Net book value as at 31 December 2021
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2021

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

EH

11
.

RERE

1. FNEH

2. REBMEE
BEMRA

3. AERD
BERAMEAR L
HEHH
HESEENHE

4, EREE

ZEE

1. FNeE

2. REEME
AFEHR

3. AERDE
BE
HEH
HEEEENHE

4 ERBE

REEE

1. FREEER

2. FYkREEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N BB RRAEEEE)

7N

12 - EFAEEE
2021F12A31H

Buildings
EEREEY

1,341,444,497
214,581,538
214,581,538
171,246,087
78,153,709
59,289,498
33,802,880
1,384,779,948

333,293,109
190,229,398
190,229,398
120,358,356
27,062,937
59,289,498
34,005,921
403,164,151

981,615,797
1,008,151,388

Total
At

1,341,444,497
214,581,538
214,581,538
171,246,087
78,153,709
59,289,498
33,802,880
1,384,779,948

333,293,109
190,229,398
190,229,398
120,358,356
27,062,937
59,289,498
34,005,921
403,164,151

981,615,797
1,008,151,388

31 December 2020

[tem

I. Original carrying amount
1. 2020.1.1
2. Increase in the period
Asset lease
3. Decrease in the period

Early termination of asset lease
Lease change remeasurement

4, 2020.12.31
Il. Accumulative depreciation
1. 2020.1.1
2. Increase in the period
Accrual
3. Decrease in the period
Lease expires

Lease change remeasurement

4, 2020.12.31
Ill.Net book value

1. Net book value as at 31 December 2020
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2020

BH

11
.

REFRE

188

2. REEINE
AEBA

3. AERD
BEMEARAAL
HEBFENIE

4. FRAE

FEHE

1. FIEH

2. RERINE
REGHR

3 AERIE
EFEA%E

4@%%@
REEE
1EREREE
2 FMERAER

2020612 A31H

Buildings
BEREEY

1,312,314,066
111,279,792
111,279,792
82,149,361
67,618,741
14,530,620
1,341,444,497

174,651,779
191,380,996
191,380,996
32,739,666
23,915,463
8,824,203
333,293,109

1,008,151,388
1,137,662,287

Total
At

1,312,314,066
111,279,792
111,279,792
82,149,361
67,618,741
14,530,620
1,341,444,497

174,651,779
191,380,996
191,380,996
32,739,666
23,915,463
8,824,203
333,293,109

1,008,151,388
1,137,662,287
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

1y

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Intangible assets

31 December 2021

[tem R
I Original carrying amount -
1. 2021.1.1

2. Increase in the period
(1) Purchase
(2) Transferred from the construction
in process
(3) Transferred from the investment
properties
(4) Business mergers increase
3. Decrease in the period
4. 2021.12.31
II. Accumulated amortization -
1, 2021.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual
(2) Transferred from the investment
properties
(3) Business mergers increase
3. Decrease in the period
4. 2021.12.31
IIl. Net book value
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2021
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2021

BHRE

1. EYsE

2. NEENSE
&2
(0 ERIREA

() REHEHEEA

(4) BEAHHEN
3 KERVEE
4 ERBE
ZiHEE
1, EYE
2. KAEENEE
(1) i€
@ REEEHEEA

(3) BEAHHEM
3 KERVEE
4 ERBE
FEER
1. EXEAEE
2. FYERER

N BRI BHREEERE)

13 - B/LEE
2021F12A31H

Operation rights
of distribution
Land use rights Software network

LTitfERE B DEERCHE

jy

322,649,214 60,526,562 34,254,633
143,860 1,540,488 6,416
143,860 1,540,488 6,416

322,793,074 62,067,050 34,261,049

76,644,448 31,698,440 28,936,299
9,045,171 5,147,132 2,521,588
9,045,171 5,147,132 2,521,588

85,689,619 36,845,572 31,457,887

237,103,455 25,221,478 2,803,162
246,004,766 28,828,122 5,318,334

417,430,409
1,690,764
1,690,764

419,121,173

137,279,187
16,713,891
16,713,891

163,993,078

265,128,095
280,151,222
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

13.

Intangible assets (Continued)

31 December 2020

[tem

. Original carrying amount

1. 2020.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Purchase

(2) Transferred from the construction

in process

(3) Transferred from the investment

properties

(4) Business mergers increase

3. Decrease in the period
4, 2020.12.31

II. Accumulated amortization

1. 2020.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual

(2) Transferred from the investment

properties

(3) Business mergers increase

3. Decrease in the period
4, 2020.12.31

IIl. Net book value
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2020
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2020

G

-_

v

v

FERE

1. FIHE

2. AEENEE
(1 EBE
QERIEEA

(3) REUEHEEA

(4) DEAGHEN
3 AERLEE
4, FRBE
RirEH
1. EIRE
2. KEEMEE
(1) 5142
(2 REEEHEEA

(3) DEAGHEN
3 AERLEE
4, FRBE
REER
1. EXEEER
2. FYBAEE

RISk I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N B BEBREEERE)

13 - B|LEE(#E)

Land use
rights
TR

322,868,514

322,868,514

67,818,679
9,045,169
9,045,169

76,863,748

246,004,766
255,049,935

Software

ENT

55,318,468
7,249,820
1,709,875

5,539,945

2,041,726
60,526,562

28,552,452
5,187,714
5,187,714

2,041,726
31,698,440

28,828,122
26,766,016

2020512 A31H

Operation
rights of
distribution
network
DI iHE

34,254,633

34,254,633

26,322,484
2,613,815
2,613,815

28,936,299

5,318,334
7,932,149

Total
4t

412,441,615
7,249,820
1,709,875

5,539,945

2,041,726
417,649,709

122,693,515
16,846,698
16,846,698

2,041,726
137,498,487

280,151,222
289,748,100
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

B BBRRERERE)

14. Goodwill 14 - HE

Original carrying amount of goodwill EERERE

Increase in the period Decrease in the period

REEM THRD
Business
2021.1.1  combination Others Disposal Others  2021.12.31

Name of the investee or item  HREBMLBAMRBEN PEAH
resulting in goodwil =3} FNHBE A it RE Hit ERBE
Acquisition of Shouchao Group Wi ERER 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788
Total At 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788

On 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the balance
was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shoulian
Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao Group”) as well
as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited (Hereinafter

referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 10% (2020: 11%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2020: 3%).
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72021412 A 31 H % 2020412 A 31
B ZHEANEEHREmREFAR
(ATEREA BBEE ) RILRRHER
EARARATEBA REDEED
P .

AEEUE B AR FERENEE
DA O BB £ B S R SR 4 0
R B AR A — (A AR L TR
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ZAEMAM A IE @RI BETERT AR K
RenenRERTE  REEEEM
ERSF MMM B EERER FOR SR
ETEAREE - sSTEEHRKRA SR
SREMANITEREZ10% (20205 :
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3% (20204 : 3%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Goodwill (Continued) 14 - HE(E)

Original carrying amount of goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, and 31 December 2020,
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made
by the management in forecasting the present value of a
future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill:

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion

Discount rate- Using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks

BEREFE(E)
ATEERBEEMN2021F12A31A K
2020F12 A1 HMTEEI KRR E M E
BERATRERS - WTFRTER
BRETHENRBENR - EREE
ARBLREREFEHOBRBR

BEEMN-HEEARBEREFEN —
FEROTFHENXER L - RIFFRG
MEMRES LB TERERELEEE
RIRZFERNE o

PR % — R 2R S
W R BB OB TR E -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AN et EHRREEEEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
15. Long-term prepaid expenses 15 - REIZHRER
31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Other
Increase in reduces
2021.1.1  the period 2021.12.31 reasons
—E--F —EC-F
Item EH -A-H RER +ZA=1t-0 HtEIRE
Transferred from construction 2R ABTEESR L | 298,550,451 8,399,901 245,441,646 Disposal
in progress to leasehold RE
improvements
Total At 298,550,451 8,399,901 245,441,646
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H
Reason
Increase in for other
2020.1.1 the period 2020.12.31 deduction
“ZC%E —2-%
Item e -A-R REHEN TZA=t-0 EttHIRA
Transferred from construction  EEMABTAERRSH  331,353470 34,557,046 298,550,451 -
in progress to leasehold
improvements
Total &t 331,353,470 34,557,046 298,550,451
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities 16 “EEFBHEE ELFREHERE
(1) Deferred tax assets without offset (1) RASIE K19 EAL Fr 15 5 4 B AT
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
“Z--F+ZA=t-R | Z2ZZFF-A=+-H
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred tax temporary  Deferred tax
differences assets differences asset
TENGEE  BERSH |THENEEE  RTMEH
ltem == 2 BE 2 BE
Taxable government grants R 8 26,720,324 6,680,081 | 33,980,487 8,497,372
Unrealized profits from internal transactions 3% 5 K B 3 K 3,955,876 988,969 | 4,324,769 1,081,192
Implementation of the new lease standard {73 S48 71,631,828 17,907,958 | 55,988,494 13,997,123
Total a3t 102,308,028 25,577,008 | 94,302,750 23,575,687
(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset (2) FRAEBERIELFTIZHEEHAN
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
“E--F+ZR=+-A | ZE-ZF+-A=1+-H
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary  Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
EABERYE EEAEH (EATEEE  BEAER
ltem EH 2 8 =2 L
Fair value adjustment of assets arising from  JEESEHEETHMAZEAL
non-monetary asset exchange BEAE 9,340,075 2,335,018 | 10,406,513 2,601,628
Changes on the fair value of available-for- Qﬁﬂ” B EREEHEHAE
sale financial assets Eﬁ?ﬁ SHEREENAAEBE

94,279,276 23,569,819 | 119,838,870 29,959,717
Capitalized interest adjustment of borrowing 1“"% BHEBA AR
costs 16,000 4,000 375,739 93,935
Difference between the fair value and the  HHEETARIFEEENLLER
carrying amount of subsidiary merger and =8
acquisition 2,027,598 506,900 | 1,870,215 467,554

Total =H 105,662,949 26,415,737 | 132,491,337 33,122,834

2021 @&
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 EEFBHERE BEFMEHEE

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(#&)
(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset (3) KIS FEI R ELFEHE
EXEE
Offset Amount
Offset Amount after ~ amount of  after offset
amount of offset of deferred tax  of deferred
deferred tax deferred tax  assets and  tax assets
assets and  assets and deferred tax and deferred
deferred tax  deferred tax liabilities tax liabilities
liabilities at liabilities at at the at the
the end of  the end of beginning of beginning of
year year year year

BEREHE HERELH BEREHE BERELH
ENAEER BHEERE ENAREY SHEEdS

Item EH EfSE BEABE EfSE BEUHBE
Deferred tax assets REMBHERE 2,339,019 23,237,989 2,695,563 20,880,124
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHERE 2,339,019 24,076,718 2695563 30,427,271

(4) Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets (4) REREEFEHEERH
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F —E-FTF
ltem =] +=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Deductible temporary differences AJIEINE T = R 44,837,412 43,768,390
Deductible losses AEEE 495,175,916 464,509,119
Total A&t 540,013,328 508,277,509

In the view of the management of the Group,deferred EEEEERAARKRTE2RATALE
A RRMESN Eat AT B A AT R
HESEEENEATAEER
PRtk AR R A IR B BRIE PRI

A% -

tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or deductible losses

can be utilized.
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

RISk I ot

II/
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Ot BRREE TR (E)

S

78

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(5) Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax

16 ELFAEHEE BEEFREHAR

(%)

(5) ARERBELFEHEELN TEAE

assets will expire in the following years BRRUTEEZH
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F —E-TF
Year F1p +=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
2021.12.31 2021.12.31 - 70,528,769
2022.12.31 2022.12.31 27,491,760 69,530,694
2023.12.31 2023.12.31 47,640,750 80,759,119
2024.12.31 2024.12.31 88,260,466 109,333,868
2025.12.31 2025.12.31 131,107,448 134,356,669
2026.12.31 2026.12.31 188,753,372 -
Total A5 483,253,796 464,509,119
17. Provision for asset impairment 17 - EEREEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 20216 E
Decrease in the year
KERD
Increase in
2021 1.1 the year Reversal ~ Written-off 2021 12 31
—EC--F “B--F
Item ER -F-H RER EQ B% t-h=t-H
Credit loss allowance 1 RlRXER 43,768,390 16,286,825 4,737,092 10,480,711 44,837,412
Impairment of available-for-sale financial DA EEEEHEEHAZHE
assets REBAENEER - - - - -
Total At 43,768,390 16,286,825 4,737,092 10,480,711 44,837,412
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2020%F &
Decrease in the year
RERD
Increase in
2020.1.1 the year Reversal Written-off 2020.12.31
2 “%°%
Item JEH -A-H REEM & 8% +-A=1-H
Credit loss allowance 1;.%%%1% 26,806,454 17,089,764 113,783 54,045 43,768,390
Impairment of available-for-sale financial ’Mfﬁ B RHEHHAZHE
assets ReREENEER - - - - -
Total At 26,896,454 17,039,764 113,783 54,045 43,768,390
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Other non-current assets

18 ~ HitbRBEE

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—g=-F —E-TF
ltem HE +t=RAR=+—-H +ZRA=+—H
Long-term receivables due from HEBEBRNRARUGK
Shoulian Group (Note 1) (3%1) 106,751,658 135,600,000
Security deposit HERER 40,114,901 48,135,875
Prepaid construction fees (Note 2) B TR (5E2) 40,944,303 261,784
Total A5 187,810,862 183,997,659
Note 1: On 31 December 2021, such long-term receivables consist 10 PR2021F12H31H » ZEREEK
of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket and Lianchao EBEBBTANBB AN EBEBIR
Company to Shoulian Group due on 31 December 2022 as HOESHE  REFHNTERE S
agreed upon, on 31 December 2021 Shoulian Supermarket 2022%F 12 A31H 2021F12A31H
and Lianchao Company signed supplementary agreements BT MBS R A 5] 9 Bl B B B = [ 2R
with Shoulian Group respectively, and the two parties s EHYTERHB2024
agreed that the repayment date would be 31 December F12 831 H - bl & H e Y E fIl &
2024, the long-term receivables bear interest at 3.85% £3.85% + B2022F1 A1 HRIZR—
per annum interest will be calculated at the one-year loan FEHERTISHREBAER(LPREE - B
market quoted rate (LPR) from 1 January 2022. Meanwhile B ZEBRURFUAAARABENMERZE
certain buildings and land use rights of Shoulian Group W ZHENEREEEE N THFER
with a total fair value not less than the balance of the long- FEEFRYE(R
term receivables have been pledged for these long-term
receivables in favor of Shoulian Supermarket.
Note 2: On 31 December 2021, RMB40,694,040 of this amount is H2 2021 12A81R - VAT ARK

the 40% down payment paid by Shoulian Supermarket to
Shoulian Group for the purchase of Huairou real estate.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings

N AU BEHRIEEERE)

19 ~ EHIER

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—E-—F —E-TF
ltem 5§ +=—B=+—H +—A=+—H
Accounts receivable secured loan FEUBE SR IR (£ 20 (3F1)

(Note 1) 5,775,305 13,392,510
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) REBEE R (FE2) 1,756,868,627 1,731,663,061
Unsecured loan (Note 3) ERENRGES) 531,176,235 579,062,520
Pledged Loan (Note 4) BHIRER(FE4) 83,301,580 6,524,900
Undue interest payable REH A B 3,909,092 3,594,890
Total A5 2,381,030,839 2,334,237,881

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
short-term borrowings above bore annual interest rates
ranging from 1.25% to 4.35% and 2.50% to 4.75%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

72021412 531 H %2020 12 A 31
B FlEHERNFENES B A
1.25% % 4.35% [ 2.50% £4.75% * B
A GFEB BB AEROER o
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

As at 31 December 2021, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Company totaling to RMB219,608,971 (31 December
2020: RMB183,096,337), and details were referred to Note
(V)3

As at 31 December 2021,
RMB507,017,000, which was borrowed by Chaopi Trading,
a subsidiary of the Company, with a surety provided by
the Company; RMB40,000,000, which was borrowed by

such short-term loans include

subsidiary of the Chaopi Trading, with a surety provided
by the Company; RMB809,851,628, which was borrowed
by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading with a surety offered by
Chaopi Trading; RMB400,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company with the surety provided by Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2020, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB260,000,000 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB41,889,858 was borrowed by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading; RMB29,000,000, which was borrowed
by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading with a surety offered by
the Company; and RMB910,989,655 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading; RMB489,783,548 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading.
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N AHPBHRRAEERE)

19 ~ WHIERK (&)
FE1 0 R2021E 12 A31H - S EEER

PR

RUAREBE A AR 219,608,971
(2020 F12 A31 H: AR ¥
183,096,337 7 ) K & T [l W AR 5038 4B
RIBRZHES - 2RI 30

#2021812A318 - HEHRH
B ARM507,017,000 BA AR Z T
RAABEEOER - AAAFRER
FHER + AR40,000,0007T AEHLE
B2 FRARMNER - BARARERE
IR AR809,851,6287T A5t

B FARMEBR - AP ERGRR
FIER + ARM400,000,0007C AR D
AMER - AR ERERER -

iy
FAYSE:

202012 A31H » ZERBIERF
B AR #260,000,00070 B A A2 F

DRI EOER - ARRFIRER
FIER 0 ARK41,889,858 T AL
FRARMMBR - APMEEZ FARIRE
HARFEAR - ARMBE29,000,0007T 258
HEEZ FARIMMER - BARARMH
REBER : ARE910,989,6557T &4
ﬁtﬁﬁzqz@?wﬁ*h - AEAM R IR
HARFER AR 489,783,548 4
ZAUN Taﬂﬁ?x - AP B IR MR B
"o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued) 19 ~ HEIERR(E)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2021, the credit loans included FE3: 20215128318 » ERERBEF

RMB150,000,000, RMB150,000,000 respectively granted
by China Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Sanyuan
Bridge Sub-branch and Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Co., Ltd. Beijing Air China Tower Sub-
branch on an unsecured basis. The credit loans included
RMB191,000,000, RMB15,676,235 borrowed by the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted by
China CITIC Bank Beijing Xidan Sub-branch and HSBC
Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch on an unsecured
basis. The credit loans included RMB5,000,000,
RMB10,000,000and RMB9,500,000 borrowed by the
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading that granted by HSBC
Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch, Bank of Beijing
Jiulongshan Sub-branch, China Everbright Bank Co.,
Ltd. Beijing East Chang’an Avenue Sub-branch on an

unsecured basis.

B3 @IRTIR D AR R RI = LB X 1T
AP ETERITRMARA AL REH
MR E X AT M AR A 55 Bl 3 AR ey 75 BR
&7 A R # 150,000,000 75 & A R #
150,000,0007T * B R FEZFERAA
SEZSKIBHER  ARERTIERA
EXTMELRT(FE)ARAFILR
DARARRZ FARAIEE D B
R 52 ER 15 A R #6191,000,0007T &
AR¥15,676,2357C + B RBEZEE
RAREBERBHEIER - FERLEHRT
(FEDARAFTIERHTT ~ L RIEFT
NBEILZAT - REIKARRITROEBR D
A RRRLHXITAEP 2 FRRAE
AR 52 B {E SR R #55,000,0007T © A
R #10,000,0007T & A R #9,500,000
T BARZSERAAEEZ R
EIR
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued) 19 ~ WHIERK (&)

Note 3: (Continued) 23 (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and RMB100,000,000
respectively granted by China Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Sub-branch and China
Construction Bank Co., Ltd. Hujialou Sub-branch and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd. Beijing
Air China Tower Sub-branch on an unsecured basis. The
credit loans included RMB50,000,000, RMB32,150,000,
RMB56,400,000 and RMB45,410,000 borrowed by the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted by
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing East Chang’an
Avenue Sub-branch, China Construction Bank Co., Ltd.
Beijing Hujialou Sub-branch, China CITIC Bank Beijing
Xidan Sub-branch, and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing
Chaowai Sub-branch on an unsecured basis. The
credit loans included RMB15,000,000, RMB8,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB12,102,520 borrowed by the
subsidiary of Chaopi that granted by HSBC Bank (China)
Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch, Bank of Beijing Jiulongshan
Sub-branch, Beijing Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Nanmofang Sub-branch, and HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Branch on an unsecured basis.
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20206128318 - FABKFTE
FREGRIEITRNERAR=ZTES
17 PEBRRBHEITROARDATR
ERITRFEIEBITROERAFIL
REMAEXITARA TS BIERAE
HIE AR 50,000,0007T ~ AR
200,000,000 7T & A & # 100,000,000
Tt BABRBREERAANEES KR
HER: AREXRRITROBRD
B RRRLHERIT - RERRIET
BRDBRRBIERFRELT - FE
RITEFRREZTNEERITROA
RAFRIRAIZITAARRFZFR
AP EMED R ERNERERAR
#50,000,0007C + A K #32,150,000
7T~ AR #56,400,000 7T & A R
45,410,0007T + EARRZEBHRBE
SEERIBHER  BERLRT(PE)
BRAFIERST ~ ERBITNAEILZ
7 ARERBRTRNDERATEE
X ATAELIRTT (R ) AR AR L8
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 4: As 31 December 2021, pledged loan is that Chaopi

Trading provided a pledge guarantee to HSBC Bank (China)
Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch with a time deposit certificate of
RMB20,980,702 under its name for International Trading
(Hongkong), a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, and the
loan amount obtained was USD11,665,480, which was
converted into RMB74,375,600 at the exchange rate
of USD to RMB6.3757 on 31 December 2021, Chaopi
Trading provided a pledge guarantee to Bank of Jiangsu
Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch with a time deposit certificate
of RMB14,050,000 under its name for International
Trading (Hong Kong), and the loan amount obtained was
USD1,400,000, which was converted into RMB8,925,980
at the exchange rate of USD to RMB6.3757 on 31
December 2021.

As 31 December 2020, pledged loan is that Beijing Chaopi
Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Chaopi
Trading, provided a pledge guarantee to Bank of Beijing
Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch with a time deposit certificate
of RMB8,000,000 under its name, and the loan amount
obtained was USD1,000,000, which was converted into
RMB6,524,900 at the exchange rate of USD to RMB6.5249
on 31 December 2020.

20. Notes payable

Bt BmRAEERE)

19 ~ EHER (&)

T4 R2021FE12831H - Gt AL

PMEAER T 28 AARK20,980,702
THEBRFERELRIT(PE)AR
ARHE RS ITEHERER - AL
BAEZFARBERESEEMEEN
11,665,480% 7T * #2021 124318
ETHARKERE.3757 - TAKRA
R¥ /74,375,6007T : BRHLEE AH A
T &5 A ARE14,050,0007T 8 E BT
BRIERITIRN AR AR EBSITIE
PERER  RBERABEZTFRAER
B E 5B SIS E 1,400,000 7T -
2202112 A31BETTH ARKER
6.3757 * AR AR8,925,9807T ©

2020124318 + EiffE5 AT
BBz FARHL RSB XFABEER
NAIAE AT &5 A AR¥S8,000,000
THE BT E R RRITIRD AR A A
EEAITHREEHERER - RSERSE
1,000,000 7T + #%2020412 A31H
ENHARKEERS.5249 - FTAKA
R 56,524,9007T °

IF

20 - BN RE

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E--F —ECTEF
Category &R +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Bank acceptances SRITARHES 467,332,344 449,442 574
Total A&t 467,332,344 449,442 574

As at 31 December 2021, security deposit for the issuance

of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB72,321,243 (31

December 2020: RMB116,101,904).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within

one year.

M2021F12A31H - AFA LMl
MTEAREENREBESERAARKE
72,321,24370(2020F 123310+ AR
#116,101,9047T ) °

REBMRITARERGENFZA
2|H -
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. Accounts payable 21 ~ SRR

(1) Accounts payable are listed below according to the (1) ERFEXEMEIRAT

nature of the amount:

2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—B-—-F —E-TF
ltem 1B E +T=ZA=+—H T-A=+—H
Purchase EER 740,337,043 720,959,512
Total CE 740,337,043 720,959,512
(2) The aging of accounts payable is as follows (2) FERFEHUT :
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—®=—F —B-TF
ltem HH +t=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Within 1 year 1FAA 713,061,607 682,838,845
1 to 2 years 1525 10,562,073 23,355,999
2 to 3 years 2E3F 8,401,232 6,533,160
Over 3 years 3FLE 8,312,131 8,231,508
Total A&t 740,337,043 720,959,512
Accounts payable with an age of more than 1 year are BB 1IENENER TS Ak
mainly the final payment due to suppliers. HEEEN SRR -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Advance payment 22 - WK IE

Details of Advance payment AW IEIER
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F ZECTHF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—8H +=ZA=+—A”
Rent received in advance B & 9,075,871 7,094,294
Total &5 9,075,871 7,094,294
23. Contract Liability 23 -EEAE
Details of Contract liability AEBEER
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—% —ETF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—8H +=ZA=+—A”
Procurements received in advance B ER 361,858,117 459,132,615
Total A5 361,858,117 459,132,615
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Payroll payable 24 ~ FE{SHR T e
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) ERBIHMZTR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215 E
Increase in Decrease in
2021.1.1 the period the period 2021.12.31
—E--F —E--F
ltem EH —-A-A REL XEHS T=A=t-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 R 1,621,215 654,117,192 654,193,088 1,545,319
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 - BEBi14 187 — Rz 27t 2
contribution plans (Note 1) (51) - 67,076,727 67,076,727 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BLREF - 2,811,962 2,811,962 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —ERXZ|EBEE 87 - - - -
Total A3t 1,621,215 724,005,881 724,081,777 1,545,319
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20204 [

Increase in Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31

—TCFE —Z-%
ttem HH —-A—A REE AERY +TZA=+-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 G 1,735,030 668,337,373 668,451,188 1,621,215
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 ~ BEBHERT| — R T HefFat 2l

contribution plans (Note 1) (§1) - 41,583,703 41,583,703 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRET - 965,345 965,345 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —E R Z|Ei&Y E A2 - - - -
Total a3t 1,735,030 710,886,421 711,000,236 1,621,215
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Payroll payable (Continued)

(2) Short-term remuneration

RISk I ot

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N AU BEHRIEEERE)

4~ ENEBIEME)

(2) REFMZ T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215 E
Increase in Decrease in
2021.1.1 the period the period 2021.12.31
—EC--F —E--&
ltem EH —-A—-H KEEM XERHY T=A=t+-H
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, — 1% %% EEAEYT
allowance, subsidies - 535,529,278 535,529,278 -
2) Staff welfare - BIBNE - 25,315,761 25,315,761 -
3) Social security = HERRE - 43,141,353 43,141,353 -
Including: Medical insurance Hi: BERBHEB - 40,704,483 40,704,483 -
Work injury insurance 1 R & - 1,382,778 1,382,778 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 1,054,092 1,054,092 -
4) Housing funds LRNE /N - 36,734,812 36,734,812 -
5) Labor union expenses and T IeRBABRTIHELRE
employees’ education expenses 1,621,215 13,395,988 13,471,884 1,545,319
Total At 1,621,215 654,117,192 654,193,088 1,545,319
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2020F &
Increase in Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31
“ECER ‘ —ECER
ltem BH —R—H REREM KERS +ZA=1+—AR
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, —I& %% ZHAET
allowance, subsidies - 556,363,726 556,363,726 -
2) Staff welfare — BIENE - 24,102,314 24,102,314 -
3) Social security = HeERRE - 38,770,839 38,770,839 -
Including: Medical insurance Hiv BERRKRE - 37,102,294 37,102,294 -
Work injury insurance IEREE - 815,784 815,784 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 852,761 852,761 -
4) Housing funds m - FEAES - 37,083,779 37,033,779 -
5) Labor union expenses and I ISEBNBINELE
employees’ education expenses 1,735,030 12,066,715 12,180,530 1,621,215
Total At 1735030 668,337,373  668451,188 1621215

ERRE
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

24

ENBIEME)
(3) REEFFEIIR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215 E
Increase in Decrease in
2021.1.1 the period the period 2021.12.31
—EB--F —EBEC--F
Item 5H -B-H AEEM *ERY tZA=1+-8
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BABZRR - 64,657,918 64,657,918 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 KERRE - 2,418,809 2,418,809 -
3) Annuity 3 EFEHE - - - -
Total a3t - 67,076,727 67,076,727 -
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20204 &
Increase in Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31
—ETCTE —E-%
ltem 5H —-A—A TREHEM TERS TZRA=1—H
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BEXEZRR - 39,734,686 39,734,686 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 KERRE - 1,849,017 1,849,017 -
3) Annuity 3 EFEYE - - - -
Total A3t - 41,583,703 41,583,703 -
Note 1: The Group participated in social security contributions 1 NEEIRR T2 MNA BTSSR
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and the unemployment insurance plan established by
government institutions as required. According to such
plan, the Group contributes 16% and 0.8% monthly
respectively to such plans based on the employee’s
basic salary each month. Besides above monthly
contributions, the Group will not take responsibility
for further liabilities. Corresponding payment occurred
shall be accrued in current period profit or loss or
related assets cost. Under these plans, no forfeited
contributions can be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB64,657,918 and RMB2,418,809 (2020:
RMB39,766,572 and RMB1,846,072) to social security
contributions and the unemployment insurance plan
accordingly. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively, there were no unsettled retirement
insurance and the unemployment insurance in the
accounting period.

COMPANY LIMITED

U EEZRE - RERKRETE
RiEZEE - AEEHRIRE
TITEARTIER16% * 0.8%F AR
ZETEBEFER BT A
BIFBRN AEETHRESR
—SXNEE - BEAHZHNE
ERFTAEHRIBRSSAEEED
BRAR o TEMEERTEIT - 302
HRTEHEAEERERLSRE
KT o

REBRFED R MEER
b XERBFEBEFER
AR 6465791870 X AR
# 2,418,809 7L(2020 & : A
R # 39,734,686 7t & A R
1,849,0177T) ° 12021412 531
AR B EER RS AE B B
RENHEERBEIERRE
f 2202012 A31 B AR B &
ER RS M AR A HE
EZRBRRERBRERA -
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Taxes payable 25 - EXBE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F ZECTF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Value-added tax ER 18,406,310 27,291,548
Corporate income tax DEMRER 14,978,540 16,306,554
Personal income tax BIAFTEH 882,193 1,094,440
City construction and maintenance tax 3 4 €2 & 51 233,620 1,003,307
Education surcharge HE BH N 212,664 433,781
Stamp duty ENTERL 1,065,314 1,394,702
Local education surcharge 52 E BN 141,576 272,898
Other Hith 27 100,688
Total At 35,920,244 47,897,918
Other payables 26 ~ HAthFER R
(1) Presentation of other payables by the nature of (1) EXEMEITR
accounts
2021.12.31 2020 12.31
—E-—F —E-TF
ltem 1HE +=ZHA=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Other payables Hh FET R 193,490,916 230,642,037
Interest payables FERTRILE - -
Dividend payables JFEAIEF 5,333,891 6,389,222
Total At 198,824,807 237,031,259

)

Presentation of other payables by nature of accounts

Details of other payables

(2) EMEMEX

AR E DR E b R 5K

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—E-—F —ECTEF
ltem 15§ +ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Construction fees payable e T2 44,715,846 62,781,161
Deposit He 73,315,332 94,809,801
Others Hit 75,459,738 73,051,075
Total &5 193,490,916 230,642,037
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other payables (Continued) 26 ~ HttERR(E)
(3) Details of dividend payables 3) ENRFELR
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E=-—F —ETHF
ltem THH +=—A=+—H +-A=+—H
Other minority shareholders’ H At R R AR F
dividend 5,333,891 6,389,222
Total &t 5,333,891 6,389,222
27. Non-current liabilities due within one year 27 - —FERBEBHNIIEREERE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F —ZE-TF
ltem HEH +=A=+—H +=—A=+—AH
Leases liability due within one year 1FANEBENEERE 167,827,272 168,537,320
Total &t 167,827,272 158,537,320
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Other current liabilities 28 - HiRBEE
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F ZECTF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Refund payable JERHRE K 9,115,785 12,283,411
Accrued expenses JERE M 8,715,877 9,145,519
Output tax to be transferred FREESHIB TR B 42,136,815 44,017,457
Total &5t 59,968,477 65,446,387
Accrued expenses BIREH
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—% —ETF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—8H +=ZA=+—A”
Accrued rent expenses JEiREAE 212,332 163,331
Accrued audit expenses TEIRERTE 1,306,604 1,264,151
Others Hih 7,196,941 7,718,037
Total &t 8,715,877 9,145,519
29. Bonds payable 29 - EfES
(1) Bonds payable (1) FEfREF
2021.12.31 2020.12.31
—E-—F ZETF
ltem EH +=ZA=+—H +-A=+—H
Corporate bonds A AEF(2019.8.26-
(2020.8.26-2024.8.25) 2024.8.25) 403,545,776 402,932,044
Total &5t 403,545,776 402,932,044
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Bonds payable (Continued) 29 ~ EHEER(E)
(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) ENEFHEHEE
Term of Issue in the
Bonds Par value Issue date  the bond Issue amount 2020.12.31 period
e 2
EHFETRE HfE BIRH  REHFAR “1e8® TZA=t—-8 KHBT
Corporate bonds 400,000,000 2019.8.23 5 years 400,000,000 402,932,044 -
NI 5%
Total 400,000,000 400,000,000 402,932,044 -
aif
Bond discount/
Accrued interest premium  Paid during the
for the period amortization period 2021.12.31
) KEER ( —E=--F
Bonds EHETE HE TR KHEEE | t=A=t-H
Corporate bonds NGl 5,288,329 1,742,553 - 403,545,776
Total A3t 5,288,329 1,742,653 - 403,545,776
Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate KR EFEe(ERNZEL AR
Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng BREEEBRGERARMERE
Jian Xu Ke [2019] No. 303) issued by the CSRC, on BENABITESOME) (FER
26 August 2019, the Company issued the corporate AJ[2019]303%% ) &% /& * A20194F
bonds aggregated to RMB400,000,000 with a term 8H26H + RAFTHKIEFEIRA
of maturity of 5 years. The corporate bonds were NABETAREAMBEITHER AR
jointly secured by Beijing Chaoyang District National FHREIES - Z2rfEHFAIL
Capital Operating Management Center, a state-owned RMEHGEREAEREEEERA L
enterprise, bearing coupon rate at 3.77% per annum. (—R2RIBEHITCE)REHE2E
The issuance expenses of RMB3,150,943 had been BRI R E T R TRERE
included in bonds payable. R BEFEEITT% - BEF
BEE ARM3,150,943TE 5 ARE

& -
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1y

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Lease liability

Bt BmRAEERE)

30 -HEERE

2021.12.31 2020.12.31

—EB-—F —ECTF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Lease Payments MENKE 1,242,425,596 1,285,514,206

Less: Unrecognized financing charges & : RIERH@E E A 177,342,547 215,845,062
Reclassified to non-current BEHRE—FRNIHN

liabilities due within one year EREBAaE 167,827,272 158,537,320

Net lease liability HEBEFHE 897,255,777 911,131,824

Note: For details of the changes to the implementation of the new

lease criteria, see Note VI. 12 The right-of-use assets.

e BT EER R EI AT RME

N 12(EREEE

31. Government grants 31 ~ BUN#B
Details of government grants BIF#HBELER
Amount
included in
current profit
Classification Amount Presentation project and loss
FFAEHEREN
EH 8 JIER o]
Government grants related to assets are 9,112,263 Other income 9,112,263
amortized this year
B 72 A I ) U 478 Bh AR SR 8 H oz
Livelihood subsidy 150,000 Non-operating income 150,000
R AL EEEINIA
Vehicle scrapping allowance 10,000 Non-operating income 10,000
BB MREE B EE LN ON
Retirement compensation 738,492 Non-operating income 738,492
R A ER EEINA
Ease the employment pressure 3,933,580 Other income 3,933,580
PRFR SRR 7RG Efth Yz
Government reserve expense 1,975,287  Other income 1,975,287
BT B E BEL Hb e
Other 5,247,091  Other income 5,247,091
H 454 Hob e
A&t 21,166,713 21,166,713
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income 32 - EREW R
Increase in  Decrease in
Item 2021.1.1 the period the period 2021.12.31 Reasons
—E-—F —E-—F
A —B—8 AR rERFLS +t=ZA=+—HB FHEE
Government grants 34,039,487 1,793,100 9,112,263 26,720,324 -
B4 B
Total 34,039,487 1,793,100 9,112,263 26,720,324 -
A3
Including, the project related to Government grants: Hoh - S RRITEBIMIER -
Included
non- Included
Increase in operating other Other Related to assets/
ltem 2021.1.1  the period income income change  2021.12.31  income
REFERY AFTAEE KEFAHM
BEER FN6BE F  MEE K& H it 8 EABE HEE/KHNH
Agricuttural Super Matchmaking 2,531,567 - - 1,047,681 - 1483886 Related to assets
Pilot Project
IRTEHRZEE - ARTAHRRNRE HEAEIEH
HEDITHE
Chaoyang District Finance Bureau life 2,737,683 - - 421,182 - 2316501  Related to assets
service industry development
guidance funds
AEERANBEEEREEEREES BEERD
Central Finance promotes the development 2,213,793 - - 840,706 - 1,373,087  Related to assets
of special funds for the service industry
(2015.01-2023.12)
PRIDREREERREEAS HEEIEH
(2015.01-2023.12)
Logistics standardization pilot project in 2,408,567 - - 398,797 - 2,009,770  Related to assets
2017
017 BHRBIRREL HEEIRH
Logistics standardization pilot project in 1,935,272 - - 567,073 - 1,368,199  Related to assets
2015
0155 W BFREMRREL HEEIDH
Other 22,212,605 1,793,100 - 5836824 - 18,168,881  Related to assets
L b REE EEAEIH
Total 34,039,487 1,793,100 - 9,112,268 - 26,720,324
&
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

Government grants include:

1)

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

N AU BEHRIEEERE)

32 ~ IEFEW IS (42)
BT BB IE

(1)

R B 2005 F & U Bk B B
RN EZEGRIERTHEGRERE
B BB R AT AR #654,000,000
TOR RS HE R 32 A B X
S~ EBEER O RE X R D
MRRAFREESCEANEEE
& o A B E W B 5% B B R
BRECE K - BREEABRE
EMEGFERASmIsFRTH
B BHESEAEHRNES
AR R -

RRARR2014FF W R L R T E
BLEEg - IERMHBBEBERHE
FFAREE14,186,70070 AR R IR LS
BEREEZREENREES - &
5 18 75 2 3] 52 B T 8 o B R SRR A
Wik - RBEIEEBEENTE
EASMIIFEREFRITHY - #
OB AR AR A BERIE

o

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 RaR B et

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

®)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

)

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for upgrading business
facilities program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

II/

RIS RaR By e
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N AU BEHRIEEERE)

32 ~ IEFEW IS (42)

)

KA AR 2015 F E H 5 4k =
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B 5 RaR B et

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

7

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for renovation of energy-saving
lamps. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

©)

In 2016, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Chaoyang district
Cailanzi project. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB12,647,900
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in
the estimated useful life (8 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.

II/
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued) 32 EZEWER(E)
(11) In 2017, the Company received government grants (11) AR FR2017 E E U BHL = 3
totaling RMB3,140,000 from Beijing Municipal RMBEZESEARTARKE

Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong energy-saving emission
reduction technology innovation project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (8
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,011,200 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for Commercial circulation

development of agricultural ultra-docking project. The

3,140,0007T FA 74 32+ & F& i g
MPERMAEEENREES -
RE BRI Z B BB R R R R
T - RBEBEBBEENE
sHERSmeFEITHE - Bl
T AE R AR A BB

KRB R2017 FE WS4 =
TEBZEGRAHFARYE
4,011,200t AR M ERBER R
MEZEENZEELES - A5H
TE Y B 57 B B0 o R T R R S W

deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the = RS HBEEMNTERFEA
OFHITHE - BESEITA
MR AR B B ERERE -

B

financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets

Bk 2

were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (9 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

(13)

(14)

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,199,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Commercial convenience
service investment project. The deferred income was
recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,
meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by the
initial entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (7
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,155,200 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Store renovation project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (8 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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32 ~ IEFEW IS (42)

(13)

(14)

RRRF2017F [E U B b R g
BRMREZEGBAATARE
1,199,0007T A B % & R RIS &%
BREFBHEBENZEHES « K
B B U B2 B B R R S R R AT
Wz RBEEEAERTER
SwTEETHEE  BHESEHA
EERNEEBHEER

AR AR 20184 [F U B b R 8%
BMNEZBESRAANARE
1,155,200 AR PIJE SAS & T8
BEMBRELES  AEBEEKIIZ
BB AR R RIEE W s - 1R
EEBEERERSmeFET
B BHESEAEHRUE
BRABEIES -

piN|

T

2021 F#f 297
I RRREEEEERNERAF]
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 ZE
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued) 32 EZEWER(E)

(15) In 2018, the Company received government grants (15) AR AR 20184 W B4t = 1 3

totaling RMB3,681,500 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy-saving technical transformation
project. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by the initial entry value
of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,211,820 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Life service
industry development guidance project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (10
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

a7

(18)

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,471,800 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2019, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,832,900 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued) 32 EZEWER(E)

(19) In 2020, the Company received government grants (19) AR AR 20204 [E U B4t = #8

totaling RMB2,000,000 from Logistics Service Center
of Chaoyang District, Beijing as a special funds for Life
Service Employment Development Guidance Project.
The deferred income was divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2020, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,566,200 from Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Commerce as a special funds for Promote chain
operation projects. The deferred income was divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2020, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,7883,294 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

(22)

In 2021, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB356,600 from Logistics Service Center
of Chaoyang District, Beijing as a special funds for
Promote chain operation projects. The deferred income
was divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (4 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2021, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB470,000 from Beijing Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection Center as a special
funds for energy conservation and emission reduction
technology transformation projects. The deferred
income was divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (5 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2021, the Company received government
grants totaling RMB836,500 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Share capital 33 ~ B
Changes in the period
KERE
Capitalization
Opening ~ New issue of of surplus Closing
balance shares  Bonus issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
ftem i g it il BE LESER it it EXE
For the year ended at 31 December 2021 2021£E
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BEEASR
Chaofu Company BN 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-onned legal person shares BB AR 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EfAERR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned BB AL
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domestic individual shareholders EMERARER 57,439,764 - - - - - 57439764
3, Foreign sted shares denominated N AMB 3. 350 LA AR VAR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares Thag 412,220,000 - - - - - 412220000
For the year ended at 31 December 2020 2020£%
1. State-onned legal person shares 1. BEEASR
Chaofy Company VN 167,409,608 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal person shares — AAEAER st 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. AfAERR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned BRFEREAER
legal person 5210428 - - - - - 5210428
Domestic indviduel shersholders ERARARR 57,430,764 - - - - - 5740764
3. Foreign lted shares denominated in RMB 3, 39 A ABEAARR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares ks 412,220,000 - - - - - 42220000
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. Capital reserves

For the year ended 31 December 2021

AN
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N AU BEHRIEEERE)

34 - BERQNE
20215 &

Increase in Decrease in

2021.1.1 the period the period 2021.12.31
—B--F —E--F
Item HH —-A-H KEREM *EFY TZA=1-H
Capital premium BAEE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders 177 &) >8R B kR 5 (1)
of subsidiaries (Note) (10,443,286) 134,363 - (10,308,923)
Other capital reserves HEALNE 5,695,493 - - 5,695,493
Total At 605,043,091 134,363 - 605,177,454
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2020 &
Increase in Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31
Item R —A—H AREEIN FERY +ZA=T-H
Capital premium RAEE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders EF A8 D ERERES 5
of subsidiaries (10,443,286) - - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves HihERRTE 5,696,493 - - 5,695,493
Total = 605,043,091 - - 605,043,091

Note: The transaction with the minority shareholders of the
subsidiary increased by RMB134,363 in this year, which
means that Chaopi Zhongde, a subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 10% equity of the minority shareholders of its
subsidiary Chaopi Fangsheng. The above amount was caused
by the investment cost less than the share of the net assets of
Chaopi Fangsheng.

Ry

D AFETFARDBRRAMER 51
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

35 ~ HitiRa

20215

Changes in the period

KERER
Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other Attributable
comprehensive to the
income is shareholders  Attributable
transferred to of parent  to minority
Amount before  profit or loss for  Less: Income company  shareholder
2021.1.1 tax the period tax expense after tax affertax 20211231
B ALH
C3T-E REFERA SRWEER  BOMBE RABEM  RABER  -30-f
ltem R -f-A itd ] E\BR ER  BOWEE HHRR T2AZ1-B
Other comprehensive ncome that wilbe W& BEABEBRNEEANE
reclassied to proft or loss - - - - - - -
Diffsrences of forsign currency financil NEHRRRTEER
statements convert 309414 - 309414 - - - -
Total it 309414 - 309414 - - - -
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20204
Changes in the period
FERER
Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other
comprehensive Attributable to
income i the shargholders ~ Attributable
transferred to profit of parent fo minority
Amount before orlossforthe  Less: Income  company after  sharefolder
2020.1.1 fax peiod  fex expense fax aftertac 20201231
B A A
CEIRE RESERN GRMGEEEN A HEA 0% S
lem B8 A-A BEE &R Bt B2 t-A=t-8
Other comprehengive income that wilbe  WERENEEBANEMEANE
reclassffied to profit or loss - - - - - - -
Differences of foreign currency financil B RERTEEE
statements convert 309,414 - - - - - 309,414
Totd ait 309414 - - - - - 309414
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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N AU BEHRIEEERE)

36. Surplus reserves 36 - BERATE
Opening Increase in  Decrease in Closing
balance the period the period balance
Item HH FO¥ KEEM FERD FRY
For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215
Statutory surplus reserve FERBBLNE 169,059,880 - - 169,059,880
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205
Statutory surplus reserve i YN 160,727,215 8,332,665 - 169,059,880

In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory
surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the

loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital.

BREBERARE  AKBEBREMNRE K
SEIFNER10%RBUEE BB ATE
T RERBRBERIAB RN E M
BARE0% A LY - AT NEBEZEL o

EEBHAEAANBEHEARNESE
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Undistributed profits 37 ~ RO BRI
Proportion of
Amount appropriation
ltem BH &8 1R BN 2 B bk
For the year ended 31 December 20215 E ¢
2021
Undistributed profits at the beginning  E#179 E2FiE
of year 550,756,039
Add: Net profit attributable to the m: REZBRERATIME
shareholders of the parent & 1R F)
company for the year (22,474,226)
Less: Appropriation to statutory W IRBUETE BB A
surplus reserve - 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends JEAHE 3B AR AR A
payable 41,222,000
Other Eith (859)
Undistributed profits at the end of FRRAEFE
the year 487,060,672

For the year ended 31 December 20204 F :

2020
Undistributed profit at the end of last S RTEXIR 2 B2 FIE
period before adjustment 550,263,661
Adjustment of the total amount FEFEYIRDBEFEEETE
of undistributed profits at the (FA1%+ - 3R —)
beginning of the period
(increase +, decrease -) (12,857,911)
Adjusted undistributed profit at the AR FYIRDEHH
beginning of the year 537,405,750
Add: Net profit attributable to the m: RFEEENEARMAE
shareholders of the parent HHYFFE
company for the year 54,660,554
Less: Appropriation to statutory B IRBUATE BB AR
surplus reserve 8,332,665 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends JEAT 3 AR A A
payable 32,977,600
Other Hith _
Undistributed profits at the end of the 4FRF&x 9 ERFE
year 550,756,039
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Undistributed profits (Continued) 37 ~ RDEAEE)
(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be (1) BREASEHMEMELHENE L
approved in the annual general meeting BRF
According to the notice of the annual general meeting M2021F5/8218 « REBEALQFN
on 21 May 2021, a final dividend of RMB0.10 per RERERFE - NAFHE20205F
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2020 was ERFMAERARKECI0T @ A5
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. B A AR #41,222,0007T ©

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB41,222,000.

According to the notice of the annual general meeting 20206 A238 - RIEALQTA
on 23 June 2020, a final dividend of RMBO0.08 per BERERE - ARF D019
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2019 was ERFASRARK.08T © AT
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. f& A AR 32,977,6007T ©

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB32,977,600.

On 30 March 2022, the directors of the Company MR2022%F3A30H @ AARIMES
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMB0.05 SREDE2021FERF - B
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended AR®0.057C s B F 5 Bl 3 48
31 December 2021. The proposal of dividend FEBRREHAE o ZBAMIAL R
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved EBBEFTAREHIBRE -
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of RSN HRFIRERARKE
the Company. This recommendation has not been 20,611,0007T °

incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB20,611,000.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Undistributed profits (Continued) 37 ~ ROEWAB(E)
(2) Surplus reserves of subsidiaries (2) FRACERHEGLE
On 31 December 2021, the undistributed profits of the 2021F12A31H - KAEEKRDHE
Group included surplus reserves of subsidies totaling FIEBERREFRARARFRR
in the period RMB22,036,753 (31 December 2020: R A% IE B ARM22036,753
RMB23,985,965). 7L(2020F 12 A31H: AR

23,985,9657T ) ©

(3) Explanation on adjustment of undistributed profits (3) FEHARDBFBAZH A
at the beginning of the period MABEASH 2T SE8E
Due to the correction of major accounting errors, the MARDEFBEARK12,857,911
undistributed profit at the beginning of the period was JC o A RMETE 5.

affected by RMB12,857,911. Please refer to Note XIV.5

for details;
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. Operating income and operating costs

(1) Operating income and operating costs

)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214FE

S

/

38 * ERBAMERKAE

(1) ERUARBEF

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Bt BmRAEERE)

2021 2020
20215 20205 %
Income Cost Income Cost
Item E5E WA BA WA AR
Principal operating FTRER 10,100,311,991  8,891,142,620 |11,000,470,884  9,710,155,779
Other operating Hibh ¥ 956,243,332 42,248,127 979,173,670 8,713,913
Total =i 11,056,555,323  8,933,390,747 |11,979,644,554  9,718,869,692
Principal operating (classified by industry segments) (2) EEXEK(ST¥)
2021 2020
20215 E 202058
Principal Principal
operating Principal operating Principal
income operating costs income  operating costs
Item JEE FEEBUA  EEEBRER | Z2EBKN E2EBRAE
Retall TE 3,243,962,948  2,671,620,921 | 4,287,437,692  3,552,264,461
Wholesale BrE 6,843,854,319  6,211,649,311 | 6,697,784,004 6,143,868,324
Others Hih 12,494,724 7,872,388 15,249,188 14,022,994
Total A&t 10,100,311,991  8,891,142,620 |11,000,470,884  9,710,155,779
The principal operating income mainly consists of FTEEBRATEAHERR -

selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods,

beverages and wines etc.

BlRdam - BRBEER - REAE
FEUSHUA -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. Operating income and operating costs (Continueqd) 38 ~ EEIWATEERAK(E)
(3) Operating income of the Group’s top five customers 3 RAREEEFHEFEURAET
For the year ended 31 December 2021 20215 E
Proportion of the
total operating
income of the
Operating income Group (%)
AT EEEZERA
Item EH BEWA B LE 45l (%)
Jingdong R 1,504,420,845 14
Wu-mart LIS 571,774,052 5
Hong Kong Transocean Unlimited &8 ¥ E R AR A A
Co., Ltd. 245,473,911 2
Wal-Mart (China) Investment KEIE(REIREER QA
Co., Ltd. 237,600,428 2
Zhejiang Tmall Network AL RSB BRI AR AR
Technology Co., Ltd. 202,243,964 2
Total A3t 2,761,513,200 25
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20204 E
Proportion of the
total operating
income of the
Operating income Group (%)
ERRIZEEERA
ltem T BEUA FOLL (%)
Jingdong R 1,734,960,040 14
Wu-mart LIES 657,682,545 5
Vipshop Ehe 334,411,603 3
Zhejiang Tmall Network AL RSB R B R A
Technology Co., Ltd. 266,183,115 2
Wal-Mart (China) Investment R (PEDIEEER AT
Co., Ltd. 183,852,961 2
Total &5 3,177,090,264 26
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

39. Taxes and surcharges 39 ~ B R M
2021 2020
ltem 1HE 20215 E 20204 E
Consumption tax SEHET 1,000,975 652,700
City construction and maintenance tax i i 4 &2 52 5 16,484,540 20,707,915
Building tax FEM 16,369,172 15,843,789
Land tax T E R 992,796 1,021,412
Vehicle and vessel use tax BE R 142,769 164,142
Stamp tax ENTERR 5,973,640 6,657,184
Environmental protection tax RIBIRER 14,229 19,414
Others Hib 33,447 30,786
Total &5t 41,011,568 45,097,342
40. Selling expenses 40 - HEEHRA
2021 2020
ltem 1HE 20215 E 20204 E
Wages and salaries B T S 475,711,610 494,565,734
Depreciation and amortization MERBIEER
expenses 342,271,592 361,468,304
Promotional expenses EERIHE 300,427,348 359,467,640
Service fee REE 210,566,361 238,275,018
Utility fee IKEE 64,192,474 61,323,736
Shipping fee B 38,085,282 43,580,487
Security fee R E 35,576,111 35,447,006
Repair fee EBIEE 29,970,691 28,511,765
Lease expenses HEE 17,007,604 16,678,391
Coal fee IR B 16,819,256 15,960,753
Cleaning fee RERE 16,000,224 15,420,187
Warehousing fee EHEBR 14,452,136 15,773,583
Advertising fee EEEES 12,071,461 15,817,701
Property costs MEE 10,136,881 9,618,395
Others Hit 27,554,847 33,573,315
Total &5 1,610,843,878 1,745,482,015

2021 @%ﬁ 311
IERREERNERERO AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214

AN

1y

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

41.

42.

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

Administrative expenses M -EEEH
2021 2020
ltem BE 2021 E 2020 Z
Wages and salaries B T 57 B 246,776,101 214,947,131
Depreciation and amortization ERBEER
expenses 10,758,390 11,133,993
Inventory count loss FEREIEX 3,823,857 5,287,888
Service fee AR 75 & 3,213,434 1,970,411
Audit fees EETE 3,170,790 2,957,263
Consulting fee k= 2,660,566 2,216,777
Low value consumables KBS ER 2,303,790 2,760,118
Business hospitality EBBEHE 1,803,492 2,023,129
Others Hith 8,775,095 6,981,076
Total &5t 283,285,515 250,277,786
Financial expenses 42 - BIEEH
2021 2020
ltem EEH 2021 E 2020%F Z
Interest expenses ez H 146,447,610 170,311,762
Including: Lease liability interest Hep: AEAGBENEXH
expense 49,719,757 53,725,298
Less: Capitalized interest expenses B MEER SR 101,938 50,428
Interest income FBUA (10,209,883) (17,639,757)
Bank charges RITFEE 8,611,299 11,818,624
Exchange losses (gains) & 5B 81,291 4,878,243
Total A&t 144,828,379 169,318,444
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Other income

(1)

)

Details of other income

RISk I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 20214Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Bt BmRAEERE)

43 ~ HAibzs

(1) Embize6400T

The amount
included in
the current

year non-
recurring
gains and
2021 2020 losses
FFAEFIE
LEMEBE
ltem 1HH 20215 E 2020 & et
Government grants BT Bh 20,268,221 24,506,275 20,268,221
Total &3t 20,268,221 24,506,275 20,268,221
Details of government grants (2) BB
2021 2020
ltem HH 20215 & 2020 &
Asset-related government grants  £2°4 = A8 8 &Y B T #8 Bh AR 4E
amortization for the current B4y
year 9,112,263 3,342,022
Ease the employment pressure  #& 25k £ B /7B 3,933,580 5,555,298
Government reserve expense BT EE R, 1,975,287 9,260,025
Other H ARk 5,247,091 6,348,930
Total At 20,268,221 24,506,275
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N BB HRREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N\

44, Investment income 44 ~ RE W
2021 2020
ltem EH 2021 E 20204 [F
Investment income from short-term M E RO EAIR B A IR A WS
financial products - 33,984
Investment income from disposal of R & K HIRRER B E LIS
long-term equity investment & W 3,400,882 -
Investment income from disposal of BB AR EEEE A E#
financial assets at fair value through — Zhst AZHIBRNERE
profit or loss EREMEE =S 9,616,515 -
Investment income of financial assets AA# EEE S A HE 8T
measured at fair value through profit ~ AEHIIERN SR EEE
or loss during the holding period A BRI E s 1,382,478 1,163,898
Total &t 14,399,875 1,197,882
45. Gains from changes in fair values 45 - P REEZ BN
Sources of gains from changes in 2021 2020
fair values EX AR BEZFHENHR 20215 20204 Z
Trading financial assets RHEERMEE (25,559,594) 89,236,083
Including: classified financial assets £ : DA AR BEFELHE
at fair values through SFAEHESNEMEE
profits or losses (exclude (PTETEEENAREE
gains from changes in FEU RN
fair value of derivative
instruments) (25,559,594) 89,236,083
classified financial assets DEAAREEFEAEHE
at fair values through it AEHESNEREE
profits or losses (gains (PTTEEMIAEEENRAR
from changes in fair EEZHKE)
value of derivative
instruments) - -
Total BEF (25,559,594) 89,236,083
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Credit impairment loss

[tem

Credit impairment loss of
note receivable and
accounts receivable

Credit impairment loss of
other receivable

EH

N AU BEHRIEEERE)

46 ~ ERBEEX

eI R M IR E K

H A YR E AR

2021
20215 E

(9,456,696)

(2,093,027)

2020
20204 [E

(12,240,380)

(4,615,868)

Total

(11,549,723)

(16,856,248)

47. Gain on disposal of assets

47 - BEREBEWE

The amount included

in the current year
non-recurring gains

2021 2020 and losses

STABFILEN

[tem 5 H 2021 E 2020F € BareE
Gain on disposal of FERBEEREWNZT

non-current assets 5,483,155 7,184,727 5,483,155

Total A&t 5,483,155 7,184,727 5,483,155
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N O BRREEFTEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Non-operating income 48 ~ EEIIMRA
(1) Details of non-operating income (1) EEISPKRABHMT
The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains
and losses for the
2021 2020 year
AFAEFIELE N
ltem 1HE 2021FE 2020 F B e
Total gains on spoilage ERENE ERIBIREE
and obsolescence of ME&E
non-current assets 31,241 11,623 31,241
Including: Gains on He: BE&EERE
spoilage and WEER1F
obsolescence
of non-current
assets of fixed
assets 31,241 11,623 31,241
Government grants BUF B 898,492 6,000,000 898,492
Compensation for breach E#) @ {ES
of contract 3,124,667 2,535,909 3,124,667
Tax rate adjustment MERBE DL NFIAE
underpayment 357,995 3,296,035 357,995
Disposal of waste materials ZI2EEE Y& - 637,168 -
Others Hib 8,249,987 4,930,893 8,249,987
Total &5 12,662,382 17,411,628 12,662,382
(2) Details of government grants (2) BFFEBreE4
2021 2020
ltem 1HH 2021 FE 2020F &
Safe production environment & &4 ERIBFAMAL(FE1)
upgrade subsidy (Note 1) - 6,000,000
Retirement compensation EREER(GE2)
(Note 2) 738,492 -
People’s livelihood subsidy — ERA#EL(52)
(Note 2) 150,000 -
Vehicle scrap subsidy from HREIRIE BE S REE MBI R (G
the Ecological Environment 2)
Bureau (Note 2) 10,000 -
Total &5t 898,492 6,000,000
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Non-operating income (Continued)

(2) Details of government grants (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

according to Chao guoziwen[2020] No.152, “Approval
of the Appropriation of State-owned Capital
Operation Budget Funds in 2020”, the company
received RMB6,000,000 of subsidies for remediation

and improvement of safe production environment.

RMB738,492 was the compensation fund vacated
by the People’s Government of Pingfang Township,
Chaoyang District, Beijing RMB150,000 was the
subsidy received by Langfang from the Guangyang
District Finance Bureau of Langfang City, and the
other RMB10,000 was the subsidy received by
Beijing Chaopi Yuli Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading for the vehicle scrapping subsidy

received by the Ecological Environment Bureau.

49. Non-operating expenses

N AU BEHRIEEERE)

48 ~ EEIMA(E)

BIFH B EA ()

FE1 - ARIRFAE & XX [2020]1525% AR
B2020F BB EREETEEE
SHREINRT - ADRUE
MBI RE AR 2 A ERERE
A& & AR %6,000,0007T °

@)

CHA o AR¥738,4927T AdL R
MG E T B A RBT R
B ARM150,0007T & BB ¥
REME RS T EBETERDR
HEHERE 5 AR10,0007T A A #E
BEZ TR RAMBRTIEE
BRARWEERRIREREER
BEREBIFR ©

49 ~ BEIHZH

The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains and
2021 2020 losses for the year
FTABFIEL T
ltem ERE| 20215 E 2020%F[Z BaRreHE
Total losses on spoilage and EREBEERIBRE
obsolescence of non-current BRAstT
assets 3,662,043 1,888,862 3,662,043
Including: Losses on spoilage  H : BT &AEXE
and obsolescence WMEEE R
of fixed assets 3,662,043 1,888,862 3,662,043
Fine ik 4,290,192 1,446,099 4,290,192
Others Hih 7,607,910 7,062,737 7,607,910
Total A5t 15,560,145 10,397,698 15,560,145
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N AHUBHERABERE) 7~

50. Income tax expense

(1) Details of income tax expense

)

B BBRRERERE)

50 - FiSHER
(1) FEHERZX

2021 2020
ltem HE 2021 E 2020 [E
Current income tax expense = SR E R 41,105,907 68,150,796
Deferred income tax expense IEILFTSFE R (8,710,982) 11,928,310
Total &%t 32,394,925 80,079,106

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and (2) EFFHEFEHERARERE
accounting profits is as follows:

2021 2020
ltem 1HE 2021FE 2020 £
Total profit i E e gm 43,339,407 162,882,175
Income tax expenses calculated at AT/ BRAREE

appropriate tax rate BT STE A 10,834,852 40,720,544
Effect of subsidiary companies to adapt-+2 &)@ B TR i & #)

different tax rates 2 (407,862) 657,358
Effect of adjusting the previous years’ FHZLARTHARIFT SR

income tax T 241,449 (13,497)
Effect of non-taxable income FEEFIMAR L - (945,090)
Effect of non-deductible costs, THENARA « BA

expenses and losses MBI E 1,456,730 3,109,826
Effect of using deductible losses of 158 FB AT BA AR FE R IR AL T

previously unrecognized deferred tax 5% & & &) A K 0 E5

assets =L (26,637,253) (825,880)
Effect of deductible temporary RERERBELEFTST

difference or deductible losses of BEMAEINER T

unrecognized deferred tax assets in ~ Z= R A HAEEL

the period wE 46,907,009 37,375,845
Total &5 32,394,925 80,079,106
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

51.

Net profit

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes
ltem B H BIsE
Cost of goods sold 727 om S B A AR VI 38
Depreciation of investment WEEEMERE VI 9

properties
Depreciation of fixed assets ErEETE VI 10
Depreciation of right-of-use FEREEENE VI12
assets
Amortization of intangible assets 28 & 4% VI 13
Amortization of leasehold CEHRABTEEERR VI 15
improvements guik S
Total of depreciation and ERBHAR
amortization
Net losses on disposal of non-  JERBIEEREFELX V47 -
current assets 48 ~ 49
Net rental income of investment % & 4 EiEHR SR
properties A
Staff costs BT E A VI 24
Including: Directors and Hi - EF  EEe
supervisors’
emoluments
Other staff costs: HEMh B TAA -
Wages or salaries and IT& %o ktt
social security costs IREER A
Basic retirement EARBERRE
insurance
Audit expenses EirEH

51 ~ FFE

Bt BmRAEERE)

REBEEFREIEMEGEA R TH

B

2021
20215 E

8,891,142,620

8,690,564
94,715,164

190,229,398
16,713,891

60,418,657
370,767,674

(1,852,353)
(17,505,676)
724,005,881

4,462,475

655,235,217

64,308,189
3,170,790

2020
20202

9,710,155,779

8,690,564
102,133,754

191,380,996
16,846,698

67,360,065
386,412,077
(5,307,488)
(13,752,415)
710,886,421

4,548,227

666,838,749

39,499,445
2,957,263
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

52. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

52 - EXBRUENHRESRKSENTE

diluted earnings per share B2

While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit SFEEARGRKEGER - BN T B
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is RHERFFEA

as follows:

2021 2020
ltem IH B 2021 E 20205 E
Net profit attributable to ordinary FER T REARAEA

shareholders for the current year = Eﬁ pelbE (22,474,226) 54,660,554
Including: Net profit from continuing  H# : BEREERLSLH
operations SEFE (22,474,226) 54,660,554
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator HEERGRIKERE - 9B AEITEN
is the weighted average number of ordinary shares EORARINEE S - STEERRNT
outstanding and its calculation process is as follows:

2021 2020
ltem ERS 2021 E 2020 &
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 2577 1E4MNE) & AR 2L 412,220,000 412,220,000
Earnings per share FRIK

2021 2020
ltem 5 H 2021 E 20205 E
Calculated based on net profit and IREEB AR A TR FEFE

net profit from continuing operations MBI A TR A E

attributable to shareholders of the EEER R E

parent company:
Basic earnings per share HARGRR M S (0.05) 0.13
Diluted earnings per share wES Rk N/A FiE A N/A i
At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential HEREZA  AOEEEHEENER

ordinary shares.
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBREREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

53. Items in the cash flow statements

53 -HEREXREHR

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities (1) WKBAEMELE THERES

2021 2020
ltem pERS 2021 20204 E
Income of rent H2WA 176,488,793 175,862,415
Income of scrap sales FERIBA 2,743,834 3,181,236
Income of franchise nERJE WA 743,470 1,181,041
Income of government grant BT 8 B IR 13,847,550 28,595,744
Recovered deposit U [o] $8 4 15,433,428 10,146,229
Others EHih 8,227,939 4,248,154
Total &5 217,485,014 223,214,819

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

(2) ENEMELEIHEBNEE

2021 2020
ltem 18 B 2021 & 20204 &
Selling expenses (except rent) HEBR(TEHE2) 558,623,818 667,747,423
Administrative expenses EHER 25,751,024 23,947,716
Rent Y HEe 17,007,604 17,654,335
Deposit and margin SRS FMRES 487,666 6,311,348
Bank charges IRITFEE 8,611,299 11,818,624
Others HA 5,365,574 4,606,450
Total A&t 615,846,985 732,085,896

Receive other cash related to investment activities

(3 WKERMEREZHEBNEE

2021 2020
ltem 15 H 2021 E 2020 E
Bill margin ZRRFIE 178,800,993 75,229,714
Repayment of Shoulian Group Y [Bl BB S 3k 28,848,342 -
Total At 207,649,335 75,229,714
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

53. Items in the cash flow statements (Continued)

(4) Paying other cash related to investment activities

(5)

(6)

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

53 -HE&HREXRHER (&)

(4) XNRMEREZHEHNEE

2021 2020
ltem 158 20215FE 20204 fZ
Bill margin ERRESD 184,533,337 101,200,025
Total At 184,533,337 101,200,025

Receive other cash related to fundraising activities

(5) UEERMBEBLZZBHEHNEE

2021 2020

ltem 1HH 20215 E 2020 [F
Borrowing from minority BN G XTI

shareholders 400,000 -

Total At 400,000 -

Paying other cash related to fundraising activities

(6) XMEMEZELEZBHEBNEE

2021 2020
ltem 1HR 2021 E 20204 [F
Chaoyang SASAC operating PEHELZEERAEES
turnover funds - -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaELrSRTE
principal and interest 200,251,182 221,843,310
Repayment of bonds BEE - 300,000,000
Borrowings IR &R - -
Total A5 200,251,182 521,843,310
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VI.

statement

statement

Supplementary information

1. Reconciliation of net profits and cash
flow from operating activities:

Net profits

Add: Provision for impairment losses

on assets

Credit impairment loss
Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of investment

property

Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term prepaid

expenses

Net Losses on disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Losses arising from the scrapped

fixed assets

Losses on changes in fair value
Financial expenses (Exchange

gains and losses)

Losses arising from investments
Amortization of government grants

related to assets

Decrease in deferred tax assets
Increase in deferred tax liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables
Net cash flows from operating activities
2. Net changes in cash and cash

equivalents:
Closing balance of cash

Less: Opening balance of cash
Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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54. Supplementary information to the cash flow

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

AR

1.

2.

BENBRSREEEY
Heng

el

e SHRNBERERER

ERRERK
EEAENE
EREEENE
REMEHERE

B AR
REGRERER

REETEE EBVEE
MEMEBEENFE

PS
BlE EERERA

AR BEZESHEX
FBER(RELER)

RERK
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mﬂﬁﬁ